
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING AT THE GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE, BOARD OF  SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400
EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE
MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT
THE GILA COUNTY COMPLEX, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, 610 E. HIGHWAY
260, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, MARCH 10, 2020 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Presentation on the QuadState Local Governments
Authority and its activities regarding the Sonoran Desert
Tortoise and its potential listing as an endangered species
by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service; and proposed
legislation regarding county road rights-of-ways on federal
land. (Gerald Hillier)

 

B.   Public recognition of five employees through the
County's Spotlight on Employees Program, as follows:
Aimee Staten, Israel Juarez, Robert Cox-Robinson, Jerry J.
Moore and Zachary Andrade.   (Erica Raymond)

 

C.   Presentation and discussion on the preliminary design for the
proposed new Gila County Animal Shelter to be located at the
Gila County Fairgrounds.  (Bob Hickman/Michael O'Driscoll)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Agreement No.
020520 between Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area
Agency on Aging and Gila County whereby the County will
disburse $150,000; and further, the Board determines this
is for the benefit to provide services to persons with
disabilities and aged persons within Gila County. (Mary



disabilities and aged persons within Gila County. (Mary
Springer)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Globe
Regional Constable's previous submittal of a FY 2020
Equipment Grant Application to the Constable Ethics,
Standards and Training Board and acceptance of the grant
award in the amount of $18,000 as partial funding to
purchase a new vehicle by authorizing the Chairman's
signature on Grant No. CNA20-405. (Ruben Mancha)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
20-03-01 agreeing for Gila County to be the pass-through
entity on behalf of the Hellsgate Fire District (District) for a
grant awarded to the District by the Tonto Apache Tribe in
the amount of $25,449 to be used for the District's Critical
Hose Replacement Program. (Mary Springer/John Wisner)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the budgeted
and unbudgeted inter-fund transfers for FY2019. (Maryn
Belling)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the publication
of a Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous Surplus
Material in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper on March 18,
2020. (Mary Springer)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No.
3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract ID #
DI16-002156) with the Arizona Department of Economic
Security to extend the Title IV-D child support services
contract agreement from October 1, 2020, through
September 30, 2021. (Jeff Dalton)

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
20-03-02 to name West Dilly Way and West Dally Lane in
the Pine area. (Steve Sanders)

 



 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted
for Invitation for Bids No. 121819 to purchase three new
Ford Expedition SSVs with installed equipment; award to
the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize
the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the
winning bidder. (Steve Sanders)

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted
for Invitation for Bids No. 121919 to purchase one new
Ford F250 crew cab, 4x4 pickup truck with installed
equipment; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified
bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the
award contract for the winning bidder. (Steve Sanders)

 

J.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted
for Invitation for Bids No. 121919-1 to purchase three new
Ford Escape, 4 Door, AWD vehicles; award to the lowest,
responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the
Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning
bidder. (Steve Sanders)

 

K.   Information/Discussion/Action to declare Fulton Ave., a
portion of Central Ave., and the alley in Block Eleven
between Victor St. and Tremont St., as shown on the Map
of South Globe, GCR Map 20, as not being necessary for
public use as roadways and alleyways; and accept a
Citizens' Petition to begin the process to abandon Fulton
Ave., a portion of Central Ave., and the alley in Block Eleven
between Victor and Tremont St. as shown on the Map of
South Globe, GCR Map 20. (Steve Sanders)

 

L.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
20-03-03 authorizing the execution of Amendment No.
Three to an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA
16-0005916-I) between Gila County and the State of
Arizona, Department of Transportation, which is related to
the bridge replacement project on Colcord Road east of



Payson. (Steve Sanders)
 

M.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept a report from the
Assessor's Office regarding a petition signed by owners of
property in the Vertical Heights area of Globe, Arizona
requesting to be de-annexed from the boundaries of the
Tri-City Regional Sanitary District (TRSD); and validate
that all signatures are owners of property for the respective
listed parcel numbers on the petition except for parcel
number 205-01-013A which is not within the taxing
authority boundaries of the TRSD and not signed by
owners of the subject property. (Marian Sheppard)

 

N.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider issuing official
comments from the Board of Supervisors to the Tonto
National Forest on the Tonto National Forest Draft Land
Management Plan and Draft Environmental Impact
Statement. (Jacque Sanders)

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 3 between
Gila County and the Pine-Strawberry Horseman's
Association to extend the term of the Agreement for an
additional five years, from May 24, 2019, through May 23,
2024.

 

B.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services
Contract No. 040819 between the Superior Court in Gila
County and Diana G. Montgomery, PLLC to increase the
contract by $33,200 for an amended contract amount not
to exceed $79,000 for the remainder of the contract term,
July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.

 



C.   Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services
Contract No. 090817 between the Superior Court in Gila
County and the Law Offices of Stephen Jones to increase
the contract by $36,000 for an amended contract amount
not to exceed $94,000 for the remainder of the contract
term, July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.

 

D.   Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services
Agreement No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises to extend
the term of the contract for one additional year (January 8,
2020, to January 7, 2021) in a not to exceed amount of
$120,000 for the continued provision of jail medical
services for the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

 

E.   Approval of the Application for an Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit submitted by Albert Keehn to
temporarily extend the premises where liquor is permitted
to be served at the Sportsman's Chalet located in
Strawberry.

 

F.   Approval of the February 4, 2020, February 18, 2020, and
February 25, 2020, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the January 2020 monthly activity
report submitted by Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

H.   Acknowledgment of January 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Recorder's Office.

 

I.   Acknowledgment of January 2020 monthly activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

 

J.   Acknowledgment of the January 2020 monthly activity
report submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

K.   Acknowledgment of the January 2020 monthly activity



K.   Acknowledgment of the January 2020 monthly activity
report submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the
Peace's Office.

 

L.   Acknowledgment of the January 2020 monthly activity
report submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the
Peace's Office.

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for
public benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors
may respond to criticism made by those who have
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or
may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on information
presented.

 

 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive
session under A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) for
discussion or consultation with the attorneys for the Gila
County Board of Supervisors in order to consider its
position and instruct its attorneys regarding its position in
pending litigation, or in settlement discussions to be
conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation, in the
matter of CENTURYLINK CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation, Plaintiff, vs. ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF



REVENUE, an agency of the State of Arizona; and the
COUNTIES of Apache, Cochise, Coconino, Gila, Graham,
Greenlee, La Paz, Maricopa, Mohave, Navajo, Pima, Pinal,
Santa Cruz, Yavapai, and Yuma, each of which is a political
subdivision of the State of Arizona, Defendants regarding
Arizona Tax Court No. TX2019-001726. (Jefferson Dalton)

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-5908     Presentation     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: James Menlove, County Manager 
Submitted By: Sherry Grice, Management Associate
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation on the QuadState Local Governments Authority (QSLGA) and
its activities.

Background Information
The QSLGA is a Joint Exercise of Powers Authority established between
eight counties, and one city in four Western states. The QSLGA's Board of
Directors is comprised of elected officials representing each of the
members. The QSLGA was organized to provide a multi-county voice on
federal natural resource management and public lands issues primarily in
the Mojave Desert region. The QSLGA advances its policy priorities
through legislative and regulatory advocacy and analysis, input regarding
land use plans and decisions, and legal action.

The QSLGA is interested in resource management and balanced multiple
use of public lands and public land resources. The QSLGA also
represents the appropriate integrated consideration of private land values
by the federal and state agencies. The QSLGA seeks implementation of
rational resource management strategies that provide for balancing the
needs of natural resources with the interests and needs of residents and
constituents. It also recognizes and advocates the interests of local
government as a partner in providing services and infrastructure to the
region. It fully supports science-based resource management and
conservation. The QSLGA supports constructive dialogue among the
federal and state land and wildlife management agencies to ensure
sensitivity to regulatory impacts upon local government.

The Sonoran Desert Tortoise is a distinct species from the Mohave Desert
Tortoise which is listed as an endangered species. The Mohave Tortoise’s
range is west and north of the Colorado River primarily in California,
Nevada and the northwest corner of Arizona. The Sonoran Tortoise’s range
is east and south of the Colorado River in Arizona and Mexico including
portions of eleven Arizona Counties.



portions of eleven Arizona Counties.

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFW) was petitioned in 2008 to list
the Sonoran Desert Tortoise and from 2010 to 2014 considered listing the
species as warranted. In October 2015 after careful consideration of the
best scientific data, the USFW issued a decision that the species was not
warranted for listing under the Endangered Species Act. The QSLGA,
representing La Paz and Mohave Counties, was very involved in working
with USFW and other entities to ensure that accurate data was used in
making this decision.

In September 2019, the WildEarth Guardians and the Western
Watersheds Project filed a civil lawsuit challenging the 2015 decision.
Additional Arizona counties as members of the QSLGA would enhance our
effectiveness as this lawsuit progresses and on other issues such as the
proposed listing of the Joshua Tree as an endangered species. Member
counties also receive the benefit of representation and information
garnered from the QSLGA's involvement with a broad spectrum of
organizations related to planning and conservation on Federal lands
including Multispecies Conservation Plans, Landscape Conservation
Cooperatives, the Arizona Interagency Desert Tortoise Team, Desert
Tortoise Management Oversight Group and from advocacy for counties
related to PILT(Payment in Lieu of Taxes), SRS (Secure Rural Schools),
R.S. 2477 roads and other related matters.

Evaluation
Gerald Hillier, Executive Director of the QSLGA, has requested to make a
presentation to the Board of Supervisors on the following:

1) The desert tortoise, where litigation has recently been filed by
environmental groups seeking court ordered listing under the Endangered
Species Act, where U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service last found listing was
"not warranted.

2) Proposed legislation regarding county road rights-of-ways on federal
land.  The QSLGA has been seeking legislation, supported by NACo, for
four years to provide an administrative means of confirming these historic
rights-of-ways.

3) Invitation for Gila County to join as a member of the QSLGA.

Conclusion
It would be beneficial for the Board of Supervisors to receive this



It would be beneficial for the Board of Supervisors to receive this
information from the QSLGA.

Recommendation
It is recommended that Mr. Hillier provide the information as stated above.

Suggested Motion
Presentation on the QuadState Local Governments Authority and its
activities regarding the Sonoran Desert Tortoise and its potential listing as
an endangered species by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service; and
proposed legislation regarding county road rights-of-ways on federal land. 
(Gerald Hillier)

Attachments
Tortoise Presentation
2nd Portion Tortoise Presentation
Historic Rites RS2477
Updated Q&A RS 2477
S. 468 Hearing
Quadstate Information



QuadState Local Governments Authority 

An Interstate Joint Powers Authority Established in 1999 

 

Sonoran Distinct Population Segment of desert tortoise (Gopherus morafkai)  
 

Issues and Concerns 
Updated: February 22, 2013 

Updated and Revised: February 6, 2020 
 
Regulatory action by US Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS): Petitioned for listing under the 
Endangered Species Act in October 2008 by Western Watersheds Project and WildEarth 
Guardians.  
 

• 90-day finding: met minimum standard for full status review, Aug. 28, 2009 (FR Vol. 74, 
No. 166, pp 44335 – pp 44344) 

• 12-month finding: listing warranted but precluded, Dec. 14, 2010 (FR Vol. 75, No. 239, 
pp 78094 – 78146). 

• Based upon Species Status Assessment (SSA) prepared during 2013 and 2014, the 
FWS reaffirmed its warranted finding, Dec. 5, 2014 (79 F.R. pp 72,466). 

• May 27, 2015, FWS published a Candidate Conservation Agreement (CCA) with 
cooperating federal and state agencies. 

• October 6, 2015, FWS reversed previous findings and issued a not warranted 
determination based on the current Species Status Assessment and the CCA.  (80 F.R. 
pp 60,333.)  

 
Court action:  Federal District Court in the District of Columbia, September 9, 2011, settlement 
between Center for Biological Diversity and WildEarth Guardians and the Secretary of the 
Interior: 
 

• In agreeing to act on listing decisions on 757 species in the US, FWS agreed to reach a 
Final Decision on Sonoran desert tortoise by the end of FY 2016 (September 30, 2016). 

• WildEarth Guardians and Western Watersheds Project filed suit in the Federal District 
Court of Arizona September 5, 2019, for Violation of the Endangered Species Act, 
seeking further review and consideration for listing. 

 
Issues:   

• Is listing of the Sonoran tortoise warranted or not?  The most recent SSA and CCA, 
together with population data from the AGF plots support the FWS determination not to 
list.   

• The current litigation alleges the FWS did not adequately consider the five (5 listing 
factors required by regulations.   The suit makes a specific point of inadequate 
consideration of climate change in the decision-making. 

• Are the level of existing regulatory mechanisms contained in agency land use plans 
adequate for protection and enforcement?  The agencies are committed to consider 
tortoise in management, but the United States has no control over land management in 
Mexico. 

• Did the FWS use the best available science that the population remains viable and is not 
threatened or endangered? The plaintiffs allege the Service’s population viability models 
are faulty.   

• Did the FWS adequately consider the climate change models which predict a increased 
drought in the Southwest?   



Issues and Concerns; Request for Action 
Sonoran DPS of the desert tortoise 
QuadState Local Governments Authority 
February 6, 2020 
 

 

Page 2 
 

• The Arizona Game and Fish Department has data on study plots that have been 
inventoried over the past 25 years or more.  Its data indicates relative stable populations 
with a single exception. 

• Did FWS adequately assess the foreseeable future in making its assessments and 
determinations not to list the species?  While ESA is silent on the quantifying the future, 
in the 2015 SSA the Service used 200 years, but in the not warranted decision used 3 
generations, or 75 years.   

• Did the FWS adequately determine and quantify the size of the range of the species 
within the meaning of “significant?”  Specifically, did the FWS adequately evaluate 
whether the threats and effects of invasive species such as buffelgrass, and climate 
change, would affect an area that might be a significant portion of the tortoise’s range? 

• The plaintiffs allege that the management commitments made by agencies in the CCA 
are only voluntary and not binding.   

• The plaintiffs allege the FWS has ignored the isolated population of desert tortoises in 
the Black Mountains, north of Kingman, which subsequent DNA work has concluded are 
Mojave tortoises, and should be considered as separate population for listing 
consideration, and desert special management. 

 
Practical actions for management of the habitat and tortoises in terms of agency or 
Congressional oversight or actions, which do not require listing under the ESA: 
 

1.  Secure the border.  Immigration trails in the desert are profoundly affecting habitat and 
contributing directly to the trash and habitat damage concerns, plus it increases invasive 
species and wildfire likelihood. 

2. Assure that FWS revisit and revise its decision by grounding it in quantitative data, 
addressing the specific data on hand relative to existing data on population trends. 

3. Assure the land management agencies carry out their management and conservation 
commitments made under the Candidate Conservation Agreement.   

4. Direct agencies to take action on invasive weeds as an integral part of fire management 
and fire pre-suppression activity.  Initiate and maintain eradication programs aimed at 
reduction of invasive species.   

5. Direct agencies to continue and expand monitoring activity so as to better quantify 
populations and effects of both land use and management. 

6. Address the depth to which concerns about climate change are affecting federal land 
use and land management decisions, and seek quantitative information whether any 
land management in the desert [that restricts or eliminates land use] can really have an 
effect on, or ameliorate the effects of climate change.  To date, from the AGF plots, there 
is no evidence of climate affecting resident populations. 

 
 
Background and discussion 
 
History and Scope: The Beaver Dam Slope Population (Utah and Arizona Strip) was listed as 
threatened Aug. 20, 1980. 
 
The Mojave Distinct Population Segment (adding CA and NV to the BDS Population, was listed 
as threatened April 2, 1990. 
 



Issues and Concerns; Request for Action 
Sonoran DPS of the desert tortoise 
QuadState Local Governments Authority 
February 6, 2020 
 

 

Page 3 
 

The Sonoran Population (Arizona only, east and south of the Colorado River) was addressed 
but not listed in decisions June 27, 1991, and Dec. 5, 1996. 
 
The range of the Sonoran DPS is estimated at 26.8 million acres, and occurrence has been 
identified in 11 of Arizona’s 15 counties. 
 
Listing decision:  Arizona Game and Fish Department (AGF) has 17 permanent plots scattered 
non-randomly in areas “most likely to have tortoises.”  They are located in only five (5) of the 11 
counties in which desert tortoises have been found.  They have been read at regular intervals 
over the past 32 years, beginning in 1988.  In 2010 the petitioners for listing relied on a privately 
contracted analysis of the 17 plots to justify their petition.  They made a representation of an 
overall average decline in numbers, but the representation was skewed by a massive decline, 
likely due to drought, on one plot in the Maricopa Mountains that occurred in 1991.  (The “likely” 
was expressed by an employee of the AGF.) 
 
FWS took public input and analysis through 2010.  Mohave and La Paz Counties, and 
QuadState LGA submitted comments and analysis.  We understand many others also submitted 
data and opinions.  Our continuing analysis of the AGF plot data showed that for the most part 
the populations were stable, showed little impacts of land uses such as livestock grazing, and 
no effects of urbanization or other threats noted in the petition and subsequent decision of the 
FWS.    
 
FWS issued its most recent decision October 6, 2015, in the Federal Register notice noted 
above, finding the Sonoran DPS was adequately protected and conserved under the 
conservation agreements with the federal land management agencies who were signatories to 
the CCA.  Among the required factors for analysis, the 2015 decision addressed: 
 

A. Altered plant communities: While some is occurring, the threat to the population is not 
documented, and has not been reflected in data.  Much of the altered habitat from 
invasive species remains usable by tortoises.   

B. Altered fire regime:  The presence of invasives, and cultivated buffelgrass, has altered 
the vegetative composition, but not to enough of an extent to cause un-do concern.  
Most of the effect of buffelgrass fires is in Mexico. 

C. Habitat Conversion: While conversion of habitat to urban growth has occurred at a rapid 
pace in several areas of Arizona, it has occurred on private land, and has not spread to 
federal public land, which represents the majority of desert tortoise habitat.  The area 
devoted to agriculture in the state has been in decline.   

D. Habitat Fragmentation:  This is continuing issue but FWS deemed it of minor 
importance, since most corridors for both utilities and transportation were already in 
existence.  Many fragmenting actions, such as pipeline and powerlines don’t create 
barriers to crossing.   

E. Human-Tortoise Interaction:  While there are issues on the wildland-urban interface, 
FWS believes there is no effect at the population level.   

F. Climate change and Drought:  The FWS noted unequivocal evidence of climate change, 
specifically warming, but certainty and adaptability are unknown.  FWS found the 
species had wide amplitude to survive varying conditions, and that only prolonged 
drought would have permanent effect on populations.   

 
 



Issues and Concerns; Request for Action 
Sonoran DPS of the desert tortoise 
QuadState Local Governments Authority 
February 6, 2020 
 

 

Page 4 
 

 Position of QuadState Local Governments Authority and the counties: 
 

• The decision to date, not warranted, is supported by the Authority and its member 
counties.  The data we have reviewed continues to support a belief that the population is 
stable throughout Arizona.   
 

• We take issue on many of the listing factors and lack of quantification: 
 

✓ Land has been lost to urbanization, but millions of acres are still open and the 
federal lands are likely to remain so.  Areas in the Bureau of Land Management’s 
(BLM) National Landscape Conservation System (NLCS) and the National Park 
Service (NPS) have increased.  Urbanization is occurring on private land, not the 
federal estate. 
 

✓ Invasive weeds are a problem, not only as a cause of habitat loss, but also as a 
threat to ecosystem health and fuels management.  This is a factor that must 
be addressed, but is not sufficient to justify listing the species as 
threatened or endanged under the ESA.   

 
✓ Without getting in an argument regarding whether climate change is real or not, 

there are no land management strategies to deal with it, nor suggestions as to 
whether any would be effective.  The plots upon which population data is based 
show no effects of climate change over the past 30 years of their existence. 

 
✓ Monitoring basically shows a stable population where the plots exist.  AGF was 

not able to conduct monitoring in 2009, 2010 and 2012 because of lack of 
funding.  Continuation of monitoring is essential. 

   
✓ Several references in the FWS’s candidate species decision are made to the 

impact of illegal immigration to habitat in the United States as well as to the 
absence of habitat management in Mexico.  Securing the border is essential 
for many reasons, and habitat protection is one more justification.  Land 
and habitat management in Mexico is beyond the control of any agency or 
institution in the US, and should not be considered a factor as to listing. 

 
✓ Collection and other factors such as road kill are a continuing issue, but there are 

adequate regulations to address them, and listing will not affect them.  Agencies 
should simply continue what they are doing to the limits of their budgets.  There 
does not appear to be enough threatening activity occurring to justify listing. 

 
✓ Predation, particularly by ravens, is an issue with both the Mojave and Sonoran 

Populations.  FWS must take action on this factor and deal with the 
regulatory problems associated with take of ravens under the Migratory 
Bird Treaty Act. 
 

✓ Renewable energy, particularly industrial-scale solar, is a major issue affecting 
thousands of acres.  Even with attempts to avoid tortoise habitat, open space 
and wildland values are adversely affected. There must be a considered and 
objective discussion as to whether the land degradation costs of renewable 



Issues and Concerns; Request for Action 
Sonoran DPS of the desert tortoise 
QuadState Local Governments Authority 
February 6, 2020 
 

 

Page 5 
 

energy are offset by any benefits to climate and change from fossil fuel 
energy production. 

 

• Counties and the Authority have been admitted to the Arizona Interagency Desert 
Tortoise Team (AIDTT).  This permits the counties and its organization to maintain 
contact with the agencies and habitat management issues.   
   

Footnote:  In early 2012 Berry et al published a paper proposing that desert tortoise of the 
Southwestern United States be divided into two species.  The scientific name Gopherus 
agasizzi would be retained for tortoises that have historically been the Mojave Distinct 
Population Segment residing west of the Colorado River in California and north of the River in 
Nevada, Arizona and Utah.  Limited to Arizona only, the Sonoran Distinct Population Segment 
will now be called G. morafkai, or Morafka’s desert tortoise.  The distinction was made by a 
USGS employee, and appears to now be generally adopted.    

 

Buster Johnson, Chairman  
 Supervisor, District 3, Mohave County Arizona 
Gerald Hillier, Executive Director 
 P.O. Box 55820, Riverside, CA 92517 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Matthew K. Bishop, applicant for pro hac vice 
Montana Bar No. 9968 
Western Environmental Law Center 
103 Reeder’s Alley 
Helena, Montana 59601 
Tel: 406-324-8011 
bishop@westernlaw.org 
 
Kelly E. Nokes, applicant for pro hac vice 
Montana Bar No. 39465862 
Western Environmental Law Center 
208 Paseo del Pueblo Sur, No. 602 
Taos, New Mexico 87571 
Tel: 575-613-8051 
nokes@westernlaw.org  
 
 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARIZONA 

 
WildEarth Guardians, a non-profit 
organization; Western Watersheds 
Project, a non-profit organization,  
       
    Plaintiffs, 
 vs.     
        
David Bernhardt, as Secretary of the 
Department of the Interior; the United 
States Department of the Interior, a 
federal department; Maragret Everson, 
as exercising the authority of the 
Director of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service; and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service, a federal agency, 
 
    Federal-Defendants. 

 

  
 No. 
 
  
 COMPLAINT  
   

  
 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 1 of 38

mailto:bishop@westernlaw.org
mailto:nokes@westernlaw.org


 

2 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

INTRODUCTION 

1. WildEarth Guardians and the Western Watersheds Project 

(collectively “Plaintiffs”), bring this civil action against the above named 

Federal-Defendants (the “U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service” or “the Service”) 

under the citizen suit provision of the Endangered Species Act (“ESA”), 16 

U.S.C. § 1540(g), and the Administrative Procedure Act (“APA”), 5 U.S.C. § 

706, for violations of the ESA.   

2. This case challenges the Service’s October, 2015 decision that the 

Sonoran desert tortoise is “not warranted” for listing under the ESA. The 

Service made this finding after previously determining in 2010, 2011, 2012, 

2013, and 2014 that the species was “warranted” and qualified for listing 

under the ESA. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. This Court has jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 

16 U.S.C. § 1540(c).  

4. This Court has the authority to review the Service’s action(s) 

complained of herein and grant the relief requested, under the ESA’s citizen 

suit provision, 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), and the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706.  

5. All requirements for judicial review required by the ESA are 

satisfied. Plaintiffs e-mailed and mailed a sixty-day notice of intent to sue 

letter to the Service on April 15, 2019. This letter notified the Service of 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 2 of 38



 

3 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Plaintiffs’ intent to file a civil action to rectify the legal violations described in 

the letter. More than sixty days have elapsed since the Service received 

Plaintiffs’ notice of intent to sue letter for violating the ESA.  

6. The relief sought is authorized by 28 U.S.C. § 2201, 28 U.S.C. § 2202, 

16 U.S.C. § 1540, and 5 U.S.C. § 706.  

7. Venue is proper in this Court under 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g)(3)(A) and 28 

U.S.C. § 1391(e).  

8. Plaintiffs satisfy the minimum requirements for Article III standing. 

Plaintiffs – including their members, supporters, and staff – have suffered 

and continue to suffer injuries to their interests in conserving Sonoran desert 

tortoises from the Service’s decision not to protect the species under the ESA. 

This Court can redress these injuries. There is a present and actual 

controversy between the Parties. 

PARTIES 

9. Plaintiff, WILDEARTH GUARDIANS, is a non-profit conservation 

organization dedicated to protecting and restoring the wildlife, wild places, 

wild rivers, and the health of the American West. WildEarth Guardians is 

specifically committed to ensuring the survival and recovery of native species, 

including the Sonoran desert tortoise in the United States and Mexico. 

WildEarth Guardians has approximately 238,000 active members and 

supporters across the American West, including many who reside in Arizona. 

Many of WildEarth Guardians’ members and supporters also reside and 

routinely recreate in areas occupied by the Sonoran desert tortoise in Arizona 

and Mexico. WildEarth Guardians has a long history of working to protect 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 3 of 38



 

4 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

and restore native species, including the Sonoran desert tortoise. WildEarth 

Guardians brings this action on behalf of itself, its members, and its 

supporters. 

10. Plaintiff, the WESTERN WATERSHEDS PROJECT (“WWP”), is a 

non-profit membership organization with offices throughout the American 

West, including in Arizona. WWP has over 9,500 members and supporters 

including many who reside and routinely recreate in Arizona and areas 

occupied by Sonoran desert tortoises. WWP, its staff, members, and 

supporters are dedicated to protecting and conserving the public lands, 

wildlife and natural resources of watersheds in the American West. WWP, its 

staff, members, and supporters are dedicated to ensuring the long-term 

survival and recovery of Sonoran desert tortoises. WWP brings this action on 

behalf of itself, its members, and its supporters. 

11. WildEarth Guardians’ and WWP’s (collectively “Plaintiffs’”) 

members, supporters, and staff are dedicated to ensuring the long-term 

survival and recovery of the Sonoran desert tortoise and ensuring the Service 

complies with the ESA and bases all listing decisions on the best scientific 

and commercial data available (“best available science”).  

12. Plaintiffs’ members, supporters, and staff live in or near and/or 

routinely recreate in or near areas occupied by the Sonoran desert tortoise. 

Plaintiffs’ members, supporters, and staff enjoy observing – or attempting to 

observe – and studying Sonoran desert tortoises, including signs of the desert 

tortoise’s presence and observing, studying, and/or photographing Sonoran 

desert tortoises in areas where they are known to exist and travel. The 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 4 of 38



 

5 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

opportunity to view Sonoran desert tortoises or signs of tortoises in the wild 

is—by itself—of significant interest and value to Plaintiffs’ members, 

supporters, and staff and increases their use and enjoyment of the area. 

13. The Service’s October, 2015 decision not to provide endangered or 

threatened status to the Sonoran desert tortoise challenged in this lawsuit 

harms Plaintiffs’ interests in the species and its conservation. Plaintiffs’ 

members, supporters, and staff derive aesthetic, recreational, scientific, 

inspirational, educational, spiritual, and other benefits from Sonoran desert 

tortoises, recreating in areas occupied by and used by Sonoran desert 

tortoises, and in working to protect Sonoran desert tortoises from human-

caused mortality and disturbance and in working to restore and recover 

Sonoran desert tortoises in the United States and Mexico. In furtherance of 

these interests, Plaintiffs’ members, supporters, and staff have worked and 

continue to work to conserve Sonoran desert tortoises. Plaintiffs’ 2008 

petition to list the species is part of the effort.  

14. Plaintiffs’ interests have been, are being, and unless the requested 

relief is granted, will continue to be harmed by the Service’s October, 2015 

decision not to list the species under the ESA. If this Court issues the relief 

requested the harm to Plaintiffs’ interests will be alleviated and/or lessened. 

15. Defendant DAVID BERNHARDT is sued in his official capacity as 

Secretary of the United States Department of the Interior. As Secretary, Mr. 

Bernhardt is the federal official with responsibility for all Service officials’ 

inactions and/or actions challenged in this complaint. 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 5 of 38



 

6 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

16. Defendant UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

is the federal department responsible for applying and implementing the 

federal laws and regulations challenged in this complaint. 

17. Defendant MARGRET EVERSON is sued in her official capacity as 

the principal deputy director exercising the authority of the Director of the 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. In exercising the authority of the Director, 

Ms. Everson is the federal official with responsibility for all Service officials’ 

inactions and/or actions challenged in this complaint. 

18. Defendant UNITED STATES FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE is 

an agency within the United States Department of Interior that is 

responsible for applying and implementing the federal laws and regulations 

challenged in this complaint. 

BACKGROUND 

The desert tortoise 

 19. The desert tortoise (Gopherus agassizii) was originally considered a 

single species (and one of three species of the genus Gopherus found in the 

United States).  

 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 6 of 38



 

7 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 20.  The desert tortoise is a long-lived species with a relatively slow 

rate of reproduction.  

 21. The lifespan of a desert tortoise varies from 30 to over 100 years. 

On average, the oldest ages attained for desert tortoises is roughly 60 years 

but some reach 80 to 100 years in the wild.  

 22. Sexual maturity and first reproduction in female desert tortoises 

occurs between 12 to 22 years of age. Female desert tortoises may store 

sperm for up to two years, meaning that one season’s mating produces the 

following season’s clutch of eggs. Female desert tortoises may lay one clutch 

of 1-12 eggs per year, generally around the onset of the summer rainy season. 

The eggs hatch in September and October. 

 23. The desert tortoise (Gopherus agassizii) originally included two 

distinct populations, the Mojave population (occurring north and west of the 

Colorado River) and Sonoran population (occurring south and east of the 

Colorado River). The Colorado River has been an effective geographic barrier 

separating the two populations of desert tortoises for millions of years. 

 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 7 of 38



 

8 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 24. Differences between the Mojave and Sonoran populations of desert 

tortoises include size and shell shape (the Mojave desert tortoise has a wider 

shell), egg production, and habitat preferences. The Mojave population is 

found predominantly in valleys and alluvial fans. The Sonoran population is 

found predominantly in rocky hillsides and slopes.  

 25. The Sonoran desert tortoise occurs most commonly on rocky 

(predominantly granite rock) steep slopes and bajadas (lower mountain 

slopes formed by the coalescing of several alluvial fans) and in paloverde-

mixed cacti associations. Sonoran desert tortoises also use inter-mountain 

valleys as part of their home ranges and for dispersal at all age classes. 

 26. One of the most important habitat features for the Sonoran 

population of desert tortoises (unlike the Mojave population) is the presence 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 8 of 38



 

9 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

of shelter sites which often take the form of constructed burrows under rocks 

and boulders and beneath vegetation on slopes. 

 27. The Sonoran population of desert tortoises (occurring south and 

east of the Colorado River) is most closely associated with the Arizona 

Upland and Lower Colorado River subdivisions of Sonoran desert scrub and 

Mojave desert scrub vegetation types. 

 28. Sonoran desert tortoises in Arizona generally occur within 

elevations from 510 to 5,300 feet. Sonoran desert tortoises in Mexico are 

generally found at lower elevations, ranging from roughly 1,000 to 1,640 feet. 

 29. The Sonoran desert tortoise is an herbivore and has been 

documented to eat roughly 200 different plant species, including herbs, 

grasses, succulents, and woody plants. Native forbs are a critically important 

food source for Sonoran desert tortoises and provide more nitrogen and water 

than nonnative forbs. 

 30. The bladder of the Sonoran desert tortoise is unique and serves an 

important function in its survival. Sonoran desert tortoises are capable of 

drinking large amounts of water when it is available (and may even construct 

water catchments by digging earthen depressions). The bladder of the 

Sonoran desert tortoise is large and divided into two lobes which gives the 

species the ability to store water, dilute excess dietary salts and metabolic 

wastes, and reabsorb water into the bloodstream. 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 9 of 38



 

10 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 31. The Sonoran population of desert tortoises are known to make long-

distance movements between populations in adjacent mountain ranges. 

These movements may be tied to nest site selection, seasonable migration, 

departure from unfavorable habitat conditions, or males in search of females. 

Long distance movements by the Sonoran population of desert tortoises 

suggest that potential for meta-population relationships (interrelated 

population dynamics between smaller subpopulations) between local 

populations inhabiting regional areas and hillsides. 

The Service lists the Mojave desert tortoise DPS 

 32. In 1990, the Service issued a final rule designating the Mojave 

population of desert tortoises (occurring north and west of the Colorado river) 

as a threatened species under the ESA. 55 Fed. Reg. 12,178 (April 2, 1990). 

This Mojave population of desert tortoises was designated as a distinct 

population segment (“DPS”) under the ESA.  

 33. As part of the Mojave desert tortoise DPS listing, the Service also 

protected any desert tortoise from other populations, including the Sonoran 

population, as a threatened species when observed outside its known range, 

due to similarity of appearance under section 4(e) of the ESA, 16 U.S.C. § 

1533(e). The Sonoran population of desert tortoises that remained within 

their known range (south and east of the Colorado River) were not provided 

protective ESA status by the Service.  

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 10 of 38



 

11 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Plaintiffs’ petition to list a Sonoran desert tortoise DPS 
 
 34. In October, 2008, Plaintiffs submitted a formal petition to the 

Service to list the Sonoran population desert tortoise as a DPS under the 

ESA.  

 35. Plaintiffs’ 2008 petition requested the Service provide protective 

ESA status to all desert tortoises within the Sonoran population (east and 

south of the Colorado River), including desert tortoises in the Black 

Mountains north of Kingman, Arizona and desert tortoises in Mexico. 

 36. In August, 2009, the Service issued a positive 90-day finding on 

Plaintiffs’ 2008 petition. 74 Fed. Reg. 44,335 (August 28, 2009). The Service 

determined that the petition to list a Sonoran desert tortoise DPS under the 

ESA included substantial information indicating that the population meets 

the definition of a DPS and that listing “may be warranted.” 

 37. Following the positive 90-day finding, the Service initiated a status 

review of the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS to determine if listing the 

population is warranted. 

The Service’s December, 2010 finding that the Sonoran desert tortoise 
DPS is warranted for listing 
 
 38. In December, 2010, the Service issued a 12-month finding that 

listing the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS was warranted. 75 Fed. Reg. 78,094 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 11 of 38



 

12 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(December 14, 2010). The Service determined, however, that listing the 

Sonoran desert tortoise DPS was precluded by higher priority actions.  

 39. The Service added the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS to its candidate 

species list and committed itself to developing a proposed rule to list the 

Sonoran population of desert tortoises as its priorities allow.  

 40. The Service’s December, 2010 warranted finding for the Sonoran 

desert tortoise DPS was based on its review of the best available science and 

section 4(a)(1) of the ESA’s five threat factors (Factors A-E), 16 U.S.C. § 

1533(a)(1). 

 41. The Service’s 2010 warranted finding determined that the Sonoran 

desert tortoise DPS was threatened by loss of habitat and range habitat and 

range (Factor A). This included: (1) the documented invasion and cultivation 

of non-native plant species which significantly increases the risk of wildfire 

(in an ecosystem that evolved without fire); (2) loss of habitat and increased 

habitat fragmentation (making dispersal and genetic exchange more difficult) 

from human population growth and urban development; and (3) loss of 

habitat from ironwood and mesquite harvesting and livestock grazing 

(particularly in Mexico). The Service concluded that loss of the Sonoran 

desert tortoise DPS’s habitat and range “is an immediate threat of high 

magnitude . . . both now and in the foreseeable future.” 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 12 of 38



 

13 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 42. The Service’s 2010 warranted finding determined that the Sonoran 

desert tortoise DPS was threatened by overutilization (Factor B) in the form 

of illegal collection of desert tortoises in the wild. The Service relied on a 

study finding that one in 12 tortoises detected in the wild is illegally 

collected. The Service expects this incidence of collection to increase as 

human populations expand and grow in occupied habitat. 

 43. The Service’s 2010 warranted finding determined that the Sonoran 

desert tortoise DPS was, in combination with other threats, moderately 

threatened by predation, mainly from feral domestic dogs and humans 

(Factor C). In 2010, the Service found that disease does not pose a threat to 

the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS.  

 44. The Service’s 2010 warranted finding determined that the Sonoran 

desert tortoise DPS was threatened, in combination with other threats, by 

the inadequacy of existing regulatory mechanisms (Factor D). The Service 

found that while federal and state land management agencies consider desert 

tortoises in their planning documents, there are serious deficiencies in them 

with respect to the conservation of desert tortoises. The Service found a lack 

of regulatory mechanisms needed to protect the species from various threats, 

including off-highway vehicle use, predation, climate change, and invasive 

plant species. The Service also found that although the species in considered 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 13 of 38



 

14 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

“threatened” in Mexico, there are no conservation planning or enforcement 

regulations in place to protect the species in that country. 

 45. The Service’s 2010 warranted finding determined that the Sonoran 

desert tortoise DPS was, in combination with other threats, likely threatened 

by other natural or manmade factors in the foreseeable future (Factor E). The 

Service identified localized threats to local sub-populations from ingestion of 

trash and vehicle strikes. The Service recognized that while the effects (direct 

and indirect) from climate change “remain uncertain” in 2010, impacts from 

climate change in the future “will likely exacerbate the current and ongoing 

threat of habitat loss caused by other factors.”  

 46. In the 2010 warranted finding, the Service noted that many of the 

threats facing the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS “act in synergistic 

combination in their effects to the tortoise” and that such threats “are 

predicted to increase in the foreseeable future.” The Service said that 

collectively, these threats will result in the loss of a significant amount of 

habitat for the Sonoran population of desert tortoises and fragment 

remaining populations, “threatening the long-term genetic fitness of the 

tortoise and precluding their recolonization ability in the event of population 

extirpations.” 

 47. In the 2010 warranted finding, the Service projected that roughly 

98 percent of the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS’s habitat in Mexico and 47 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 14 of 38



 

15 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

percent of the species’ habitat in Arizona “will be lost or adversely modified in 

the foreseeable future.” 

 48. Based on its review of the five threat factors and best available 

science, the Service concluded that the Sonoran population of desert tortoises 

qualified as a DPS (for listing purposes) and was “in danger of extinction in 

the foreseeable future throughout all or a significant portion of its range.” 

 49. Following the Service’s 2010 warranted finding for the Sonoran 

population of desert tortoise DPS, the Service repeatedly reaffirmed this 

finding in its subsequent candidate notices of reviews. 

The Service reaffirms its finding that the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS 
is warranted for listing in 2011 
 
 50. In October, 2011, the Service published a candidate notice of review 

reaffirming its 2010 finding that the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS remained  

warranted for protective ESA status. 76 Fed. Reg. 66,370 (October 26, 2011). 

 51. The Service said in its October, 2011 candidate notice of review that 

a recently published paper on the genetics of desert tortoise (Murphy (2011)) 

indicates that the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS should be treated as a 

separate species (rather than a DPS of the same species). The Service said it 

would analyze this new information and make any necessary changes to the 

nomenclature in the next, 2012 candidate notice. 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 15 of 38



 

16 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 52. In the 2011 candidate notice, the Service said that threats to the 

Sonoran desert tortoise DPS includes “nonnative plant species invasions and 

altered fire regimes; urban and agricultural development, and human 

population growth; barriers to dispersal and genetic exchange; off-highway 

vehicles; roads and highways; historical ironwood and mesquite tree harvest 

in Mexico; improper livestock grazing (predominantly in Mexico); 

undocumented human immigration and interdiction activities; illegal 

collection; predation from feral dogs; human depredation and vandalism; 

drought; and climate change.” 76 Fed. Reg. 66,370-01. 

 53. In the 2011 candidate notice, the Service said threats to the 

Sonoran desert tortoise DPS differ geographically and are highly synergistic 

in their effects on the population. The Service said the threats to the Sonoran 

desert tortoise DPS were “currently or in the foreseeable future” of “high 

magnitude but, overall, [were] non-imminent.” 

The Service reaffirms its warranted finding in 2012 and recognizes 
the Sonoran desert tortoise as a separate species.  
 
 54. In 2012, the Service issued a candidate notice of review and once 

again determined the Sonoran desert tortoise DPS to be warranted for ESA 

listing. 77 Fed. Reg. 69,997 (November 21, 2012). 

 55. The Service reiterated the threats to the Sonoran desert tortoise 

DPS from the 2010 and 2011 warranted findings and recognized that, “in 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 16 of 38



 

17 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

their totality, these threats are high in magnitude because of the large 

amount of habitat that is likely to be affected and the irreversible nature of 

the effect of these threats in sensitive habitats that are slow to rebound.” 77 

Fed. Reg. at 69,997. The Service stated that the most significant of these 

threats are likely to occur in the foreseeable future (and thus remain non-

imminent).  

 56. In the 2012 candidate notice, the Service stated that “[r]ecent 

phylogenetic research confirmed . . . that the Sonoran desert tortoise is a 

distinct species.” 77 Fed. Reg. at 69,997. The Service relied on Murphy (2011) 

for this finding. Murphy (2011) found genetic differentiation between the 

Mojave desert tortoise and the Sonoran desert tortoise. The boundaries and 

genetic basis for the species delineation proposed by Murphy (2011) and the 

DPS designations recognized by the Service under the ESA are analogous 

with both divided along the Colorado River. Murphy (2011) also recognized 

the existence of a small population of desert tortoises in the Black Mountains 

(just north and west of Kingman, Arizona) where the two forms of tortoises 

(Mojave and Sonoran) hybridize. 

 57. In response to Murphy (2011), the Service elevated the Sonoran 

population of desert tortoises (all desert tortoises occurring south and east of 

the Colorado River, including the Black Mountain population) to a full 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 17 of 38



 

18 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

species (Gopherus morafkai). This change from DPS to full species status 

prompted the Service to move up the species’ listing priority number.   

 

 
The Service reaffirms its finding that the newly recognized species – 
the Sonoran desert tortoise – is warranted for listing in 2013 
 
 58.  In 2013, the Service issued a candidate notice of review reaffirming 

its determination that the Sonoran desert tortoise remains warranted for 

ESA listing. 78 Fed. Reg. 70,123 (November 22, 2013). 

 59. The Service said the “major threats to the Sonoran desert tortoise 

include non-native plant species invasions and altered fire regimes, urban 

and agricultural development, and factors associated with human population 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 18 of 38



 

19 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

growth which collectively and cumulatively affect core tortoise population 

areas and create barriers to dispersal and genetic exchange.” 78 Fed. Reg. at 

70,123. The Service said the threats “to the Sonoran desert tortoise differ 

geographically in type and scope, and are highly synergistic in their effects.” 

Id. The Service said “in their totality, these threats are high in magnitude 

because of the large amount of habitat that is likely to be affected and the 

irreversible nature of the effect of these threats in sensitive habitats that are 

slow to rebound.” Id. The Service said the more “significant” threats to the 

Sonoran desert tortoise are not on-going but likely to occur in the foreseeable 

future. Id.  

The Service prepares a species status assessment for the Sonoran 
desert tortoise  
 
 60. In 2013, the Service prepared and published a comprehensive 

“species assessment” for the newly recognized Sonoran desert tortoise 

(Gopherus morafkai). The species assessment incorporated all available 

scientific literature produced on the species as of March, 2013, including all 

available literature on threats facing the species. In the species assessment, 

the Service reaffirmed that the Sonoran desert tortoise was warranted for 

listing under the ESA.  

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 19 of 38



 

20 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 61. In the species assessment, the Service included a detailed 

discussion of the best available science, ESA’s five threat factors, and their 

application to the Sonoran desert tortoise. 

 62. In the species assessment, the Service identified an array of threats 

to the Sonoran desert tortoises’ habitat (Factor A). This includes: (a) the 

documented invasion and purposeful cultivation of non-native plant species 

in the tortoises’ habitat (in Arizona and Mexico) which significantly increases 

the threat of wildfire in an ecosystem that adapted without it; (b) projections 

for human population growth and urban development and the problems it 

poses in terms of loss of habitat and increased fragmentation (limiting 

genetic exchange) and increased human interaction with tortoises; and (c) 

livestock grazing in occupied Sonoran desert tortoise habitat in Mexico. The 

Service concluded that cumulatively, the loss of habitat and increased habitat 

fragmentation is “an immediate threat of high magnitude to the Sonoran 

desert tortoise, both now and in the foreseeable future.” 

 63. In the species assessment, the Service also identified other threats 

to the Sonoran desert tortoise. These other threats identified in the species 

assessment include overutilization from illegal collection and field research 

(Factor B), predation from feral dogs and humans (Factor C), the lack of 

effective regulatory mechanisms in Arizona and Mexico (Factor D), and 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 20 of 38



 

21 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

threats from other natural and manmade factors, including environmental 

contamination and climate change (Factor E). 

 64. On June 6, 2014, the species assessment for the Sonoran desert 

tortoise was signed and approved by the Regional Director for the Service. 

The Service reaffirms its finding that the Sonoran desert tortoise is 
warranted for listing in December, 2014 
 
 65. On December 5, 2014, and following its species assessment, the 

Service issued yet another candidate notice of review reaffirming its 

warranted finding and announcing the Service’s plans to start work on a 

proposed listing rule for the tortoise. 79 Fed. Reg. 72,466 (December 5, 2014). 

 66. In the December, 2014 candidate notice, the Service said that in the 

course of “preparing the proposed listing rule” for the Sonoran desert tortoise, 

it was “continuing to monitor new information about the species’ status so 

that [it could] make prompt use of [its] authority under section 4(b)(7) in the 

case of an emergency posing a significant risk to the species.” 79 Fed. Reg. at 

72,466. 

The Service’s May, 2015 candidate conservation agreement with 
Arizona 
 
 67. On May 27, 2015, the Service published a candidate conservation 

agreement with various cooperating state and federal agencies for the 

Sonoran desert tortoise.  

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 21 of 38



 

22 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 68. The May, 2015 conservation agreement discusses the threats 

(Factors A-E) discussed in the Service’s earlier findings.  

 69. The May, 2015 conservation agreement recognizes the Sonoran 

desert tortoises’s current status as a species “warranted” for listing under the 

ESA. 

 70. The “overarching goal” of the May, 2015 conservation agreement is 

to “achieve conservation that is necessary to preclude” the ESA listing of the 

Sonoran desert tortoise in Arizona, “through reduction or amelioration of 

threats in Arizona.”  

 71. The May, 2015 conservation agreement says the parties involved 

will implement action to reduce or eliminate threats to the Sonoran desert 

tortoise in Arizona.  

 72. The May, 2015 conservation agreement includes no binding 

commitments from the parties involved to take affirmative steps to conserve 

the Sonoran desert tortoise. The conservation agreement includes no 

regulatory requirements to conserve the Sonoran desert tortoise. 

The Service prepares a second species status assessment for the 
Sonoran desert tortoise 
 
 73. In September, 2015, the Service published a second species 

assessment for the Sonoran desert tortoise. The Service said it prepared a 

second species assessment to “inform the listing decision.”  

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 22 of 38



 

23 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 74. The 2015 species assessment does not evaluate and apply section 

4(a)(1) of the ESA’s five threat factors (Factors A-E), 16 U.S.C. § 1533(a)(1). 

 75. The 2015 species assessment includes a new population viability 

analysis and habitat model to estimate total population numbers, densities, 

and trends. 

 76. The 2015 species assessment excludes the Black Mountains region 

of Arizona (north and west of Kingman, Arizona) and the area south of the 

Rio Sonora in Mexico from the Sonoran desert tortoises’ range. 

 77. The 2015 species assessment assumes a single population of 

Sonoran desert tortoises exists in Arizona. The 2015 species assessment 

assumes a single population of Sonoran desert tortoises exists in Mexico. 

 78. The 2015 species assessment uses a “predicted potential habitat” 

model to measure Sonoran desert tortoise representation (the breadth of the 

genetic makeup of the species) and redundancy (the number of populations). 

The 2015 species assessment does not discuss, reference, or utilize any data 

or evidence on actual Sonoran desert tortoise numbers or density in specific 

areas or any studies on numbers and density. The Service’s estimate of 

representation and redundancy of Sonoran desert tortoises in Arizona and 

Mexico are based solely on habitat and the habitat model. 

 79. The 2015 species assessment’s viability findings were premised on a 

habitat model. The Service used three criteria for the habitat model: 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 23 of 38



 

24 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

elevation, vegetation type, and slope. The Service described this habitat 

model as “a very coarse habitat model” that does not include many other 

physical factors that are important for defining habitat for Sonoran desert 

tortoises (e.g., shelter sites).  

 80. The 2015 species assessment’s habitat model estimated that 

roughly 38,000 square miles of potential habitat for the Sonoran desert 

tortoise exists in Arizona and Mexico. According to the model, 64 percent of 

this potential habitat exists in Arizona and 36 percent in Mexico.  

 81. In the 2015 species assessment, the Service classified all potential 

Sonoran desert tortoise habitat as either of “high” potential habitat value, 

“medium” potential habitat value, or “low” potential habitat value across the 

species’ range. The Service used three parameters to classify potential 

habitat value: elevation, slope, and vegetation type.  

 82. The 2015 species assessment assumed that “high” potential habitat 

(as defined by the model and its three parameters) includes roughly 43.3 

adult Sonoran desert tortoises per square mile. The 2015 species assessment 

assumed that “medium” potential habitat includes roughly 24.3 adult 

Sonoran desert tortoises per square mile. The 2015 species assessment 

assumed that “low” potential habitat for the Sonoran desert tortoise includes 

roughly 5.2 adult Sonoran desert tortoises per square mile. The Service used 

the same density estimates for Arizona and Mexico. Occurrence records for 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 24 of 38



 

25 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Sonoran desert tortoises reveals that vast majority of tortoises only occur in 

potential habitat deemed of “high” quality.  

 83. Based on the assumptions in the habitat model, the 2015 species 

assessment estimated the adult population of Sonoran desert tortoises in 

Arizona and Mexico to be in the range of 470,000 to 970,000. The Service 

rounded its abundance estimates of tortoises to the nearest 10,000.  

 84. The 2015 species assessment includes no information or data on 

Sonoran desert tortoise recruitment or juvenile survival. 

 85. The 2015 species assessment reviewed “a number of potential 

factors” that could affect the Sonoran desert tortoise population. The 2015 

species assessment determined that none of these factors would have a 

population-level impact on the species, given its “relatively large current 

estimated population size.”   

 86. The 2015 species assessment estimated the probability of quasi-

extinction for the Arizona and Mexico populations of Sonoran desert tortoises 

over a 200 year period. The risk of quasi-extinction for the Sonoran desert 

tortoise ranges from 11 to 32 percent over a 200 year period. 

The Service’s 2015 not warranted finding 

 87. On October 6, 2015, the Service reversed its previous findings and 

issued a “not warranted” determination on Plaintiffs’ petition to list the 

Sonoran desert tortoise. 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 25 of 38



 

26 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 88. The Service’s October, 2015 not warranted finding is based on the 

2015 species assessment.  

 89. The Service’s October, 2015 not warranted finding is based on the 

habitat model and population simulation model included in the 2015 species 

assessment. 

 90. The Service’s October, 2015 not warranted finding includes a 

discussion of six stressors: (1) altered plant communities; (2) altered fire 

regimes; (3) habitat conversion of native vegetation to developed landscapes; 

(4) habitat fragmentation; (5) human-tortoise interactions; and (6) climate 

change and drought. The Service determined that none of these stressors is 

likely to have “population-level” effects on the species. The Service said some 

of the stressors might have “population-level effects” but because of the 

Sonoran desert tortoises’ long lifespan, relatively high abundance, and wide 

range . . . these effects would likely take many decades or longer to have 

measurable impacts on the species if they occur.” The Service concluded that 

many of the stressors facing the Sonoran desert tortoise are ameliorated by 

the 2015 conservation agreement and ongoing conservation efforts 

undertaken by state and federal agencies. 

 91. The Service concluded that the Sonoran desert tortoise does not 

qualify as either a threatened or endangered species under the ESA. The 

Service inexplicablyused a timeframe of 50 to 75 years as the “foreseeable 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 26 of 38



 

27 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

future” for its finding. A timeframe of 50-75 years is 2-3 generations of 

Sonoran desert tortoises. The Service concluded that “the Sonoran desert 

tortoise is not likely to be in danger of extinction in the foreseeable future 

(50-75 years) and, therefore does not meet the definition of a threatened 

species throughout its range.” 80 Fed. Reg. at 60,333.  

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Violation of the ESA – five threat factors) 

 
92. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate all preceding paragraphs. 

93. Pursuant to section 4(a)(1) of the ESA, the Service is required to 

determine whether a species is threatened or endangered because of any of 

the following factors: (A) the present or threatened destruction, modification, 

or curtailment of the species’ range; (B) overutilization for commercial, 

recreational, scientific, or educational purposes; (C) disease or predation; (D) 

the inadequacy of existing regulatory mechanisms; and (E) other man-made 

factors affecting the species’ continued existence. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(a)(1); 50 

C.F.R. § 424.11(c). These factors are listed in the disjunctive so any one or 

combination of them can be sufficient for a finding that a species qualifies as 

threatened or endangered. 

94. In making its “not warranted” finding and deciding not to list the 

Sonoran desert tortoise, the Service failed to carefully consider and 

adequately apply Section 4(a)(1)’s listing factors in accordance with the ESA 

and the implementing regulations.   

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 27 of 38



 

28 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

95. The Service failed to consider and analyze how climate change is 

already impacting and will continue to directly, indirectly, and cumulatively 

impact the Sonoran desert tortoise and its habitat now and into the 

foreseeable future.  

96. The Service erroneously discounted and did not adequately analyze 

the impacts that the ongoing invasion of non-native plants species (including 

buffelgrass, a weed that drastically increases fire risk), increased 

urbanization and population growth in habitat, energy development, 

fragmentation of sub-populations that limit genetic exchange, increased OHV 

use (and other human activities, including target shooting, collection, and 

vehicle mortalities), mesquite and ironwood tree harvest in Mexico, the 

building of a border wall between the United States and Mexico, livestock 

grazing, illegal collection, human depredation, lack of adequate protections in 

land management plans, drought and increased fires and/or other threats 

(individually and in the aggregate) may individually and collectively have on 

the Sonoran desert tortoise now and into the foreseeable future.  

97. The Service erroneously discounted and did not adequately consider 

how the lack of existing regulatory mechanisms for the Sonoran desert 

tortoise, specifically the lack of guidance in state wildlife and resource 

management plans, National Forest Plans, National Park Service 

management plans, BLM resource management plans, and the lack of rules, 

plans, and binding conservation measures in Mexico may impact the Sonoran 

desert tortoise and its habitat now and into the foreseeable future. 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 28 of 38



 

29 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

98. The Service failed to analyze and consider threats to the Sonoran 

desert tortoise that were previously identified and discussed by the Service in 

its earlier 2014 warranted finding. These include (but are not limited to): (1) 

disease and predation; (2) fragmentation of habitat and increased isolation 

and less connectivity between subpopulations; (3) inadequate regulatory 

mechanisms in both the United States and Mexico; (4) over-utilization; (5) 

livestock grazing; (6) cumulative threats; (7) OHV use; (8) renewable energy 

development; and (9) activities occurring in Mexico, including desert plant 

and tree harvest.  

99. The Service’s failure to analyze the five threat factors when 

deciding not to list the Sonoran desert tortoise violates the ESA and is 

“arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance 

with law” and/or constitutes “agency action unlawfully withheld or 

unreasonably delayed.” 5 U.S.C. §§ 706 (2)(A), 706 (1). 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Violation of ESA – best available science) 

 
100. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate all preceding paragraphs. 

101. Pursuant to section 4(b)(1)(A) of the ESA, 16 U. S.C. § 1533 

(b)(1)(A), the Service must make all listing determinations solely on the basis 

of the best available science. Under the ESA, the Service cannot infer from a 

lack of data or uncertainty that the population of Sonoran desert tortoises 

remains viable and not threatened or endangered. 

102. The Service’s not warranted finding for the Sonoran desert tortoise 

ignores and/or misinterprets and misconstrues the best available science on 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 29 of 38



 

30 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

the existing Sonoran desert tortoise population in the wild (both in numbers 

and trends) and needs of and threats facing the Sonoran desert tortoise in 

Arizona and Mexico. 

103. The Service’s not warranted finding was premised on a 2015 

species assessment that that includes a population viability analysis and 

habitat proxy model to estimate population numbers and trend (and measure 

the “redundancy and representation” of the species).  

104. The Service’s 2015 species assessment uses a viability analysis 

and habitat proxy model that does not mirror reality, excludes critical data, 

excludes information on the demography of the Sonoran desert tortoise, 

includes faulty assumptions, is based on pure speculation, and conflicts with 

the best available science.  

105. The Service’s not warranted finding for the Sonoran desert tortoise 

arbitrarily dismissed the best available science on climate change impacts. 

Climate change models predict that drought severity is likely to increase 

throughout the Sonoran desert tortoises’ range and this will likely have 

negative effects on tortoise survival. 

106. The Service’s failure to utilize the best available science when 

deciding not to list the Sonoran desert tortoise violates the ESA and is 

“arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance 

with law” and/or constitutes “agency action unlawfully withheld or 

unreasonably delayed.” 5 U.S.C. §§ 706 (2)(A), 706 (1). 

 

 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 30 of 38



 

31 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Violation of ESA – foreseeable future) 

 
107. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate all preceding paragraphs. 

108. Pursuant to the ESA, a species is “threatened” if it is “likely to 

become an endangered species within the foreseeable future throughout all or 

a significant portion of its range.” 16 U.S.C. § 1532(20).   

109. The term foreseeable future is not defined in the ESA. Prior to the 

adoption of new rules in August, 2019, the Service relied on a Solicitor’s 

Memorandum Opinion (M-Opinion) to interpret “foreseeable future.”  

110. The M-Opinion states that the Service’s “analysis of what 

constitutes the foreseeable future for a particular listing determination must 

be rooted in the best available data that allow predictions into the future, and 

the foreseeable future extends only so far as those predictions are reliable. 

‘Reliable’ does not mean ‘certain’; it means sufficient to provide a reasonable 

degree of confidence in the prediction, in light of the conservation purposes of 

the Act.” M-Opinion 37021 at 13. The Service may not dismiss a risk of 

extinction that may be reasonably forecasted into the foreseeable future by 

the best available science.  

111. In determining the Sonoran desert tortoise is not warranted for 

listing under the ESA, the Service failed to properly apply the ESA’s 

standards for “threatened” species, including failing to properly define and 

analyze whether the Sonoran desert tortoise is likely to become endangered 

in the “foreseeable future.” The 2015 species assessment used a 200-year 

timeframe but the Service arbitrarily limited its foreseeable future 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 31 of 38



 

32 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

assessment and finding for Sonoran desert tortoises to only three generations 

of tortoises (75 years).  

112. The Service’s failure to properly apply the ESA’s standards for 

“threatened” species, including “foreseeable future” when deciding not to list 

the Sonoran desert tortoise violates the ESA and is “arbitrary, capricious, an 

abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law” and/or 

constitutes “agency action unlawfully withheld or unreasonably delayed.” 5 

U.S.C. §§ 706 (2)(A), 706 (1). 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Violation of ESA – significant portion of its range) 

 
113. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate all preceding paragraphs. 

 114. Under the ESA, a species may warrant listing if it is in danger of 

extinction or likely to become so throughout all or “a significant portion of its 

range.”  

 115. The evaluation of whether a portion of the species range is 

“significant” under the ESA involves a number of variables and factors, 

including (but not limited to) the size of the area, the percentage of the 

species’ range, its biological and/or ecological importance to the species, 

unique factors and habitat conditions, its importance for maintaining 

connectivity amongst subpopulations and facilitating genetic exchange, and 

whether its loss would result in the loss of a unique or critical function of the 

species. The focus of the “significant” analysis must be on the portion itself. 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 32 of 38



 

33 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 116. In 2014, the Service published a final rule interpreting the phrase 

“significant portion of its range.” 79 Fed. Reg. 37,578 (July 1, 2014).  

 117. The Service’s 2014 policy demands a high threshold for identifying 

whether a portion of a species’ range is “significant.” Under the policy, a 

portion of a species’ range will only be deemed “significant” if its 

“contribution to the viability of the species is so important that, without the 

members in that portion, the species would be in danger of extinction, or 

likely to become so in the foreseeable future, throughout all of its range.” 79 

Fed. Reg. at 37,609. Under the policy, a portion of a species’ range will only 

be deemed “significant” if the loss of members in that portion threaten the 

entire listed entity.  

 118. In determining that the Sonoran desert tortoise is not warranted 

for listing, the Service applied the 2014 policy’s definition of “significant 

portion” and determined the Sonoran desert tortoise is not in danger of 

extinction in a “significant portion of its range.” The Service insisted, in 

accordance with its 2014 policy (which has since been vacated by at least two 

district courts), that a portion of the Sonoran desert tortoises’ range would 

only be “significant” if the loss of members in the portion threaten the entire 

species.  

 119. In determining that the Sonoran desert tortoise is not in danger of 

extinction in a “significant portion of its range” the Service only considered 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 33 of 38



 

34 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

whether there are “geographic concentrations” of potential threats from 

urban development in a portion of the species’ range and never considered 

and evaluated other “significance” variables or factors or threats (like climate 

change) which may not have geographic concentrations.  

 120. The Service’s determination that the Sonoran desert tortoise is not 

in danger of extinction in a “significant portion of its range” was made in the 

absence of any occurrence and/or population data (actual or trend) necessary 

to make a “significance” finding. 

 121. The Service’s determination that the Sonoran desert tortoise is not 

in danger of extinction in a “significant portion of its range” was made in the 

absence of any consideration of whether other, non-urban portions of the 

tortoises range may be significant.  

 122. In determining that the Sonoran desert tortoise is not warranted 

for listing, the Service never evaluated whether portions of the tortoises’ 

Arizona and/or Mexico range is a “significant portion.” The Service never 

evaluated whether certain mountain ranges and subpopulations within the 

Sonoran desert tortoises’ range qualify as “significant.” This includes but is 

not limited to areas facing more severe threats from non-native grass 

(including the invasion of buffelgrass) and climate change. 

123. The Service’s reliance on its 2014 policy and determination that 

the Sonoran desert tortoise is not in danger of extinction in a “significant 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 34 of 38



 

35 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

portion of its range” violates the ESA and is “arbitrary, capricious, an abuse 

of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law” and/or constitutes 

“agency action unlawfully withheld or unreasonably delayed.” 5 U.S.C. §§ 706 

(2)(A), 706 (1). 

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Violation of ESA – non-binding efforts) 

 
124. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate all preceding paragraphs. 

 125. Pursuant to section 4(b)(1)(A) of the ESA, 16 U. S.C. §  1533 

(b)(1)(A), and the Service’s implementing regulations, the Service must make 

listing determinations after “conducting a review of the status of the species 

and after taking into account those efforts, if any, being made by any State” 

to protect such species. The Service can rely on conservation efforts, including 

state-initiated efforts, so long as they are binding and current, not voluntary 

or future, and have a proven track record of success. Any conservation effort 

relied upon by the Service must also have been submitted for public notice 

and comment.   

 126. In determining the Sonoran desert tortoise is not warranted for 

listing under the ESA, the Service relied on non-binding efforts in the May, 

2015 candidate conservation agreement. In determining the Sonoran desert 

tortoise is not warranted for listing under the ESA, the Service relied on a 

purported “protected areas” in Mexico (where there is a lack of necessary 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 35 of 38



 

36 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

data, public lands, enforcement capacity, or any binding accountability to the 

species’ conservation).  

127. The Service’s reliance on non-binding efforts in Arizona and 

Mexico when deciding not to list the Sonoran desert tortoise violates the ESA 

and is “arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in 

accordance with law” and/or constitutes “agency action unlawfully withheld 

or unreasonably delayed.” 5 U.S.C. §§ 706 (2)(A), 706 (1). 

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Violation of ESA – Black Mountain population) 

 
128. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate all preceding paragraphs. 

129. Plaintiffs’ listing petition for the Sonoran desert tortoise included 

tortoises in the Black Mountains area of western Mohave County, Arizona.  

130. The Service’s 2010 warranted finding and subsequent warranted 

findings in the candidate notices of review – as well as the Service’s 2014 

status assessment – included tortoises in the Black Mountains in its analysis 

and findings.  

131. The best available science reveals the isolated population of desert 

tortoises in the Black Mountains is at risk of extinction, due to its relatively 

small size, isolation, and increasing development in the region. 

132. The Service’s 2015 not warranted finding does not mention or 

discuss the Black Mountains population of desert tortoises.  

133. The Service’s 2015 species assessment explains why tortoises in 

the Black Mountains were excluded from its not warranted finding (the 

Service said the tortoises in this area “have been determined to be Mojave 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 36 of 38



 

37 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

desert tortoises”) but no details, guidance, or information is provided on the 

current legal status of this population in light of this new finding.  

134. The Service’s 2015 not warranted finding did not propose to amend 

the Mojave desert tortoises’ listing status to include the Black Mountain 

population. The Service chose not to protect (nor even analyze or consider) 

the Black Mountain population when declining the list the Sonoran desert 

tortoise population. The Service never considered or addressed the impacts 

(both biological and legal) of its decision to the Black Mountain population of 

desert tortoises. 

135. The Service’s decision to exclude and not consider or address the 

biological or legal status of the Black Mountain population of desert tortoises 

violates the ESA and is “arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or 

otherwise not in accordance with law” and/or constitutes “agency action 

unlawfully withheld or unreasonably delayed.” 5 U.S.C. §§ 706 (2)(A), 706 (1). 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

 Plaintiffs respectfully request this Court:  

A. Declare the Service has violated and continues to violate the law as 

alleged above;  

B. Set aside and vacate the Service’s October, 2015 decision that the 

Sonoran desert tortoise is not warranted for ESA listing; 

C. Remand this matter back to the Service with instruction to comply 

with the ESA and APA, as alleged herein; 

D. Issue other relief that Plaintiffs may subsequently request; 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 37 of 38



 

38 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 E. Award Plaintiffs their reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses 

of litigation;  

F. Issue any other relief this Court deems necessary, just, or proper. 

 Respectfully submitted this 5th day of September, 2019. 
       

/s/ Matthew K. Bishop 
Matthew K. Bishop 
 
Counsel for Plaintiffs 
 
 
 

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 38 of 38



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF ARIZONA

This automated JS-44 conforms generally to the manual JS-44 approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974. The data is required for the use of the Clerk of
Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. The information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by
law. This form is authorized for use only in the District of Arizona.

The completed cover sheet must be printed directly to PDF and filed as an attachment to the Complaint or Notice of Removal.

Plaintiff(s): WildEarth Guardians, a non-profit organization ;
Western Watersheds Project a non-profit organization

Defendant(s):

David Bernhardt, Secretary of the U.S. Department of
the Interior ; United States Department of the Interior ;
Margaret Everson, Principal Deputy Director Exercising
the Authority of the Director of the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service ; United States Fish and Wildlife
Service

County of Residence: Pima County of Residence: Outside the State of Arizona
County Where Claim For Relief Arose: Pima

Plaintiff's Atty(s): Defendant's Atty(s):
Matthew K. Bishop
Western Environmental Law Center
103 Reeder's Alley
Helena, Montana  59601
406-324-8011

Kelly E. Nokes
Western Environmental Law Center
208 Paseo del Pueblo Sur, No. 602
Taos, New Mexico  87571
575-613-4196

II. Basis of Jurisdiction: 2. U.S. Government Defendant

III. Citizenship of Principal Parties (Diversity

Cases Only)
Plaintiff:-N/A

Defendant:-N/A

IV. Origin : 1. Original Proceeding

V. Nature of Suit: 893 Environmental Matters

VI.Cause of Action: Endangered Species Act (“ESA”), 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), and the Administrative Procedure Act
(“APA”), 5 U.S.C. § 706, for violations of the ESA. Challenge to USFWS’s October, 2015 decision that
the Sonoran desert tortoise is “not warranted” for listing under the ESA.

VII. Requested in Complaint
Class Action:No

Dollar Demand:
Jury Demand:No

VIII. This case is not related to another case.

Signature: /s/ Matthew K. Bishop

Date: 09/05/2019

If any of this information is incorrect, please go back to the Civil Cover Sheet Input form using the Back button in your browser and change it. Once correct, save this form as a
PDF and include it as an attachment to your case opening documents.

Revised: 01/2014

Case 4:19-cv-00441-CKJ   Document 1-1   Filed 09/05/19   Page 1 of 1



1 
 

H.R.3270 1 

Historic Routes Preservation Act (Introduced in House - IH) 2 

HR 3270 IH  3 

115th CONGRESS 4 
1st Session 5 

H. R. 3270 6 

To establish a procedure for resolving claims to certain rights-of-way, and for other purposes.  7 

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 8 

July 17, 2017 9 

Mr. COOK (for himself and Mr. O'HALLERAN) introduced the following bill; which was 10 
referred to the Committee on Natural Resources  11 

 12 
A BILL 13 

To establish a procedure for resolving claims to certain rights-of-way, and for other purposes.  14 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America 15 

in Congress assembled, 16 

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE; TABLE OF CONTENTS. 17 

(a) Short Title- This Act may be cited as the “Historic Routes Preservation Act”. 18 

(b) Table of Contents- The table of contents for this Act is as follows: 19 

Sec. 1. Short title; table of contents. 20 
Sec. 2. Purpose. 21 
Sec. 3. Definitions. 22 
Sec. 4. Filing of claim. 23 
Sec. 5. Evidence and final decision. 24 

Sec. 6. Judicial review. 25 
Sec. 7. Applicable law and time extensions. 26 
Sec. 8. Implementation required. 27 
Sec. 9. Effect; applicability. 28 
Sec. 10. Repeal of restrictions on regulations. 29 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

SEC. 2. PURPOSE. 30 

 

The purpose of this Act is to preserve historical access to the public lands by achieving 31 
judicial and administrative efficiency for, and to reduce the costs typically associated 32 
with, resolving right-of-way claims under R.S. 2477 by-- 33 

(1) reducing the burden on Federal courts by establishing administrative 34 
procedures and evidentiary standards for the processing of R.S. 2477 right-of-way 35 

claims; and 36 
(2) establishing-- 37 

(A) a deadline for filing R.S. 2477 right-of-way claims; 38 

(B) mandatory procedures for considering and acting on the R.S. 2477 39 
right-of-way claims; and 40 
(C) uniform legal and evidentiary standards of proof of public acceptance 41 
of R.S. 2477 right-of-way grants. 42 

SEC. 3. DEFINITIONS. 43 

In this Act: 44 

(1) ABANDON OR ABANDONMENT- The terms “abandon” and 45 
“abandonment” mean formal action by the governing body of a claimant taken at 46 

a public meeting pursuant to notice that declares all right, title, and claim to a R.S. 47 
2477 right-of-way is relinquished. 48 

(2) ACCEPTANCE OR ACCEPTED- The terms “acceptance” and “accepted” 49 
mean-- 50 

(A) a positive or affirmative action by a State or county governmental 51 

authority on or before October 21, 1976, including-- 52 
(i) a formal resolution or declaration of ownership of, or 53 

responsibility for maintaining, a highway; or 54 
(ii) the inclusion of a highway in an official map; 55 

(B) the construction, improvement, repair or maintenance of a highway by 56 

a State or county governmental authority, or private party on or before 57 

October 21, 1976; or 58 
(C) the continuous use of a highway by the public for a period of not 59 
fewer than 5 consecutive years ending on a date that is on or before 60 
October 21, 1976. 61 

(3) CLAIM- The term “claim” means the assertion of acceptance of a R.S. 2477 62 

right-of-way filed under section 4(a)(1). 63 
(4) CLAIMANT- The term “claimant” means any State, county, political 64 
subdivision or agency of a State, company, or other person asserting the public 65 
acceptance of a right-of-way under R.S. 2477. 66 
(5) CONSTRUCTION- The term “construction” means the physical activity 67 

reasonably necessary, advisable, or desirable to allow continuous public use over 68 
a highway according to the intended mode of travel or transportation, which may 69 

be established by the use of any tools or equipment, or other means, including 70 
mere usage. 71 



3 
 

(6) CONTINUOUS PUBLIC USE- The term “continuous public use” means the 72 
uninterrupted use of a highway by the public for passage as often as generally 73 

regarded by the public to be convenient or necessary depending on the character 74 
of the road and the nature of the use and does not require a determination of 75 
frequency of use. Continuous public use includes use that may be interrupted by 76 
events of nature or seasonal use. 77 
(7) DISCLAIMER AND RELINQUISHMENT- The term “disclaimer and 78 

relinquishment” means any type of deed or equivalent document in a form 79 
suitable for recordation that is approved and issued by the Secretary disclaiming 80 
and relinquishing  any ownership interest of the Federal Government in a R.S. 81 

2477 right-of-way, including a deed or equivalent document issued under section 82 
315 of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 (43 U.S.C. 1745). 83 
(8) EVIDENCE- The term “evidence” means any testimony, object, or document 84 
described in section 5 that would be reliable, authentic, probative, and persuasive 85 
in Federal district court under the Federal Rules of Evidence that are in effect on 86 

the date of the enactment of this Act. 87 

(9) HIGHWAY- The term “highway” means any road, way, or other land surface 88 
route of travel that the public has the right of use for passage, whether by carriage, 89 
animal, foot, or non-motorized or motorized vehicle. 90 

(10) IMPROVEMENT- The term “improvement” means-- 91 
(A) the widening of a highway; 92 

(B) the horizontal or vertical realignment of a highway; 93 
(C) the installation (as distinguished from cleaning, repair, or replacement 94 

in kind) of a bridge, culvert, or other drainage structure or conduit; or 95 
(D) any significant change in the surface composition of a highway. 96 

(11) MAINTENANCE- The term “maintenance” means the preservation of an 97 
existing highway, including but not limited to- 98 

(A) the physical upkeep of the highway; 99 

(B) the repair or replacement of wear or damage to the highway, including 100 
to bridges, culverts, or other drainage structures or conduits, from natural 101 

or other causes; 102 

(C) the restoration of the shape or path of the highway; and 103 
(D) the gradation of the highway or other measures to ensure that the 104 

shape of the highway permits drainage. 105 
(12) PUBLIC LAND- The term “public land” means land-- 106 

(A) that is owned, controlled by, or subject to the jurisdiction of the 107 
Federal Government for the benefit of the public; and 108 
(B) that was not reserved on the date on which a R.S. 2477 right-of-way 109 

grant was accepted. 110 
(13) PUBLIC OR PUBLIC USER- 111 

(A) IN GENERAL- The terms “public” or “public user” mean all natural 112 

persons, including Federal lessees, permittees, licensees, invitees, and any 113 
other natural person that holds an authorization or is otherwise allowed to 114 
enter or use public land. 115 



4 
 

(B) EXCEPTIONS- The terms “public” or “public user” do not include 116 
any Federal agent or employee acting within the scope of the employment 117 

of the Federal agency or employee. 118 
(14) R.S. 2477- The term “R.S. 2477” means section 2477 of the Revised Statutes 119 
(43 U.S.C. 932) repealed by section 706 of the Federal Land Policy and 120 
Management Act of 1976 (Public Law 94-579; 90 Stat. 2793). 121 
(15) R.S. 2477 RIGHT-OF-WAY- The term “R.S. 2477 right-of-way” means an 122 

open-ended grant or dedication of land by the United States for rights-of-way 123 
allowing public use and passage, which could be accepted. 124 
(16) RESERVED- 125 

(A) IN GENERAL- The term “reserved” means action by the Secretary, 126 
before the earlier of a R.S. 2477 right-of-way acceptance or October 21, 127 
1976-- 128 

(i) to withdraw land from the public domain; and 129 
(ii) to make the land unavailable for appropriation under public 130 

land laws; and 131 

(iii) to dedicate the land by the United States to a specific public 132 
purpose, such as a park, military establishment, wilderness area, 133 
tribal land, or Federal enclave, that does not rely on a R.S. 2477 134 

right-of-way for the public purpose. 135 
(B) EXCLUSION- The term “reserved” does not apply to an action of the 136 

Secretary with respect to the designation of a wilderness study area, an 137 
area of critical environmental concern, or land with wilderness 138 

characteristics. 139 
(17) SCOPE- The term “scope” means the established width of a R.S. 2477 right-140 

of-way as of October 21, 1976, including the area reasonable and necessary to 141 
meet the public convenience or safety, including maintenance and repair, or the 142 
exigencies of increased travel based on the traditional use of a highway (including 143 

permissible improvements, realignments, or relocation), and is not limited to the 144 
disturbed surface of the highway. 145 

(18) SECRETARY- The term “Secretary” means the Secretary with management 146 

jurisdiction over land owned or controlled by the United States on which a R.S. 147 
2477 right-of-way is claimed to be located. 148 

SEC. 4. FILING OF CLAIM. 149 

(a) Filing- 150 

(1) NEW ADMINISTRATIVE CLAIMS- During the 25-year period beginning 151 
on the date of the enactment of this Act, a claimant asserting the public 152 
acceptance of a right-of-way granted under R.S. 2477 may file a claim under this 153 
section. 154 

(2) ADMINISTRATIVE CLAIM AFTER FILING CLAIM UNDER TITLE 28- 155 
(A) IN GENERAL- A claimant may, at its option, file a claim under 156 
paragraph (1) if, before the date of the enactment of this Act, the claimant-157 

- 158 



5 
 

(i) filed a notice of an intent to file suit with respect to a claim 159 
asserting the public acceptance of a right-of-way granted under 160 

R.S. 2477 under section 2409a(m) of title 28, United States Code; 161 
or 162 
(ii) filed suit with respect to a claim asserting the public acceptance 163 
of a right-of-way granted under R.S. 2477 under section 2409a(m) 164 
of title 28, United States Code. 165 

(B) PENDINGCOURT ACTION- If a claimant files a claim under 166 
paragraph (1) with respect to a previously filed claim asserting the public 167 
acceptance of a right-of-way granted under R.S. 2477 under section 168 

2409a(m) of title 28, United States Code, any suit filed by or on behalf of 169 
the claimant with respect to public acceptance of the right-of-way shall be 170 
held in abeyance pending final determination under this Act and shall be 171 
dismissed without prejudice when acceptance of the right-of-way is 172 
determined under this act.. 173 

(b) Form; Contents- 174 

(1) FORM- Not later than 30 days after the date of the enactment of this Act, the 175 
Secretary shall establish a form to be used by claimants for filing claims under 176 
this section. 177 

(2) CONTENTS- A claim filed under subsection (a)(1) shall include-- 178 
(A) evidence supporting the claim; and 179 

(B) proof of notice or attempted notice by the claimant under subsection 180 
(d). 181 

(c) Place of Filing- A claimant shall file a claim in the appropriate State or regional 182 
location designated by the Secretary for the filing of claims under this section. 183 

(d) Notice- 184 
(1) IN GENERAL- Except as provided in paragraph (3), a claimant shall provide 185 
notice of the right-of-way claim by-- 186 

(A) at least once per week during the 2-week period immediately 187 
preceding the filing of the claim, publishing in a newspaper authorized to 188 

publish public notice under the laws of the State in which the longest 189 

lineal part of the claimed R.S. 2477 right-of-way is located, a general 190 
summary of the claim, including the location and general description of 191 

the claimed R.S. 2477 right-of-way; and 192 
(B) not later than 30 days after the date on which the claim is filed, 193 
providing, or reasonably attempting to provide, written notice of the claim 194 
to all owners of land contiguous to the boundary of the claimed right-of-195 
way. 196 

(2) ATTEMPTED NOTICE- The reasonable attempt of a claimant to provide 197 
written notice under paragraph (1)(B) shall be considered to be sufficient notice 198 
under this subsection if the claimant files with Secretary verification of the 199 

reasonable attempt under written oath or affirmation. 200 
(3) EXCEPTION- Notwithstanding paragraph (1), a claimant shall be considered 201 
to have given sufficient notice under this subsection if the claimant has filed a 202 
notice of an intent to file suit with respect to the claimed R.S. 2477 right-of-way 203 



6 
 

under section 2409a(m) of title 28, United States Code, on or before the date of 204 
the enactment of this Act. 205 

(e) Effect of Failure To Meet Filing Deadline or Requirements- If a claimant fails to 206 
comply with the requirements of-- 207 

(1) subsection (a), the failure shall be considered to be an automatic irrevocable 208 
abandonment of any R.S. 2477 right-of-way claim; or 209 
(2) subsection (b), (c), or (d), the claim filed by the claimant shall not be 210 

processed until the date on which the failure to comply with those subsections is 211 
cured. 212 

(f) Statute of Limitations- Except as provided in subsection (a)(1), any statute of 213 

limitations for asserting the public acceptance of the R.S. 2477 right-of-way under this 214 
section is waived. 215 

SEC. 5. EVIDENCE AND FINAL DECISION. 216 

(a) Burden of Proof- A claimant shall have the burden to prove, by a preponderance of 217 

the evidence, the acceptance of a right-of-way under R.S. 2477. 218 
(b) Presumptions- 219 

(1) IN GENERAL- Except in a case in which the land underlying the claimed 220 

R.S. 2477 right-of-way was reserved before October 21, 1976, acceptance and 221 

scope of the R.S. 2477 right-of-way shall be conclusively verified, proven, and 222 
established on filing, under oath or affirmation by a claimant attesting to the 223 
authenticity and accuracy, of-- 224 

(A) at least 2 items of evidence from among the categories of evidence 225 
described in subsection (c)(1) relating to the R.S. 2477 right-of-way; or 226 
(B) at least 3 items of evidence from among the categories of evidence 227 

described in subparagraphs (A) or (B) of subsection (c)(2), in the case of 228 
demonstrating scope and acceptance before October 21, 1976. 229 

(2) COPIES- A copy of an original document may be used as evidence in the 230 
place of the original document under this section if the copy is accompanied by a 231 
written declaration, under oath by a custodian, owner, or author, that the copy is 232 

an accurate representation of the material terms of the original document. 233 

(3) HEARSAY- Hearsay contained in a document or otherwise provided shall be 234 
considered reliable, admissible, and probative for the purposes of this Act. 235 
(4) GRANT WITHDRAWAL- Evidence produced by the United States that 236 
establishes that the United States reserved the land underlying the R.S. 2477 right-237 
of-way before acceptance conclusively establishes withdrawal of the Federal 238 

grant for the R.S. 2477 right-of-way. 239 
(c) Description of Categories of Evidence- For the purposes of actions under this Act, the 240 
following categories of evidence shall be considered: 241 

(1) CATEGORY 1- Category 1 evidence consists of each of the following types 242 

of evidence: 243 
(A) A center line or other survey conducted by the Federal Government or 244 
duly licensed land surveyor, applying generally accepted survey standards 245 

and procedures or the Bureau of Land Management Manual of Surveying 246 
Instructions applicable to surveys before October 21, 1976, clearly 247 



7 
 

showing the, location, direction, beginning and end points and length,of 248 
the R.S. 2477 right-of-way as of date certain. 249 

(B) Maps, plats, maintenance records (including actual or estimated costs 250 
of maintenance), photographs, GIS or global positioning data, or other 251 
computer-generated images showing the location of the R.S. 2477 right-252 
of-way prepared, made, edited, kept, or relied on, generally or on a case-253 
by-case basis, by the Federal Government, a State or local government, an 254 

institution of higher education, college, or a public or private organization 255 
historically, customarily or regularly engaged in the preparation, retention, 256 
analysis, or expert interpretation of contemporary or historic maps. 257 

(C) Historical or other records of government entities or records 258 
constructed, obtained, or kept by a government in the ordinary course of 259 
business, including Federal, State, local, and territorial records, such as 260 
records of the Departments of the Interior, Agriculture, or Defense, the 261 
Bureau of Land Management, the Forest Service, the Natural Resources 262 

Conservation Service, the Soil Conservation Service, General Land 263 

Office, Federal centers or enclaves, the Smithsonian Institution, and the 264 
Library of Congress that show that the right-of-way was accepted prior to 265 
October 21, 1976. 266 

(D) Written or transcribed oral statements given under oath before a 267 
notary public, court reporter, judge or any other government official 268 

authorized by law to administer oaths or otherwise authenticated stating 269 
that the right-of-way was regularly maintained by a State or local 270 

government or private individual prior to October 21, 1976. 271 
(2) CATEGORY 2- Category 2 evidence consists of each of the following types 272 

of evidence: 273 
(A) In addition to the records described in paragraph (1)(C), other 274 
historical records including original documents, authenticated copies, 275 

facsimiles, and computer-transmitted images (including aerial 276 
photographs, topographical maps, and government road maps), reliably 277 

showing evidence of public usage of a R.S. 2477 right-of-way before 278 

October 21, 1976. 279 
(B) Written or transcribed oral statements given under oath before a notary 280 

public, court recorder, judge or any other government official authorized 281 
by law to administer oaths or otherwise authenticated reciting reliable 282 
knowledge of the facts that establish the acceptance by public usage of the 283 
R.S. 2477 right-of-way before October 21, 1976. 284 

(d) Scope- The scope of a R.S. 2477 right-of-way shall be the scope of the R.S. 2477 285 

            right-of-way as of the date of the enactment of this Act. 286 
(e) Determination of Abandonment- 287 

(1) IN GENERAL- Not later than 90 days after the date on which a R.S. 2477 288 

right-of-way is conclusively established as accepted under subsection (b)(1), the 289 
Secretary shall determine, in writing, whether the R.S. 2477 right-of-way has 290 
been previously abandoned by the claimant. 291 



8 
 

(2) FAILURE TO MAKE DETERMINATION- The failure of the Secretary to 292 
make a written determination within the 90-day period described in paragraph (1) 293 

shall conclusively establish that the right-of-way has not been abandoned. 294 
(3) FINAL AGENCY ACTION- The determination by the Secretary under 295 
paragraph (1), or the failure to make the determination by the date described in 296 
that paragraph, shall be a final agency action, subject to appeal by the claimant 297 
only in accordance with section 6. 298 

(f) Disclaimer and Relinquishment Required- 299 
(1) IN GENERAL- Subject to subsection (e), not later than 120 days after the date 300 
on which evidence establishing acceptance of a R.S. 2477 right-of-way has been 301 

filed under this section, the Secretary shall deliver to the claimant a written 302 
document disclaiming and relinquishing the right and interest of the United States 303 
in and to the R.S. 2477 right-of-way. 304 
(2) FORM- The disclaimer and relinquishment under paragraph (1) shall be in a 305 
form that allows the recording of the disclaimer and relinquishment in State and 306 

local real estate records. 307 

(3) RECORDING- The disclaimer and relinquishment under paragraph (1) shall-- 308 
(A) be recorded in the public land records under the jurisdiction of the 309 
Secretary; and 310 

(B) conclusively establish the title of the claimant to use the R.S. 2477 311 
right-of-way. 312 

(4) REVIEW- The document delivered by, and any actions of, the Secretary under 313 
paragraph (1)-- 314 

(A) shall only be subject to review as provided in section 6; and 315 
(B) shall not be subject to-- 316 

(i) quiet title proceedings under section 6(d) or any other provision 317 
of law; or 318 
(ii) any other judicial or administrative de novo or on the record 319 

reviews, claims, actions, or proceedings. 320 
(5) FEDERAL REGISTER NOTICE OF FINAL AGENCY ACTION- Not later 321 

than 30 days after the date on which the document is delivered under paragraph 322 

(1), the Secretary shall publish in the Federal Register notice of the action by the 323 
Secretary under that paragraph. 324 

SEC. 6. JUDICIAL REVIEW. 325 

(a) Jurisdiction- 326 

(1) FILING- If a claimant seeks to appeal the denial by the Secretary of a claimed 327 
R.S. 2477 right-of-way under this Act, the claimant shall file an appeal of the 328 
denial in the district court of the United States for the judicial district in which the 329 
longest lineal segment of the claimed R.S. 2477 right-of-way is located. 330 

(2) EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION- A district court described in paragraph (1) 331 
shall have the exclusive jurisdiction to decide the appeal on the record before the 332 
Secretary regarding the claimed R.S. 2477 right-of-way, subject only to appeal or 333 

review on the record by a court with appropriate Federal appellate jurisdiction. 334 



9 
 

(b) Filing- Any action initiated under subsection (a) shall be filed not later than 30 days 335 
after the date on which the Secretary provides written notice to the claimant of the denial 336 

by the Secretary of the claimed R.S. 2477 right-of-way. 337 
(c) Prior Adjudication Not Affected- Nothing in this Act affects a final settlement or final 338 
judgment in any court of competent jurisdiction before the date of the enactment of this 339 
Act in which the United States was a party in determining rights to a R.S. 2477 right-of-340 
way. 341 

(d) Actions To Quiet Title Unaffected- 342 
(1) IN GENERAL- Subject to this section and section 5, Federal court actions to 343 
quiet R.S. 2477 titles that involve R.S. 2477 claims previously filed under this Act 344 

in which a disclaimer and relinquishment are pending or have been issued are null 345 
and void. 346 
(2) ALLOWABLE ACTIONS- Any quiet title action not prohibited under 347 
paragraph (1) shall be filed during or before the date described in section 4(a)(1). 348 

SEC. 7. APPLICABLE LAW AND TIME EXTENSIONS. 349 

(a) Application of State and Federal Law- 350 
(1) IN GENERAL- This Act shall apply with respect to conclusively establishing 351 

the acceptance, scope, validity, or abandonment of a R.S. 2477 right-of-way. 352 

(2) PREEMPTION- In the case of any inconsistency or conflict between the 353 
provisions of this Act and State law, this Act shall apply in determining the 354 
acceptance, scope, validity, and abandonment of a R.S. 2477 right-of-way. 355 

(b) Extension- The Secretary shall grant a 1-time extension of up to 180 days for any 356 
deadline established by this Act for a maximum period of 1 year, for good cause, if the 357 
claimant submits to the Secretary, not later than 30 days before the date on which the 358 

deadline expires, a written request for the extension signed by the claimant under oath or 359 
affirmation. 360 

SEC. 8. IMPLEMENTATION REQUIRED. 361 

(a) In General- Subject to section 4(e)-- 362 
(1) not later than 90 days after the date of the enactment of this Act, the Secretary 363 
shall complete all policies, procedures, delegations, forms, and any other action 364 

necessary to implement this Act; and 365 
(2) on the completion of the actions described in paragraph (1), begin processing 366 
claims under this Act. 367 

(b) Injunction; Liability- The duties and obligations of, or failure to perform by, the 368 
Secretary under this section-- 369 

(1) are enforceable by injunction or restraining order; and 370 
(2) may result in official and personal civil liability. 371 

SEC. 9. EFFECT; APPLICABILITY. 372 

(a) Effect on Other Laws- Nothing in this Act affects or modifies-- 373 



10 
 

(1) title V of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 (43 U.S.C. 374 
1761 et seq.); or 375 

(2) title XI of the Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act (16 U.S.C. 376 
3161 et seq.). 377 

(b) Excluded Land- Nothing in this Act applies to or affects-- 378 
(1) the use of Department of Defense land or land with respect to which the 379 
Department of Defense shares control or jurisdiction; 380 

(2) land that is not owned by the United States; 381 
(3) land held in trust by the Secretary of the Interior for any Indian Tribe; or 382 
(4) land within the exterior boundary of-- 383 

(A) a National Park (to exclude lands other than National Parks which are 384 
under the jurisdiction or administration of the National Park Service); or 385 
(B) a congressionally designated National Wilderness Area. 386 

(c) Effect on Claims- This Act and the procedures and process implemented under this 387 
Act-- 388 

(1) shall apply to-- 389 

(A) claims filed after the date of the enactment of this Act; and 390 
(B) claims filed before the date of the enactment of this Act for which a 391 
final determination has not been issued; and 392 

(2) shall not affect the ability of a claimant to file or maintain a suit with respect 393 
to the claimed R.S. 2477 right-of-way under section 2409a(m) of title 28, United 394 

States Code, if the claimant has not filed a claim under section 4 regarding that 395 
R.S. 2477 right-of-way. 396 

SEC. 10. REPEAL OF RESTRICTIONS ON REGULATIONS. 397 

Section 108 of the Department of the Interior and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 398 
1997 (Public Law 104-208; 110 Stat. 3009-200) is repealed. 399 

 400 



  

 
Revised 2/9/2020 

 

Q and A on Historic Rights-of-Way legislation, S. 468, and H.R. 3270 (115th Congress) 
 

What is the fundamental issue, why is legislation required? 
 
Provides confirmation and documentation of existing rights-of ways on federal land by an efficient administrative 
process rather than requiring confirmation through Federal District Court quiet title action.  Counties, and some land 
owners, lack paper trail on rights-of-ways (r/w) for roads on federal public lands even though a r/w may exist under 
the 1866 Mining Law that was passed to facilitate settlement and development.  (The authority is usually referred to 
as R.S. 2477, the R.S. meaning Revised Statute.)  R/Ws so created were “self-issuing,” and there was never a 
requirement to file with either the General Land Office or successive agencies.  Construction constituted issuance.  
Existence confirmed the easement.  Over time, such R/Ws may have been recorded in county offices, on county 
transportation plans, and appeared on general public maps such as those of USGS or AAA maps.  But the Department 
of the Interior never officially recorded them, nor placed on BLM Master Title Plats (MTPs).   
 
There is no protection to a r/w holder if federal public land is disposed of, or if a conflicting use is proposed and 
authorized, unless it becomes known during publication and input, but recognition often requires r/w be documented.  
Further, questions could be raised regarding expenditure of public funds for maintenance where no documentation of 
easement is in hand.  Or the federal land agency might question work undertaken such as maintenance, addition of 
drainage, and other routine work associated with county transportation.  Additionally BLM has recently asserted in at 
least one county that “the county lacked authority to maintain its existing roads,” doing so as it asserted regulatory 
authority on the roads in question, doing so as part of a Federal Court action to which the County was not even a 
party.     
 
What will this legislation do? 
 
It would provide an administrative process to confirm the existing rights-of-ways.  The Department of the Interior has 
never developed or adopted a process for handling claims and assertions made under R.S. 2477.  When attempted, by 
internal policy and direction, it was either rejected in Court actions, or overturned with changes in Administrations.   A 
legislative “fix” assures a permanent recognition process so as to avoid the long and costly Federal Court approach on 
quiet title.  Congress repealed the authority with the passage of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976, 
but protected valid existing rights created under the historic law.  Confirmation of existence prior to October 21, 1976, 
the date of repeal, is required.   
 
A 10th Circuit decision in 2005 established a procedure, but requires filing in Federal District Court for quiet title, on 
case by case basis.  Such filings are expensive and time consuming. 
 
What is the current urgency? 
 
R.S. 2477 was repealed in 1976, 44 years ago.  Records and/or witnesses who can affirm existence on date of repeal 
are disappearing.   
 
Doesn’t BLM have a right-of-process, Title V of FLPMA? 
 
Yes, but applications would require full review and documentation, even for an existing route.  Such analysis could 
raise issues requiring analysis such as why the route even exists, and exists in the current location.  As a minimum, 
such documentation requires analysis and consultation under National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), Endangered 
Species Act (ESA), and Section 106 of the Historic Preservation Act.   
 
The result of such review creates high costs for documentation on an existing route for an existing r/w, and mitigation 
requirements may result from the documentation leading to the application of terms, conditions and stipulations for 
continued operation and maintenance, which could require high cost capital additions or modifications, e.g. tortoise-
proof fencing where roads cross habitat. 
 



  

 
Revised 2/9/2020 

 

Environmental groups have opposed “resolutions” of R.S. 2477 claims, questioning what constitutes a road; and 
they intervene in cases involving claims and assertions.  In advertising they raise the specter of new roads being 
created in Parks, wilderness and back country.  Why do they oppose, and does opposition have a basis? 
 
We cannot speculate on motivation.  Responding to and issuing documentation requires existence prior to 
10/21/1976.  Issuance of documentation in no way permits new roads, expansion, or realignment of the road as it 
currently exists.  Application of the legislation within National Park units and Congressionally designated Wilderness 
Areas has been specifically precluded in the current bill.   Administrative withdrawals, such as Bureau of Reclamation, 
Army Corps of Engineers, and Public Water Reserves are included for the purpose of confirming rights-of-ways.  
 
 
 
 
Experience stories: 

 

Exhibit A:  San Bernardino County required six years to secure quiet title to its 225 miles of roads inside the Mojave 

National Preserve after creation and transfer to the National Park Service.  Over half the roads were paved.  NPS 

attorneys wanted full proof of construction, and environmental groups intervened.  It required counties trips by staff and 

attorneys to Los Angeles to negotiate the settlement, which in the end did nothing more than confirm what was on the 

ground when the NPS unit was created from BLM public land in 1994.   

 

Exhibit B:  Iconic Route 66 where it crosses public land in New Mexico, Arizona and California, is not recorded on the 

BLM Master Title Plats (MTPs), with one exception.  It was largely built in the 1920s and 1930s, with no right-of-way 

issued, and largely following old routes between the towns and cities and following the path of what was then the route 

of the AT&SF.  When Interstate 40 opened, those parts which did not become part of the authorized (by a r/w) route 

were quit-claim deeded to the counties by the state highway departments.  The exception is a 20-mile segment near 

Goffs, west of Needles CA, which was part of the quiet title action described above.   

 

Exhibit C: Nye County completed a state-of-the-art GPS survey of their entire county road system, some 8,000 miles.  

They took the maps to the BLM State Office in Reno, and requested that BLM record the data on the Master Title Plats, 

which are the official land records of the United States for all transactions and disposals regarding the federal estate.  

The State Office refused, saying they had no authority to do so unless the County could secure a court order from 

Federal Court indicating a successful quiet title action.   

 

 

Exhibit D: San Bernardino County was the scene of a land use planning lawsuit in which environmental groups 

challenged the BLM’s travel management designations.  As part of the negotiations to settle the suit, the environmental 

groups sought “street legal only” designations for all road use, even OHV and back country vehicle access.  BLM 

successfully fought off that with the exception of the road network used by the public to gain access to public land for 

recreation, in other words the County Road System.  BLM assumed regulatory jurisdiction and agreed to so designate 

the County’s road system for street legal only use, including DMV license plates and not the State’s OHV “green 

sticky” permit.  The County was not consulted, nor even invited to participate in the settlement.   

 

 

Exhibit E: Jawbone Canyon Road in Kern County is a general public access route, maintained by the County and a part 

of its basic transportation plan.  It has existed for decades, likely more than a century, serving mines, cattle and sheep 

ranches and allotments, and general public access from the eastern part of the County.  A wind energy permittee 

required access to a project that was several miles up Jawbone, and which would require a project specific route to the 

development site turning off the County Road.  BLM found the Jawbone Road was not on the MTP, and required the 

developer to secure a Title V right-of-way to use the County’s Road.  The County was not consulted, and BLM charged 

the developer federal fees for the use of the road. 

 

Bottom line: Often counties will say that from their experience they’ve not had issues with BLM or the Forest Service 

on their road systems.  In practice, however, one never knows when a problem and misunderstanding may occur, and it 

will be too late to get the matter resolved.  Administrations change, and State Directors and District Managers of BLM 

change, as do Forest Supervisors and District Rangers. 

 



 

TESTIMONY 

Submitted on behalf of  

QUADSTATE LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AUTHORITY 

Buster Johnson, Chairman; and Supervisor District 3, Mohave County Arizona 

In favor of S. 468, Historic Rights-of-Way Preservation Act 

Before United State Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

July 26, 2017 

 

The QuadState Local Governments Authority strongly endorses the passage of S. 468, the Historic 

Routes Preservation Act, and one of the pieces of proposed legislation before this committee today.  We 

urge approval by this committee, and recommend its passage by the full Senate. 

QuadState Local Governments Authority is a 9-county joint powers authority, with county members 

lying within four (4) states in the Mojave and Sonoran Deserts.  Our Board of Directors has endorsed 

previous versions of the proposed legislation, have been kept fully informed of its progress in the 115th 

Congress.  Most of our member counties have been affected in one way or another by the current lack 

of documentation, or the costly and time-consuming method currently recognized as the only way to 

confirm existing rights-of-ways crossing federal land administered by the Bureau of Land Management 

(BLM) and the United States Forest Service (USFS).  Let me emphasize the word existing.  There is 

nothing in this legislation which permits construction of new roads, or expansion of roads beyond their 

current dimensions.  The roads that are the subject to this legislation must have existed upon the date 

of repeal of the statute, R.S. 2477, on October 21, 1976, the date of passage of the Federal Land Policy 

and Management Act of 1976. 

Thousands of miles of county roads in the West exist on federal land by virtue of R.S. 2477, a part of the 

Mining Law of 1866.  This was a settlement facilitation law, and it worked to ultimately create much of 

the rural transportation network in the West.   By the time it was repealed in 1976, it had done its job.  

The problem, however, is that the law, dating from the early years of Westward expansion, did not 

require paperwork.  There was no permitting action as we know today, nor certificate or easement 

provided the builder of the road, or highway, as it was known then.  As a result, the current official 

records of the federal real estate holdings, the Master Title Plats (MTPs) maintained by the BLM, contain 

no official notation that the rights-of-ways were granted, let alone even exist.   

Many counties, for variety of reasons, have sought to confirm these rights-of-ways.  They have found 

the only means available is to file a quiet title action (QTA) in Federal District Court.  This is an expensive 

and time consuming process.  One of our members spent six years getting a ruling and decision from the 

Court, which involved negotiations with the Department of the Interior attorneys.  No one, including the 

intervening environmental organizations, challenged the roads, per se, and their existence prior to 1976, 

yet the discussions continued over size, scope, maintenance, and whether Title V of the Federal Land 

Policy and Management Act was the more appropriate vehicle to use for issuance.   



Testimony S. 468 
Buster Johnson, Chairman, QuadState Local Governments Authority 
July 26, 2017 
 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

Let me say a bit about the Title V approach.  It ignores that the County already holds a right-of-way for 

the route in question.  It just lacks a proper piece of paper to prove it.  Road maps from the Auto Club, 

from State Tourism, and even Transportation Plans of the County, may show a road, but on BLM records 

it doesn’t exist!  BLM proposes to use Title V to issue a new right-of-way.  This opens the road to the 

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) for review of whether the road should exist and is in the 

“right” location.   And next, it opens the door for consultation about the route under Section 7 of the 

Endangered Species Act (ESA) and Section 106 of the Historic Preservation Act.  These consultations in 

many areas could open the road to limitations on maintenance activity, and require installation of 

additional capital improvement under Terms and Conditions imposed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 

Service (FWS) or the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO).   Most counties lack financial 

wherewithal to even keep up with routine maintenance in remote desert or timbered areas, let alone 

construct high cost structures such as tortoise-proof fencing along the routes.  It may be desert tortoises 

being of concern in our area, it could be sage grouse, or other species of concern in the northern areas 

of the Great Basin and Great Plains.  And these structures or facilities could be required even in the 

absence of any showing of mortality among species of concern, just the threat that “something might 

happen.” 

One of our member counties took current GPS mapping of its roads to the BLM State Office in Reno for 

recordation on the MTPs.  It was told that it had to get a court order to confirm its rights-of-ways. 

A final note, Iconic Route 66 across the Southwest is not on the records, with the exception, that we can 

find, of a 20-mile stretch west of Needles CA, which was confirmed in the QTA brought by San 

Bernardino County. 

So what does S. 468 do?  Simply, it provides for a simple, and timely application process and 

administrative means to secure right-of-way or easement confirmation, and assure its recordation on 

the MTPs maintained for the federal land records.  It delegates to the agencies, BLM and USFS, the 

review of proof of existence, and substitutes an administrative action for the costly process of going to 

court for such confirmation.  It does not mean, that if there are differences of opinion on the proof, the 

avenue of a court venue is out of reach, but it would only lead to court action if there were 

disagreements regarding the proofs.  Further, it affirms the 2005 10th Circuit Court of Appeals decision, 

which held that the Secretary could not apply, retroactively, terms, conditions, and standards on the 

rights-of-ways prior to consideration for approval.  The role of the Department of the Interior was, in 

that decision, deemed strictly ministerial, to look at the proof supplied and see that it complied with the 

original law.  The legislation proposed in S. 468 provides legislative confirmation of that process. 

The proposed legislation also does two other things which might be considered controversial, but which 

are not.    

First, the legislation would waive the statute of limitations.  R.S. 2477 makes reference to applying to 

land not otherwise reserved.  This is interpreted as withdrawn for other purposes.  The statute of 

limitations normally applies for a 12-year period after reservation.  It must be waived, at least for the 25 

years under which this legislation will apply, so that the law will apply to rights-of-way within National 

Forests, and also a myriad of other reserves and withdrawals such as those made for Reclamation 



Testimony S. 468 
Buster Johnson, Chairman, QuadState Local Governments Authority 
July 26, 2017 
 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

purposes (US Bureau of Reclamation), public water reserves, and other such actions taken by the 

government over the past 150 years.  The law will not apply within congressionally designated units of 

the National Park Service, nor military reservations, nor Indian reservations.   

Second, the law removes the restriction placed on the Secretary of the Interior in 1997 from issuing 

regulations regarding roads on federal lands.  Only by doing this can the Secretary issue regulations to 

implement this Act.  But is important that such regulations shall not contain regulatory restrictions 

prescribing construction standards or other matters other than the existence of the route on October 

21, 1976.   

In conclusion, I wish to place on the record a few other items about the proposal. 

This should be considered as a non-partisan Act of Congress.  It is does not undo any previous action 

allowed on public land.  It is intended only to facilitate local governments securing a modern proof and 

confirmation that the right-of-way exists, that they may expend public funds for maintenance on it, and 

it is officially recognized on the official records of the United States. 

The legislation, if passed, is voluntary.  It places no burden, financial or otherwise, on any local 

government to comply or even take action if they believe they don’t require a confirmation of any 

particular right-of-way.   And with the minimal adjudication requirements placed on the federal land 

management agencies, it should not create an undue workload for federal officials.   

The legislation, if passed, has a sunset of 25 years.  The authors believe that such is necessary to 

permanently bring this last vestige of settlement to a close.  Doubtless the authors of the Federal Land 

Policy and Management Act (FLPMA) did not contemplate that 41 years after its passage, confirmation 

actions would remain outstanding, let alone almost wholly un-adjudicated.  But we agree that such a 

sunset is appropriate to assure that local governments put off application and defer to others, not yet in 

office, an obligation “to someday get around it.”  

And lastly all must recognize that changes to any right-of-way confirmed under this legislation will revert 

to consideration under the appropriate law and regulation in effect for new routes, in effect, Title V of 

FLPMA.  It recognizes the existing route, as it exists, berm to berm, but realignment or widening 

reconstruction will require appropriate agency review and consultations.  But absolutely, it does not 

create new routes and roads where none exist today.   

Our organization, and I, endorse this legislation, and urge its prompt approval by this committee, and 

movement to the floor of the Senate, where we hope for ultimate passage.  As stated, it is essentially 

non-partisan, and should be viewed by all as being simply a good and responsible government action. 

Thank you. 

 

 

 

 



QuadState Local Governments Authority 
An interstate joint powers authority established in 1999 

 
What is it?  QuadState Local Governments Authority is an interstate joint powers authority, organized 

for local governments.  Originally organized around desert tortoise issues, it now functions regarding a 

variety of issues related to federal land management in the 4-state area of the Mojave and Sonoran 

Deserts.   

As a joint powers authority, it is a public agency for the purpose of gaining access to agency meetings and 

forums with status beyond “stakeholder,” and is a recognized agency partner, as described below. 

Desert tortoise.  QuadState remains engaged in matters related desert tortoises and management of 

habitat.  It represents the positions of local government, assuring agency recognizes role of counties, and 

advocates for maintenance of legacy land uses, and avoidance of undue requirements for mitigation.  

Provided input on the Revised Recovery Plan for Mojave Population, which is listed.  Advocates for 

continued not-warranted status for Sonoran Population.  Serves on interagency coordination bodies, noted 

below.  The Authority maintains a close communication with both U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and 

Bureau of Land Management. 

As part of the MOG, the Authority provides representation on the Recovery Implementation Teams, and 

provides member counties with technical support on desert tortoise issues.  It also provides input related 

to desert tortoise to local Habitat Management Plans, upon request from member counties. 

R.S. 2477.  The Authority has worked in the 114th, 115th and 116th Congresses to pass legislation to 

provide efficient administrative confirmation of rights-of-ways of the routes on federal land that were 

grandfathered when the statute was repealed in 1976.  Currently Federal Court action is required.  The 

issue should be non-partisan, but has become thorny for some members of Congress.  The Authority, 

working with other County advocates has sought co-sponsors, and has full support of NACo. 

Desert Landscape Conservation Collaborative.  An organization created by Secretarial Order to 

provide interagency coordination on data, and originally among 22 LCCs established nationally to 

embrace climate change scenarios in land use planning.  The Authority Executive Director gained a seat 

on the Steering Committee, representing and remains in close coordination with the remaining part of the 

structure, part of which is a pilot program involving three member counties, noted below. 

Representation and feedback at regional interagency forums 

• Management Oversight Group:   Organized in 1988, and continues to coordinate activities and 

programs related to the Mojave desert tortoise population.  The Authority is a full member of the 

MOG. 

• Arizona Interagency Desert Tortoise Team: A long standing interagency group coordinating 

activity and programs related to both desert tortoise populations in Arizona.  The Authority is a 

full member of the AIDTT. 

• Lower Colorado River Multi-species Conservation Plan Steering Committee:  The authority 

represents the member counties bordering the Lower Colorado River.  This activity is carried out 

under the QuadState LGA name, but is not a direct Authority activity. 

• Eastern Mojave Conservation Collaborative:  Selected as one of three pilot areas for gathering 

and coordinating natural resources data, the program grew from the DLCC program in the 

Southwest.  No longer focusing on either planning or climate change, it is still a repository for 



QuadState Local Governments Authority 
Statement of Work, Purpose and Current Issues and Policies 
February 10, 2020 
 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

spatial data in the two state area of the Central Mojave, west of Las Vegas.  The Authority 

participates in workshops and serves on the Coordinating Committee. 

• BLM Resources Advisory Councils (RACs) 

By law and regulation, all RACs require a local government representative be a member.  

Experience shows the single representative on Councils seldom makes advance contacts with 

other public land counties, and never provides feedback on programs and policies from meetings.  

An Authority representative attends meetings, provides feedback, and raises issues of concern 

regarding its membership’s interests. 

✓ Arizona RAC: a single Statewide Council 

✓ California Desert District Advisory Council: specifically limited to the California Desert 

Conservation Area 

✓ Mojave - Southern Great Basin RAC Nevada: Covers Clark, Nye and Lincoln Counties 

• NACo Committees with interests that coincide with the interests of Authority members:  At 

both the Annual Meeting and Legislative Conference, the Public Lands Steering Committee and 

Western Interstate Region meet, to hear from agencies and formulate resolutions.  The Authority 

attends both sessions, provides input when appropriate, and most important provides feedback to 

members since most of our member counties do not have seats on the two Committees, and where 

they do, the non-members do not receive feedback on programs and policies of either NACo or 

the agencies which present programs to the meetings. 

• Western Interstate Region:  A coordinating group organized by Department of Defense, to 

assure communication among agencies related to the interface with bases which abound in the 

Southwest.  It conducts periodic webinars on DOD programs, and publishes updates on programs 

related to both natural resources and energy in the Southwest. 

• U.S. Forest Service Cohesive Fire Management:  A representative of the Authority sits on the 

Committee working at assessing fire preparedness and suppression, and which effort is intended 

to improve coordination among fire suppression organizations. 

 

How does a local government join? 

 

The are two classes of membership.  Full members are counties within the 4-state region containing desert 

tortoise populations, either Mojave, Sonoran, or both.  Associate members are local government (towns 

and cities), who wish to affiliate to stay informed on natural resources issues and policies, and support the 

programs of the Authority.  Associate members attend all meetings, but are non-voting members, and pay 

a reduced annual assessment. 

 

A local government joins by majority vote of its governing body, and signing the Joint Powers Authority 

document, as amended.  Final action to approve membership is made by the Board of Directors of the 

Authority at a regular meeting.  If membership is initiated prior to January 1 of the current fiscal year 

(July 1 to June 30 of following year), the new member will be assessed for a full year, based on the 

formula for the Authority.  Joining after January 1 will provide for payment for the succeeding fiscal year.   

 

Assessment for membership is based on desert tortoise designated critical habit acreage (40%), acreage of 

federal public land characterized as “desert (30%),” and total county population (30%).  The jurisdiction’s 

statistics are compared to all the other members before the percentages are applied.  There is a minimum 

payment of $2,000 per year for counties under 50,000 population, or if the formula results in a calculation 



QuadState Local Governments Authority 
Statement of Work, Purpose and Current Issues and Policies 
February 10, 2020 
 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

under $2,000.  Associate members are assessed at 50% of the lowest full member assessment, currently 

$1,000 per year. 

 

Current issues of involvement, adopted policy 

 

a. The Authority has a direct interest in the Sonoran desert tortoise litigation, in which plaintiffs 

seek new consideration by FWS to list the Sonoran Population under the ESA.  The Authority 

supports current FWS decisions concluding listing is not warranted. 

 

b. The Authority has direct interest in the Joshua tree litigation, in which plaintiffs seek additional 

consideration by FWS to list the Joshua Tree under the ESA.  The Authority supports the current 

FWS decision that listing is not warranted.   

 

c. The Authority endorses Mojave Population recovery, in which the MOG and FWS have adopted 

priorities related to desert tortoise recovery which are aimed at on-the-ground actions, and from 

which inputs and recovery can be measured and quantified.  The Authority agrees with the 

priorities which include fencing, but advocates counties cannot provide mitigation fencing on 

their county roads (RS 2477 rights-of-ways), and wish to assure that where fencing might be 

determined appropriate it be undertaken as a land management agency project, except where it 

has been explicitly agreed to in an HCP or other document approved by the county’s elected 

governing body. 

 

d. The Authority, in addition to (c) above, advocates in favor of raven control measures, and 

supports efforts to reduce subsidies that support increases in overall predation upon tortoises. 

 

e. The Authority supports research to further understand disease issues in tortoise population, 

including epidemiology, and supports research in abatement and/or cures.   

 

f. The counties collectively support the principles of multiple use on federal public lands in the 

region, as administered by both Bureau of Land Management and the Forest Service.  It supports 

historic “legacy” economic uses of public lands, and expresses policies and input that assure 

public and permitted use is maintained in the absence of research or monitoring that indicates that 

such uses cannot be mitigated or managed. 

 

g. The counties generally oppose further federal acquisition of private land within their jurisdictions.  

Such acquisitions always reduce county base, and under the current formula for Payment in Lieu 

of Taxes (PILT) there is no off-setting payment to compensate counties for the loss.  (Note: there 

is an exception for acquisitions in areas under National Park Service administration, and 

Congressionally designated wilderness in National Forests, but payment ceases after five years.  

BLM wilderness inholding acquisition is not included.)  (“Generally” means that for most 

situations, the counties oppose federal acquisitions, but recognize exceptions: (a) private 

exchanges on an equal value basis; (b) where the county has less than 1.3 million acres of federal 

estate within its borders, which is the “sweet spot” beyond which PILT payments per acre cannot 

increase; (c) and those cases where the county has an approved HCP to which the elected body 

has approved acquisitions as part of the plan and mitigation.) 



QuadState Local Governments Authority 
Statement of Work, Purpose and Current Issues and Policies 
February 10, 2020 
 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

h. The counties support legislation to provide an administrative means for the federal agencies 

(BLM, Forest Service, Bureau of Reclamation) to confirm historic rights-of-ways which are 

maintained by counties and which cross federal estate under their jurisdictions. 

 

 



   
ARF-5899     Presentation     2. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.
Department: Human Resources 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Spotlight on Employees Program for March 2020.

Background Information
The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the
following qualities: teamwork, quality, morale building, integrity, customer
service and initiative. 

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
For March 2020, the Human Resources Department staff would like
to publicly recognize five employees through the County's Spotlight on
Employees Program.

Suggested Motion
Public recognition of five employees through the County's Spotlight on
Employees Program, as follows: Aimee Staten, Israel Juarez, Robert
Cox-Robinson, Jerry J. Moore and Zachary Andrade.  (Erica Raymond)

Attachments
Aimee Staten
Israel Juarez
Robert Cox-Robinson
Jerry J. Moore



Zachary Andrade



Employee Name 

SPOTLIGHT
on Employees

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 

Example: 

           Supervisor Date 



         
                                         Employee Name 

 SPOTLIGHT
on Employees 

   
 
 

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 
 

Example:                 

                  

                  

                   

                   

                   

 

                

Supervisor                            Date 





Employee Name 

SPOTLIGHT
on Employees

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 

Example: 

Supervisor Date 



From: Buzan, Malissa <mbuzan@gilacountyaz.gov>  

Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2020 12:53 PM 

To: Prine, Dorine <dprine@gilacountyaz.gov>; Farnham, Glen <gfarnham@gilacountyaz.gov> 

Subject: RE: Thanks to RJ 

Yes Glen, Thank you to RJ. You have a great employee there. 

From: Prine, Dorine <dprine@gilacountyaz.gov>  

Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2020 12:44 PM 

To: Farnham, Glen <gfarnham@gilacountyaz.gov> 

Cc: Buzan, Malissa <mbuzan@gilacountyaz.gov> 

Subject: Thanks to RJ 

Good afternoon Glen, 

Please give special accolades to RJ for going above and beyond his job last night to assist me when I had 

a flat tire after normal work hours.  He was on his way home from work in Globe, saw that I had pulled 

over on the side of the road close to A+ Crossing road.  He turned around to ask if I needed assistance.  I 

had just called for help, so he was there before anyone was contacted.  The “donut” tire is under the 

middle of the van and difficult to get to.  There was very little shoulder to use, so the van was partially in 

the road.  For safety reasons, it was better for him to drive to Globe to get a replacement tire.  By the 

time he returned, it was 40 degrees and very dark.  He laid on the cold and gravel covered hard ground 

with only the headlights from the service truck and his cell phone flashlight for illumination.  There were 

many complications and issues so, it took him longer than expected to change the tire.  When the tire 

was changed to the “donut”, he followed me all the way to Punkin Center (traveling at only 40 mph) to 

ensure that I was safe.   

He handled the problem like a professional and very humbly said that he was just doing his job.  He went 

through a lot of trouble, spent many hours of his time, and averted any problems to make sure that I 

was safe and able to get back home.   

RJ is an outstanding employee that eagerly exceeded his job to ensure the care and safety of another 

employee.   

In deepest gratitude, 

Dorine Prine 

Program Coordinator 

Gila County Community Action Program 

107 W. Frontier St. Bldg. C 

Payson, AZ  85541 

Phone:  928‐474‐7193 

e‐mail:  dprine@gilacountyaz.gov 

 



Employee Name 

SPOTLIGHT
on Employees

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 

Example: 

Supervisor Date 



Employee Name 

SPOTLIGHT
on Employees

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 

Example: 

Supervisor Date 



   
ARF-5872     Presentation     2. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Robert Hickman, Facilities Director 
Submitted By: Brittnia Morrissey, Facilities Administrative Assistant
Department: Facilities Management
Fiscal Year: 2019-2020 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

n/a Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
To present the preliminary design of the proposed new animal shelter to
the Gila County Board of Supervisors.

Background Information
In October 2019, the Board of Supervisors secured financing in the
amount of $10M that will be used for capital improvement projects in
northern and southern Gila County.  One of the approved capital
improvement projects is the construction of a new Gila County Animal
Shelter at the Gila County Fairgrounds.  Approximately $2.8M of the
$10M has been budgeted to build the new animal shelter. Over the past
several months, Gila County staff from Facilities, Community
Development, Public Works, and the Health Department have been
meeting with the designers from The Architect Company and Lovin
Contracting to analyze our current animal shelter data to determine the
community animal needs for a new shelter and create a design. During
the last partners meeting on February 25, 2020 a preliminary design was
presented to Gila County by The Architect Company and staff agreed that
this design would meet our operational needs and conditionally be within
the 2.8M budget. 

Evaluation
The new animal shelter will be located at the Gila County Fairgrounds. 
This presentation will provide an overview of the conceptual plans for the
new animal shelter and site layout. 



Conclusion
Gila County staff will present a preliminary design for the proposed new
animal shelter to the Board of Supervisors for comment and discussion.

Recommendation
Presentation and discussion on preliminary design for the proposed new Gila
County Animal Shelter to be located out at the Gila County Fairgrounds.

Suggested Motion
Presentation and discussion on the preliminary design for the proposed new Gila
County Animal Shelter to be located at the Gila County Fairgrounds.  (Bob
Hickman/Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Preliminary Animal Shelter Design



X XX X

X XX

X XX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X XX

X
X

X
X

X
X

XX XX

XX XX

X
X

X
X

X
X

XX XXXX

D

W

FOLDING
TABLE

SH
EL

VI
N

G

SH
EL

VI
N

G
SH

EL
VI

N
G

SUPERVISOR

OFFICE

ACTUAL:  123 SF
PROG:  100 SF

QUAR. CATS

ACTUAL:  44 SF

OTHER ANIMALS

ACTUAL:  45 SF

CAT GET

ACQUAINTED

ACTUAL:  87 SF
PROG:  80 SF

DOG GET

ACQUAINTED

ACTUAL:  146 SF
PROG:  150 SF

ANIMAL KITCHEN

ACTUAL:  132 SF
PROG:  100 SF

FOOD STORAGE

ACTUAL:  57 SF
PROG:  100 SF

LITTER STORAGE

ACTUAL:  57 SF
PROG:  100 SF

LAUNDRY

ACTUAL:  184 SF
PROG:  200 SF

GROOMING

ACTUAL:  74 SF
PROG:  100 SF

CLEAN EQUIP.

ACTUAL:  92 SF
PROG:  80 SF

MECH.

ACTUAL:  68 SF
PROG:  100 SF

MED. DOGS 1

ACTUAL:  26 SF
MED. DOGS 2

ACTUAL:  41 SFPUPPIES

ACTUAL:  42 SF

STRAY DOGS

ACTUAL:  188 SF

ADOPTION DOGS

ACTUAL:  460 SF

RECEPTION

ACTUAL:  273 SF
PROG:  140 SF

ADOPTION

COUNSELOR

ACTUAL:  62 SF
PROG:  100 SF

LOBBY

ACTUAL:  288 SF
PROG:  200 SF

CATIO

ACTUAL:  59 SF

STORAGE

3

ACTUAL:  108 SF
PROG:  100 SF

1 2 3 4 5 86 7 1 1 21

1 2 3 4 5 86 7 9 10 11 12 13 14

2

2 4

6 8

12 CAGES

B
E

N
C

H

COVERED PORCH

SHELF

PRINTER/
COPIER

UC 
REF.

SINK

REF.

GROOMING 
TABLE

GROOMING 
TUB

W.H.

ELEC. PANELSP
R

E
S

S
U

R
E

 
W

A
S

H
 S

Y
S

TE
M

JAN. 
SINK

METAL 
SHELVING BY 

OWNER

OUT DOOR DOG RUNS

OUT DOOR DOG RUNS

2

(14 ADOPTION DOGS)

(8 STRAY DOGS)

(4 PUPPIES)

(1 DOG) (2 DOGS)

OPAQUE FENCE

(ALSO USED FOR 
BEHAVIOR TRAINING)

OUTDOOR CONCRETE SIDEWALK

OUTDOOR CONCRETE SIDEWALK

3'-6" WIDE DOOR

3'
-6

" W
ID

E 
DO

O
R

ACO TRUCK

MOBILE SURGERY UNIT

LINE OF OVERHANG

CORRIDOR

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

CORRIDOR

(2 CATS)

OUTDOOR GET ACQUAINTED YARD

OUTDOOR EXERCISE YARD

PUBLIC 
ENTRY

STAFF 
ENTRY

6 
LO

C
K

E
R

S
SURGERY/EU

ACTUAL:  128 SF
PROG:  120 SF

SINK

COMMUNITY

CATS

ACTUAL:  73 SF

ADOPTION/STRAY

CATS

ACTUAL:  78 SF

TOILET

ACTUAL:  64 SF
PROG:  60 SF

TOILET

ACTUAL:  64 SF
PROG:  60 SF

ACO OFFICE

ACTUAL:  102 SF
PROG:  140 SF

ANIMAL

RECEIVING/PREP

ACTUAL:  191 SF
PROG:  180 SF

ANIMAL HOLDING

ACTUAL:  81 SF
PROG:  135 SF

STAFF

CONFERNCE/BREAKROOM

ACTUAL:  206 SF
PROG:  200 SF

SCALE

SS SHELVES FOR FERAL CATS

(4 CATS)

TV

SH
EL

VI
N

G

STORAGE

2

ACTUAL:  108 SF
PROG:  100 SF

STORAGE

1

ACTUAL:  107 SF
PROG:  100 SF

SALLY PORT

ACTUAL:  790 SF
PROG:  1,000 SF

(8 CATS)

GILA COUNTY ANIMAL CARE AND CONTROL
GLOBE, AZ 

NOT FOR REGULATORY APPROVAL,
PERMITTING, OR CONSTRUCTION

SHELTER PLANNERS OF AMERICA, COPYRIGHT ©

1106 W. RANDOL MILL RD. SUITE 300, ARLINGTON, TX 76012 - PHONE (817) 265-8522

SCALE:

DATE: 

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
1/4" = 1'-0"

02/24/20

FLOOR PLAN - OPTION 1

TOTAL

PROGRAM

5,663 SF

2,098 SF

7,761 SF

ACTUAL

5,180 SF

2,150 SF

7,330 SF

NON A/C SPACE

A/C SPACE

AREA

AREA TABULATION

ANIMAL HOUSING TABULATION

CATEGORY ACTUAL PROGRAM

STRAY DOGS

MEDICAL ISOLATION DOGS

14 14

8 7

4 4

ADOPTION DOGS 

QUARANTINE DOGS 

2 2

1 1

DOG SUB-TOTAL 29 28

4 4

4 2

4 4

2 2

14 12

1 1

44 41

ADOPTION CATS

ADOPTION CATS (FREE-ROAM)

STRAY CATS

MEDICAL ISOLATION CATS

CAT SUB-TOTAL

OTHER ANIMALS

TOTAL ANIMALS

PUPPIES (2 PUPPIES PER PEN)

0 2'-0" 4'-0" 8'-0"

Plan to use Option 1 for Design Development

by owner

drain boards on
each side

slide sink
down to
end

kegan
Callout
rotated sallyport to allow for modification to site

kegan
Callout
door can have hardware/card reader to control who is coming in and out

kegan
Callout
staff and public will share toilets

kegan
Callout
reduced size of lobby

kegan
Callout
kept this room. Can be used for cats

kegan
Callout
space for trench drain, required for commercial washers



   
ARF-5894   Regular Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY19-20 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7-1-2019 - 6-30-2020 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation to the Board highlighting the organization's update of
activities by Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens and request for funding
(Agreement No. 020520).

Background Information
The Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens (PGCSC) was incorporated in
1974 and is a non-profit organization designated as the Area Agency on
Aging for Region V, which encompasses Pinal and Gila counties. PGCSC’s
mission is to assist seniors and persons with disabilities in Region V,
achieve and maintain self-sufficiency with dignity, and offer choices of
appropriate care by providing a wide range of community and home
based services. PGCSC also represents the interests of the elderly and
acts to advocate for change in public and private attitudes, policies and
regulations. Gila County has contributed to PGCSC since 1979. PGCSC
received Gila County funds in the amount of $150,000 annually. These
funds are for the purpose of providing County support to administration
and program services for our seniors and persons with disabilities
population in the Gila County area. PGCSC provides a wide variety of
services for seniors, persons with disabilities and caregivers. These
services are offered directly or through a network of provider agencies.
PGCSC services include, but not limited to the following: aging, disability,
and caregiver support resources information, referral and assistance to
grandparents raising grandchildren programs, behavioral health –
substance abuse and suicide prevention case management home care
(housekeeping, personal and respite care) benefits, entitlements and
advocacy (health care insurance and benefits counseling), Ombudsman



advocacy (health care insurance and benefits counseling), Ombudsman
(nursing home advocacy) legal services and legal helpline mature
workforce development (senior employment and training programs),
multipurpose senior centers (social, nutritional and wellness support),
home-delivered meals, mobility management transportation provider
coordination and senior rides transit program, and training volunteer
services.

Evaluation
PGCSC provides a wide variety of services for seniors, persons with
disabilities, and caregivers. These services are offered directly or through
a network of provider agencies. PGCSC services include, but not limited
to the following: Program Services and Allocations: Town of Payson Senior
Center $53,000; Town of Payson for Star Valley $17,500; City of Globe
$33,000; Town of Hayden $14,500; Town of Miami $14,500; Pine
Non-Profit $4,000; Catholic Community Service/Case Management
Services $10,000; Mom's Meals $1,500; and PGCSC $2,000 for a total of
$150,000.

Conclusion
It is the intent of the County, pursuant to A.R.S. §11-267, to provide
$150,000 to Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens to enhance services to
persons with disabilities and aged persons within the County. The PGCSC
is a non-profit organization which enjoys and maintains federal exempt
status and the County has determined that the purpose of this funding
request is public and that the expenditure of these funds will assist in
providing services to persons with disabilities and aged person within the
County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Agreement No.
020520 between Gila County and Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens
Area Agency on Aging Region V in an amount not to exceed $150,000.
PGCSC agrees to provide the County an annual report.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Agreement No. 020520
between Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging and
Gila County whereby the County will disburse $150,000; and further, the
Board determines this is for the benefit to provide services to persons
with disabilities and aged persons within Gila County. (Mary Springer)



Attachments
PGCSC Agreement 020520











   
ARF-5937   Regular Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY120 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

3/10/2020 -
6/30/2020

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
State of Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards and Training Board FY 2020
Equipment Grant Application and Award (Contract No. CNA20-405).

Background Information
The Globe Regional Constable's Office needs a new pickup truck to
replace B-99 vehicle that has outlived its useful life. B-99 will be turned
back into the Fleet Department. In the past, the Payson and Globe
Regional Constable's Offices have submitted grant applications to the
Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board and received grant awards
for the purchase of equipment. On February 13, 2020, the Gila County
Globe Regional Constable's Office was notified of a grant award in the
amount of $18,000 by the Constable Ethics, Standards and Training
Board for partial cost of the purchase of a new vehicle. The County
Manager agreed to pay for half of the new vehicle purchase from the
General Fund. The deadline to submit the Grant Application was
February 10, 2020, and the grant application was submitted without
Board approval on January 20, 2020. The Globe Regional Constable was
recently informed by the Constable Ethics, Standards and Training Board
of a grant award for the requested amount that will be used to purchase a
new vehicle with half the cost coming from the general fund.

Evaluation
Requesting the Board of Supervisors to approve the prior submittal of the



Requesting the Board of Supervisors to approve the prior submittal of the
Equipment Grant Application and accept the grant award by authorizing
the Chairman's signature on Grant No. CNA20-405.

Conclusion
The Gila County Globe Regional Constable is requesting the Board to
approve the prior submittal of the Equipment Grant Application and
accept the grant award by authorizing the Chairman's signature on
Contract No. CNA20-405 in the amount of $18,000 from the Constable
Ethics, Standards and Training Board as partial funding to purchase a
new pick up truck with the other half of the funding coming from the
General Fund. Existing used vehicle B-99 will be returned to the Fleet
Department for disposition.

Recommendation
Constable Ruben Mancha requests that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the previous submittal of a Grant Application to the Constable
Ethics, Standards and Training Board and accept the grant award in the
amount of $18,000 by authorizing the Chairman's signature on Contract
No. CNA20-405.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Globe Regional Constable's
previous submittal of a FY 2020 Equipment Grant Application to the
Constable Ethics, Standards and Training Board and acceptance of the
grant award in the amount of $18,000 as partial funding to purchase a
new vehicle by authorizing the Chairman's signature on Grant No.
CNA20-405. (Ruben Mancha)

Attachments
Grant Application
Grant Award CNA20-405



































   
ARF-5897   Regular Agenda Item     3. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 20-03-01 supports the application for a
pass-through grant on behalf of the Hellsgate Fire District from the Tonto
Apache Tribe in the amount of $25,449 for critical hose replacement
program for the Fire District.

Background Information
The passage of Proposition 202 by the voters of Arizona in November
2002 set the stage for new gaming compacts between the State and the
respective tribes. An important provision of Proposition 202 was the
sharing of gaming revenues with the State. A portion of the revenue to be
shared can be retained by a tribe and distributed itself. Specifically,
Proposition 202 states: "The Tribe shall make twelve percent (12%) of its
total annual contribution under Section 12(B) in either or both of the
following forms: Distributions to cities, towns, or counties for government
services that benefit the general public, including public safety, mitigation
of the impacts of gaming, or promotion of commerce and economic
development. Deposits to the Commerce and Economic Development
Commission Local Communities Fund established by A.R.S. Section
41-1505.12." The Tonto Apache Tribe has opted for option one (above)
and therefore distributes these "12 percent" funds directly to cities,
towns, or counties through our State Shared Revenue Grants Program.
Since the law requires that all funds be distributed to cities, towns, and
counties, the other potential grantees are required to cooperate with
either a city, town or county entity to receive any grant funding and act as
a pass-through for the other agencies. This process is used throughout
Arizona with Tribal Governments that choose to directly distribute a
portion of their gaming funds. Cities, towns and counties are asked to
provide resolutions accepting these grants and acting as pass-through
agencies for non-municipal entities that are successful grant recipients.
Hellsgate Fire District has applied to the Tonto Apache Tribe for $25,449
for a critical hose replacement program. According to the grant
application, a resolution from a county or municipality is required stating



application, a resolution from a county or municipality is required stating
proof of support and sponsorship and that the county or municipality will
act as a pass-through agency for the grant funds.

Evaluation
Due to the short timeframe in which to submit the grant application,
Hellsgate Fire District submitted the grant application to the Tonto
Apache Tribe. They have requested this resolution, so they can comply
with the grant requirements and the County can receive the grant award
on their behalf. The Hellsgate Fire District serves a total of 38 square
miles, with the target population of nearly 20,000 local community
members and over 100,000 visitors to local forests in the surrounding
area. They are situated between the Town of Payson Fire Department and
the Christopher-Kohls Fire Department and have automatic aid
agreements with both. The critical hose replacement program is essential
to have field-ready equipment when needed.

Conclusion
Hellsgate Fire District has a need for funding to support their critical hose
replacement program. Hellsgate Fire District received notification on
January 29, 2020, that the Tonto Apache Tribe approved their request
and asks that the Board of Supervisors adopt a resolution supporting the
grant award and act as the pass-through agent on behalf of the Hellsgate
Fire District.

Recommendation
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 20-03-01 and acceptance of
a pass-through grant on behalf of the Hellsgate Fire District from the
Tonto Apache Tribe in the amount of $25,449 for critical hose
replacement program for the Hellsgate Fire District.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-03-01
agreeing for Gila County to be the pass-through entity on behalf of the
Hellsgate Fire District (District) for a grant awarded to the District by the
Tonto Apache Tribe in the amount of $25,449 to be used for the District's
Critical Hose Replacement Program. (Mary Springer/John Wisner)

Attachments
Resolution No. 20-03-01
Grant Application Packet



Tonto Apache Grant Award



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-03-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA IN SUPPORT OF A GRANT 

APPLICATION TO THE TONTO APACHE TRIBE FOR THE 

HELLSGATE FIRE DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, the Hellsgate Fire District is a special taxing district formed in 2008 in Gila County; and, 

WHEREAS, the Hellsgate Fire District has submitted an application for a grant from the Tonto 

Apache Tribe in the amount of $25,449; and, 

WHEREAS, the Hellsgate Fire District is in need of this supplemental funding to support their 

critical hose replacement program for Hellsgate Fire District; and,   

WHEREAS, the guidelines for the grant require proof of support and sponsorship from Gila County 

in the form of a duly adopted resolution of the Board of Supervisors providing that Gila County will 

act as a fiscal agent and accept funding on behalf of the Hellsgate Fire District; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Gila County Board of Supervisors supports 

and sponsors the grant application for Hellsgate Fire District per the gaming grants requirements of 

the Tonto Apache Tribe and further will act as the fiscal agent and accept funding on behalf of the 

Hellsgate Fire District.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of March 2020, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

______________________________ 

Woody Cline, Chairman 

 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

______________________________ 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

































   
ARF-5936   Regular Agenda Item     3. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted By: Maryn Belling, Budget Manager
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2019 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

through 6/30/2019 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approve budgeted and unbudgeted fund transfers from FY 2019.

Background Information
During the course of routine business, the Finance Department prepares
fund transfers. The Finance Department shall bring forth each year the
transfers for the Board's review, discussion adn approval to remain
compliant with A.R.S.§42-17106.

A.R.S.§42-17106. Expenditures limited to budgeted purposes; transfer
of monies. A. Except as provided in subsection B, a county, city or
town shall not: 1. Spend money for a purpose that is not included in its
budget. 2. Spend money or incur or create a debt, obligation, or
liability in a fiscal year in excess of the amount stated for each
purpose in the finally adopted budget for that year, except as provided
by law, revenue in excess of that amount required to meet
expenditures, debts, obligations and liabilities that are incurred under
the budget. B. A governing body may transfer monies between budget
items if all of the following apply: 1. The monies are available. 2. The
transfer is in the public interest and based on a demonstrated need. 3.
The transfer does not result in a violation of the limitations prescribed
in article IX, sections 19 and 20, Constitution of Arizona. 4. A majority
of the members of the governing body votes affirmatively on the
transfer at a public meeting.

Evaluation



A.R.S.§42-17106 requires the Board of Supervisors, by majority vote, to
approve the budgeted and unbudgeted funds transfers at a public meeting.

Conclusion
In order to be compliant with A.R.S.§42-17106, the Finance Department
requests the Board approve the inter-fund budgeted and unbudgeted
transfers for FY 2019.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the budgeted and unbudgeted
inter-fund transfers for FY2019. (Maryn Belling)

Attachments
Schedule D from 2018 and 2019 Adopted Budgets
ARS 42-1710















   
ARF-5925   Regular Agenda Item     3. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Donna Demers, Purchasing Agent
Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Authorization to Publish Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous
Surplus Vehicles and Equipment.

Background Information
The County has the following miscellaneous surplus vehicles and
equipment that need to be sold:

2001 Chevy Tahoe (B-119), 2002 GMV Sierra 1500 (B-124), 2003 Chevy
Tahoe (B-134), 2000 Craftco SS125 Sureshot Crack Sealer Machine (S-3),
Cruise Car All American Series Golf Cart (GC-1), 1993 Chevy 1500 4x4
(A-162), 2000 Ford Explorer (A-335), 1997 Chevy Blazer S-10, 1981
Subaru SW, 1999 Nissan Pathfinder, 1999 Dodge Caravan, 1994 Dodge
Caravan, 2000 Chevy Cavalier, 1997 Dodge Caravan, 1990 Cadillac Sedan
De Ville, 2000 Chevy 2500 4x4 (B-091), 1979 Mack Dump Truck (C-010),
2001 Dodge 3500 Van (C-040), 1992 Chevy 3500 (C-045), 1989 Chevy
Dump Truck (C-063), 1980 White Western Star Dump Truck (C-075),
1995 Ford Taurus (A-184), 1987 Chevy Water Truck (C-057), 1998 Dodge
2500 Truck (AV009), 1987 Kenworth Truck (C-032), 2010 Ford Explorer
(B-184), 1992 Dodge Caravan (AV010), 2006 Chrysler Town Country Van
(A115), 1975 Wells Trailer (AV011), Bass Boat (AB-001), Crestliner
Aluminum Boat (AB-002), Grimmer Schmidt 190D Compressor (N-013),
NPK Hammer (AM-015), Hobart Welder (0-004), Dayton 5000Watt
Generator (L-025), Guardrail Posts (AM-016), Dump Bed (AM-005),
Spreader Box (AM-006), Cattle Guards (AM-007), Snow Plow (AM-008),
Loader Bucket (AM-009), Meeting Room (AM-011), Sweeper (AM-013),
Block and Tackle (A-001), 2 - Weatherguard Inside the Bed Toolbox
(ITBT-1 and ITBT-2), Coats Tire Machine (A002), Delta Across the Bed
Toolbox ( ATBT-2), 2-2 1/2 T Road Assy Lot ( MD-CL) 2 - Refrigerated
Connex Boxes (RC#1 and RC#2), Essick Concreate Mixer (CM-1), 2 - 10
Wheeler 12 Yard Dump Bed (DB#1 and DB#2), Fuel Storage Container
and Stand (FSC&S), Hendricks Walking Beam Suspension (HDTS-1),
Eaton 7 Speed Manual Transmission, (E7SP-1), Unknow Amount of Old



Eaton 7 Speed Manual Transmission, (E7SP-1), Unknow Amount of Old
Cable (CABLE-1), Fruehauf Box Trailer Axle Assembly (TAS-1), Old Burner
Box Pipes (BBP-L), 2 – JOBOX Across the bed Tool Boxes (ATBT-L),
Western P/U Snow Plow Attachment (SPA-1), 2 – Cinder Spreader Parts
(CSP-1 and CSP-2), 10 Hole 9.00-R20 Wheel (SW#1), 10 Hole 10.00-R22
Wheel (SW#2), 2 Sets of 4 – 6 Hole 10.00-15 Wheels (SOTW#1 and
SOTW#2).

Evaluation
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-251(9), the Gila County Board of Supervisors may
sell at public auction, after thirty days' previous notice is given by
publication in a newspaper of the County, any property belonging to the
County that the Board deems unnecessary for use by the County.

All interested parties are invited to bid on the miscellaneous surplus
material. Award will be conveyed to the highest bidder.

Conclusion
The public auction notice will be published in the Wednesday, March 18,
2020 edition of the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper.

Recommendation
The County Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the publication of a Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous
Surplus Material in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the publication of a Notice of
Public Auction for Miscellaneous Surplus Material in the Arizona Silver
Belt newspaper on March 18, 2020. (Mary Springer)

Attachments
Vehicle Live Auction List



Gila County Public Vehicle Live Auction 

 

To be held in Globe Arizona on Saturday April 18, 2020 at Russell Gulch Landfill, 5891 E Hope Lane. 

Preview 8:00 a.m. – 9:00 a.m. 

Auction begins at 9:30 a.m. 

 

The County has the following miscellaneous surplus vehicles and equipment: 

2001 Chevy Tahoe (B-119),  2002 GMV Sierra 1500 (B-124), 2003 Chevy Tahoe (B-134), 2000 Craftco 

SS125 Sureshot Crack Sealer Machine (S-3), Cruise Car All American Series Golf Cart (GC-1), 1993 Chevy 

1500 4x4 (A-162), 2000 Ford Explorer (A-335), 1997 Chevy Blazer S-10, 1981 Subaru SW, 1999 Nissan 

Pathfinder, 1999 Dodge Caravan, 1994 Dodge Caravan, 2000 Chevy Cavalier, 1997 Dodge Caravan, 1990 

Cadillac Sedan De Ville, 2000 Chevy 2500 4x4 (B-091), 1979 Mack Dump Truck (C-010), 2001 Dodge 3500 

Van (C-040), 1992 Chevy 3500 (C-045), 1989 Chevy Dump Truck (C-063), 1980 White Western Star Dump 

Truck (C-075), 1995 Ford Taurus (A-184), 1987 Chevy Water Truck (C-057), 1998 Dodge 2500 Truck 

(AV009), 1987 Kenworth Truck (C-032), 2010 Ford Explorer (B-184), 1992 Dodge Caravan (AV010), 2006 

Chrysler Town & Country Van (A115), 1975 Wells Trailer (AV011), Bass Boat (AB-001), Crestliner 

Aluminum Boat (AB-002), Grimmer Schmidt 190D Compressor (N-013), NPK Hammer (AM-015), Hobart 

Welder (0-004), Dayton 5000Watt Generator (L-025), Guard Rail Posts (AM-016), Dump Bed (AM-005), 

Spreader Box (AM-006), Cattle Guards (AM-007), Snow Plow (AM-008), Loader Bucket (AM-009), 

Meeting Room (AM-011), Sweeper (AM-013), Block and Tackle (A-001), 2 - Weatherguard Inside the Bed 

Toolbox (ITBT-1 and ITBT-2), Coats Tire Machine (A002), Delta Across the Bed Toolbox ( ATBT-2), 2 – 2 ½  

T Road Assy Lot ( MD-CL) 2 - Refrigerated Connex Boxes (RC#1 and RC#2), Essick Concreate Mixer (CM-

1), 2 – 10 Wheeler 12 Yard Dump Bed (DB#1 and DB#2), Fuel Storage Container and Stand (FSC&S), 

Hendricks Walking Beam Suspension (HDTS-1), Eaton 7 Speed Manual Transmission, (E7SP-1), Unknow 

Amount of Old Cable (CABLE-1), Fruehauf Box Trailer Axle Assembly (TAS-1), Old Burner Box Pipes (BBP-

L), 2 – JOBOX Across the bed Tool Boxes (ATBT-L), Western P/U Snow Plow Attachment (SPA-1), 2 – 

Cinder Spreader Parts (CSP-1 and CSP-2), 10 Hole 9.00-R20 Wheel (SW#1), 10 Hole 10.00-R22 Wheel 

(SW#2), 2 Sets of 4 – 6 Hole 10.00-15 Wheels (SOTW#1 and SOTW#2) 



   
ARF-5914   Regular Agenda Item     3. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Bradley Beauchamp, County Attorney 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2019-2020 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2015 -
September 30, 2021

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
DI16-002156)(IGA) with the Arizona Department of Economic Security
(ADES) for Title IV-D child support services in Gila County.

Background Information
On February 2, 2016, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved the
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Arizona Department of
Economic Security (ADES) for Title IV-D child support services in Gila
County.

Since 1992, Gila County has contracted with ADES to provide Title IV-D
child support services in Gila County through the Office of the Gila
County Attorney. The title IV-D child support program is a federal
program that reimburses states for providing child support services. In
Arizona, ADES contracts with the County to provide these services in Gila
County. Program costs are reimbursed by federal funds on the basis of
sixty-six cents for each dollar spent on the program. Additionally, because
the program also helps reimburse the federal government for monies
expended for welfare for needy families (TANF-Temporary Assistance to
Needy Families), the program receives a share of the money it saves in
federal welfare (SSRE). Finally, the program receives federal incentive
payments based upon paternity establishment, support order
establishment, collection of current support, arrears collection, and
cost-effectiveness.

Evaluation



Evaluation
Approving the amendment to this IGA will allow the Child Support
Division of the Gila County Attorney’s Office to continue providing child
support services to Gila County residents.

Conclusion
Approving the amendment to the IGA will allow Gila County to continue to
provide superior child support enforcement services to the people of Gila
County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve Amendment No. 3 to the IGA with ADES for the provision of Title
IV-D services in Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 3 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract ID # DI16-002156) with the
Arizona Department of Economic Security to extend the Title IV-D child
support services contract agreement from October 1, 2020, through
September 30, 2021. (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments
Amendment three - Contract DI16-002156
Amendment two - Contract D16-002156
Amendment one - Contract DI16-002156
ADES Agreement No. DI16-002156 IV-D Judicial Services



 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
ECONOMIC SECURITY 

1789 W. Jefferson, 4th Floor 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-2456 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

CONTRACTOR: Services Description: County Attorney 

Office of the Gila County Attorney 
1400 E Ash Street 
Globe, AZ  85501 

Agreement Number: DI16-002156 

Amendment Number: 3 
 
THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENT 
 

Pursuant to Provision Three (3), Term of Agreement. Section 3.2 Extension, the above referenced 
Agreement is hereby extended from October 01, 2020 through September 30, 2021.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXCEPT AS PROVIDED HEREIN, ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT SHALL REMAIN UNCHANGED AND 
IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECTS.  THE AMENDMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON THE DATE OF LAST SIGNATURE UNLESS 
OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN.  BY SIGNING THIS AGMENDMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CONTRACTOR, THE SIGNATORY 
CERTIFIES HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE CONTRACTOR TO THIS CONTRACT. 

Agency Name Name of Contractor 
Arizona Department of Economic Security  

Authorized Signature Authorized Signature 
  
Type Name Typed Name 

  
Title Title 
Chief Procurement Officer  

Date Date 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARS §11-952 THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY THE UNDERSIGNED WHO HAVE 
DETERMINED THAT THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT IS IN APPROPRIATE FORM AND WITHIN THE POWERS AND AUTHORITY 
GRANTED TO EACH RESPECTIVE PUBLIC BODY. 

ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE PUBLIC AGENCY LEGAL COUNSEL    
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL  
 
 
DATE 
 
 

DATE 

 

agooding
Typewritten Text
Woody Cline

agooding
Typewritten Text
Chairman of the Board

agooding
Typewritten Text
Gila County Attorney























































   
ARF-5912   Regular Agenda Item     3. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 20-03-02 to name two roads in Pine as West Dilly Way
and West Dally Lane.

Background Information
The owner of a 4.2 acre lot in Pine contacted the County Addressing
Department with a request to name two new roads that will service up to
16 residences on the property if built as designed. Mr. Pugel, the sole
property owner made the request as part of the Community Development
process and as the sole impacted property owner satisfies the 75%
threshold of Section 806.A of Gila County Street Naming and Property
Numbering Ordinance No. 11-03. The public notice was sent to the
property owner by registered mail with a dissention date of February 3,
2020. As of February 4th no dissenting responses had been received.

Evaluation
These roads branch off of North Old County Road in Pine between West
South Road and AZ Highway 87. The section is identified as T12N R8E
Section 36.

The original submittal to Community Development had the roads
identified as Dilly Way and Dally Way. To accommodate Section 804 of
the Addressing Ordinance to disambiguate similar-sounding names in the
same zip code Dally Way was changed to Dally Lane.

The site plan, area map, and public notice are attached.

Conclusion
Naming these roads in Pine is supported by Gila County Street Naming
and Property Numbering Ordinance Number 11-03.

Recommendation



The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 20-03-02 naming two roads in the Pine
area as West Dilly Way and West Dally Lane.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-03-02 to name
West Dilly Way and West Dally Lane in the Pine area. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 20-03-02
Public Notice
Location Map
Site Plan



After Recording Please Return to:  
Marian Sheppard - BOS 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-03-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA NAMING TWO NEW ROADS IN THE PINE 
AREA, ARIZONA AS WEST DILLY WAY AND WEST DALLY LANE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County Street 
Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 28, 
2011; and,  

 
WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of 
property numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the 
safety of Gila County residents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Article 8, Section 804, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 
limits name duplication within a zip code; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Article 8, Section 806, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 
provides guidelines for the renaming of existing named streets; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the following street names and locations substantially comply with the provisions 
of Article 8 of the Ordinance: 

 
WEST DILLY WAY – Section 36 T12N R10E 

WEST DALLY LANE – Section 36 T12N R10E 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 
officially recognize the street names set forth above to become effective in conjunction with the 
numbering of properties along said streets and directs the appropriate County departments to 
incorporate these names uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of March 2020, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 
 
Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________ ____________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk Woody Cline, Chairman 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_______________________________ 
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 



PUBLIC NOTICE 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila county Board of Supervisors will hold a 

public hearing for the naming of two unnamed roads in the Pine area.  

A development in the Pine area off of Old County Road has resulted in two new road name 

requests. As these roads are wholly contained on a single parcel of land with a single owner, the 

request is satisfied. After careful consideration from the Gila County Rural Addressing 

Department and property owners, W Dilly Way and W Dally Ln names will be sufficient for 

naming the particular roads.  

To file an objection to the proposed names, residents must file an alternative petition in writing 

to the Rural Addressing Department by Tuesday, February 3, 2020 at 5:00pm, per Gila County 

Street Naming Ordinance No. 11-03. Petitions can be obtained through the Rural Addressing 

Department upon request. 

The public hearing to name the road is scheduled for Tuesday, February 18th, 2020 at 10:00 

a.m., or thereafter, located at the Gila County Courthouse, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ. 

Inquiries and objections may be directed to: 

Tom Homan, GIS/Addressing Supervisor  

745 N Rose Mofford Way 

Globe, AZ  85501 

(928) 402-8597 
 

 
Proposed Road Names Highlighted 



AZ HIGHWAY 87

N MISTLETOE DR
W HARDSCRABBLE

MESA RD

W SOUTH RD

N OLD COUNTY RD

N 
PIN

E
CR

EE
K D

R
N 

PIN
E

CR
EE

K D
R

W TORRIE PINES LN

W RIMVIEW DR

W PINEWOOD LN

N WHISPERING PINES RD
W DILLY WY

N PINEW
OOD DR

N FAWN DR
E HARDSCRABBLE

MESA RD

W DALLY LN

N C
EM

ET
ER

Y R
D

W PINE HAV
EN DR

N 
LA

KE
VIE

W 
DR

W BRADSHAW DR

N PINEWOOD DR

N PINE CREEK DR

N JUNIPER TRL

N 
EA

ST
SID

E D
R

N PINE CREEK DR

W BUNNY HOLLOW ST

N 
WI

LD
ER

NE
SS

 TR
L

W ROBIN WAY

N OLD COUNTY RD

Dilly/Dally Road Naming ¯

Proposed RoadsProposed Roads





   
ARF-5917   Regular Agenda Item     3. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2020 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

03-10-20 to 06-30-20 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Award a Contract for Invitation for Bids No.
121819-Replacement of Three Sheriff's Office Patrol Vehicles

Background Information
The vehicles mentioned in the agenda request will be needed in the fleet in
the coming year for the Sheriff's Office for Patrol use. These vehicles
would replace units (B-116, B-121, and B-127) that are costing a lot of
money in repairs and fuel and are at or above 200,000 miles. Vehicles
(B-116, B-121, and B-127) will be used as a trade-in to prevent increasing
the size of the fleet and will be disposed of at auction.

On January 9, 2020, the Gila County Board of Supervisors authorized the
newspaper advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 121819 for the
replacement of three Sheriff's Office patrol vehicles.

Invitation for Bids No. 121819 was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt
on January 15, 2020, and January 22, 2020. All sealed bids were due on
February 5, 2020.

Evaluation
Sealed bids were accepted at the Gila County Finance Department
through 11:00 A.M., MST, on February 5, 2020. The Finance Department
received competitive bids from three vendors in response to Invitation for
Bids No. 121819.

McSpadden Ford met all bid specifications and offered the low bid price at
$65,145.83 per vehicle.



$65,145.83 per vehicle.

The vehicles mentioned in the agenda request will be needed in the fleet in
the coming year for the Sheriff's Office for Patrol use. These vehicles
would replace units (B-116, B-121, and B-127) that are costing a lot of
money in repairs and fuel and are at or above 200,000 miles. Vehicles
(B-116, B-121, and B-127) will be used as a trade in to prevent increasing
the size of the fleet and will be disposed of at auction.

Conclusion
The vehicles that will be purchased with this contract will be used by the
Sheriff's Office Patrol to replace older vehicles.

The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors award a contract to McSpadden Ford in the amount of
$195,437.49 for the purchase of three new Ford Expedition SSVs with
installed equipment as outlined in the McSpadden Ford proposal.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
award a contract to McSpadden Ford in the amount of $195,437.49 for
the purchase of three new Ford Expedition SSVs as specified in Invitation
for Bids No. 121819 with installed equipment as outlined in the
McSpadden Ford proposal.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation
for Bids No. 121819 to purchase three new Ford Expedition SSVs with
installed equipment; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified
bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for
the winning bidder. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Contract No. 121819
As Read Bid Results
McSpadden Ford-Sealed Bid
Larry H. Miller Ford Mesa-Sealed Bid
San Tan Ford-Sealed Bid











































































































































































































































   
ARF-5921   Regular Agenda Item     3. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2019 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

03-10-20 to 06-30-20 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award in Response to Invitation for Bids No. 121919 -
Replacement of One Sheriff's Office Vehicle.

Background Information
The vehicle mentioned in the agenda request will be needed in the fleet in
the coming year for the Sheriff's Office Department for Patrol use. This
vehicle would replace the unit (B-128) that is costing a lot of money in
repairs and fuel and is in excess of 200,000 miles accrued. Vehicle
(B-128) will be used as a trade in to prevent increasing the size of the fleet
and will be disposed of at auction.

On January 7, 2020, the Gila County Board of Supervisors authorized the
newspaper advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 121919 Replacement
of Three Sheriff's Office Patrol Vehicles.

Invitation for Bids No. 121919 was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt
newspaper on January 15, 2020, and January 22, 2020. Sealed bids were
due on February 4, 2020.

Evaluation
Sealed bids were accepted at the Gila County Finance Department
through 11:00 A.M., MST, on February 4, 2020. The Finance Department
received competitive bids from two vendors for Invitation for Bids No.
121919.



McSpadden Ford met all bid specifications and offered the low bid price at
$60,336.66 per vehicle.

The vehicle mentioned in the agenda request will be needed in the fleet in
the coming year for the Sheriff's Office Department for Patrol use. This
vehicle would replace the unit (B-128) that is costing a lot of money in
repairs and fuel and is in excess of 200,000 miles accrued. Vehicle
(B-128) will be used as a trade in to prevent increasing the size of the fleet
and will be disposed of at auction.

Conclusion
The vehicle that will be purchased with this contract will be used by the
Sheriff's Office Patrol officers to replace an older vehicle.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
award a contract to McSpadden Ford in the amount of $60,336.66 for the
purchase of one new Ford F250 with installed equipment as outlined in
the McSpadden Ford proposal.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation
for Bids No. 121919 to purchase one new Ford F250 crew cab, 4x4
pickup truck with installed equipment; award to the lowest, responsible
and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the
award contract for the winning bidder. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Contract No. 121919
As Read Bid Results
McSpadden Ford-Sealed Bid
Larry H. Miller Ford Mesa-Sealed Bid













































































































































































































   
ARF-5924   Regular Agenda Item     3. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2020 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

03-10-20 to 06-30-20 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award in Response to Invitation for Bids No. 121919-1 Three
New Ford Escape, 4 Door, AWD.

Background Information
The vehicles mentioned in the agenda request will be needed in the fleet in
the coming year for the motor pool use. These vehicles would replace
vehicles (A-115, A-162, and A-184) and (A-115, A-162, and A-184) will be
used as a trade in to prevent increasing the size of the fleet and will be
disposed of at auction.

On January 7, 2020, the Gila County Board of Supervisors authorized the
newspaper advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 121919-1-Three New
Ford Escape, 4 Door, SWDs. Invitation for Bids No. 121919-1 was
advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper on January 15, 2020, and
January 22, 2020. Sealed bids were due on February 6, 2020.

Evaluation
Sealed bids were accepted at the Gila County Finance Department
through 11:00 A.M., MST, on February 6, 2020. The Finance Department
received competitive bids from three vendors for Invitation for Bids No.
121919-1.

McSpadden Ford met all bid specifications and offered the low bid price at
$32,488.29 per vehicle.



The vehicles mentioned in the agenda request will be needed in the fleet in
the coming year for the motor pool use. These vehicles would replace
vehicles (A-115, A-162, and A-184) and (A-115, A-162, and A-184) will be
used as a trade in to prevent increasing the size of the fleet and will be
disposed of at auction.

Conclusion
The vehicles that will be purchased with this contract will be used by the
motor pool to replace older vehicles.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
award a contract to McSpadden Ford in the amount of $97,464.87 for the
purchase of three new Ford Escape, 4 Door, AWD vehicles as specified in
the McSpadden Ford proposal.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation
for Bids No. 121919-1 to purchase three new Ford Escape, 4 Door, AWD
vehicles; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning
bidder. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Contract No. 121919-1
As Read Bid Results
McSpadden Ford-Sealed Bid
Peoria Ford-Sealed Bid
San Tan Ford-Sealed Bid





































































































































































   
ARF-5918   Regular Agenda Item     3. K.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Director
Department: Public Works Division: Administration

Information
Request/Subject
To determine whether Fulton Ave., a portion of Central Ave., and the alley
in Block Eleven between Victor St. and Tremont St. shown on the Map of
South Globe, GCR Map 20 are necessary for public use as roadways and
alleyways. If they are not necessary for public use, then accept a Citizens'
Petition to begin the process to abandon Fulton Ave., a portion of Central
Ave., and the alley in Block Eleven between Victor and Tremont St. as
shown on the Map of South Globe, GCR Map 20.

Background Information
On August 28, 1909, at the request of F.L. Toombs, secretary of the East
Globe Land and Trust Co. the map of South Globe was recorded with Gila
County. The recording information is Plat 20, Gila County Records,
Territory of Arizona. The streets, alleys, and parks are shown on the map
were dedicated to the public. Fulton Ave., Central Ave. from the
intersection of Victor St. to Fulton have never been built and exists only
on paper. The alley in Block Eleven between Victor and Tremont serves no
public purpose.

Evaluation
The property between Fulton and Central is owned by the Tomerlin's. The
property between Central and Tremont is also owned by Tomerlin's. The
Shellenburger's own the property on the north side of Fulton.

Conclusion
Vacating this road will not deny anyone access to their property.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Director that the Board of



It is the recommendation of the Public Works Director that the Board of
Supervisors declare these roads not necessary for public use and accept a
Citizens' Petition to begin the process to abandon Fulton Ave., a portion of
Central Ave., and the alley in Block Eleven between Victor and Tremont
St. as shown on the Map of South Globe, GCR Map 20.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to declare Fulton Ave., a portion of
Central Ave., and the alley in Block Eleven between Victor St. and
Tremont St., as shown on the Map of South Globe, GCR Map 20, as not
being necessary for public use as roadways and alleyways; and accept a
Citizens' Petition to begin the process to abandon Fulton Ave., a portion of
Central Ave., and the alley in Block Eleven between Victor and Tremont
St. as shown on the Map of South Globe, GCR Map 20. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Petition
Map







   
ARF-5920   Regular Agenda Item     3. L.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2019-2020 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2016-2020 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 20-03-03 authorizing the execution of
Amendment No. Three to an Intergovernmental Agreement (JPA File No.
IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) with the Arizona Department of Transportation
(ADOT) for the bridge replacement project on Colcord Road east of Payson.

Background Information
On September 6, 2016, the Board adopted Resolution No. 16-09-02
authorizing the approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA
16-0005916-I) to replace the bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon
east of Payson in Gila County.  Gila County paid ADOT $6,054 which was
the County's 5.7% match for the scoping and design.

On May 9, 2017, the Board adopted Resolution No. 17-05-01 authorizing
the approval of Amendment No. One which added an additional $204,000
of Federal funds for scoping and design. Gila County paid ADOT $12,331,
which was the County's 5.7% match for the additional Federal funds
toward scoping and design.

On April 16, 2019, the Board adopted Resolution No. 19-04-01
authorizing the approval of Amendment No. Two which moved $65,000
from construction funds to design. This transfer of funds amounted to
$61,295 of Federal Funds and $3,705 of local funds.

Gila County recently requested and received $60,260 of Surface
Transportation Program (STP) funds from the Central Arizona
Governments (CAG) to be used for the construction of the project. The



Governments (CAG) to be used for the construction of the project. The
amount of $60,260 along with a local match of $4,740 will replace the
$65,000 that was transferred from the construction budget by action of
said Amendment No. Two.

Evaluation
The acceptance of the STP funds in the amount of $60,260 from CAG and
the agreement to participate with local funds in the amount of $4,740 will
reestablish the construction budget back to the amount that was in place
prior to said Amendment No. Two.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of the County to accept the STP funds and
contribute a portion of local funds to reestablish an adequate
construction budget for the project.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Gila County
Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 20-03-03 approving
Amendment No. Three to an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA
16-0005916-I) between the State of Arizona, Department of
Transportation, and Gila County for the reestablishment of the
construction funds in the amount of $65,000 of which was transferred
out to the design budget by acceptance of Amendment No. Two of said
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I).

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-03-03
authorizing the execution of Amendment No. Three to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) between Gila
County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, which is
related to the bridge replacement project on Colcord Road east of Payson.
(Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 20-03-03
Amendment No. Three
Amendment No. Two
Amendment No. One
JPA/IGA 16-0005916-I





When recorded please send to: 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-03-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AMENDMENT NO. THREE 
TO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) 
BETWEEN GILA COUNTY AND THE STATE OF ARIZONA, DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF A 
BRIDGE ON COLCORD ROAD OVER GORDON CANYON EAST OF PAYSON, 
ARIZONA 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of undertaking the design and 
construction of a bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon east of Payson, Arizona; and 
 
WHEREAS, on September 6, 2016, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 16-
09-02 authorizing the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) with 
regard to the design and construction of a bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 9, 2017, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 17-05-01 
authorizing Amendment No. One to IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I which revised the funding; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 16, 2019, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 19-04-01 
authorizing Amendment No. Two to IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I which revised the funding; and 
 
WHEREAS, Amendment No. Three to IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I revises the funding; and 
 
WHEREAS, an Intergovernmental Agreement or any subsequent amendment to the Intergovernmental 
Agreement requires a resolution of Gila County to authorize execution of the agreement; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Gila County Board of Supervisors authorizes the 
execution of Amendment No. Three to an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I) 
between Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, for the design and 
construction of a bridge on Colcord Road over Gordon Canyon east of Payson, Arizona. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of March 2020, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
______________________________ ________________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board Woody Cline, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
Gila County Attorney’s Office 



Page 1 of 5 
 

     ADOT File No.: IGA 16-0005916-I 
Amendment No. Three: 19-0007585-I 
AG Contract No.: P001 2016 002054 
Project Location/Name: Colcord Rd BR 
11465, .8 miles West of Chamberlin Trail 
Type of Work: Construct Bridge   
Federal-aid No.: GGI-0(215)T 
ADOT Project No.: T0087 01D/03D/01C 
TIP/STIP No.: GIL17-01D & GIL20-01C 
CFDA No.: 20.205 - Highway Planning and 
Construction 
Budget Source Item No.: N/A 

      
 

AMENDMENT NO. THREE 
TO 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

AND 
GILA COUNTY 

 
 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. THREE to INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (the “Amendment No. 
Three”), is entered into this date ______________________________, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes 
(“A.R.S.”) §§ 11-951 through 11-954, as amended, between the STATE OF ARIZONA, acting by and 
through its DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (the "State" or “ADOT”) and GILA COUNTY, acting 
by and through its CHAIRMAN and BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (the “County”). The State and the 
County are collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 
 
WHEREAS, the INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I, A.G. Contract No. 
P001 2016 002054, was executed on September 12, 2016, (the “Original Agreement”); IGA/JPA 16-
0005916-I Amendment No. One, executed on May 16, 2017, (the “Amendment No. One”); and 
IGA/JPA 16-0005916-I Amendment No. Two, executed on April 25, 2019, (the “Amendment No. 
Two”). 
 
WHEREAS, the State is empowered by A.R.S. § 28-401 to enter into this Amendment No. Three and 
has delegated to the undersigned the authority to execute this Amendment No. Three on behalf of 
the State;  
 
WHEREAS, the County is empowered by A.R.S. § 11-251 to enter into this Amendment No. Three 
and has by resolution, a copy of which is attached and made a part of, resolved to enter into this 
Amendment No. Three and has authorized the undersigned to execute this Amendment No. Three 
on behalf of the County; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms expressed herein, the purpose of 
this Amendment No. Three is to revise Project costs. The Parties desire to amend the 
Original Agreement, Amendment No. One, and Amendment No. Two, as follows: 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                IGA: 16-0005916-I 
                                                                                                                        Amendment No. Three: 19-0007585-I 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
I. RECITALS 
 
Section I. Paragraphs 4, 7, and 8 are revised, as follows: 
 

4. The County, in order to obtain federal funds for the design and/or construction of the Project, 
is willing to provide County funds to match federal funds in the ratio required or as finally 
fixed and determined by the County and FHWA.  The Federal funds expended on the Project 
are not to exceed $1,460,420.00. The County is responsible for, and agrees to pay, any and all 
actual costs exceeding the $1,460,420.00 threshold. 

 
7.  The federal funds will be used for the scoping/design and construction of the Project, 

including the construction engineering (CE) and administration costs. The estimated Project 
costs are as follows: 

 
T0087 03D (scoping/design): 
 
Federal-aid funds @ 94.3%     $     100,160.00 
County’s match @ 5.7%      $          6,054.00 
Federal-aid Off-System Bridge funds @ 94.3%   $     265,295.00 
County’s match @ 5.7%      $        16,036.00 
  
Subtotal – Scoping/Design*     $   387,545.00 
 
T0087 01C (construction): 
 
Federal-aid STP funds @ 94.3%     $      360,260.00 
County’s match @ 5.7%      $         21,776.00 
County’s contribution @ 100%     $         72,964.00 
Federal-aid Off-System Bridge funds @ 94.3%   $       734,705.00 
County’s match @ 5.7%      $         44,409.00 
 
Subtotal – Construction**     $1,234,114.00 
 
Total Estimated County Funds     $    161,239.00 
Total Federal Funds      $1,460,420.00 
 
Estimated TOTAL Project Cost     $1,621,659.00 
 
 * (Includes ADOT Project Development Administration (PDA) (formerly referred to as PMDR) 

Costs) 
**(Includes 15% CE (this percentage is subject to change, any change will require concurrence 

from the County) and 5% Project contingencies)  
 

Consistent with the Original Agreement, Amendment No. One, and Amendment No. Two, the County 
has been invoiced and paid $22,090.00 for the County’s share of PDA and design costs. 

8.  The parties acknowledge that the final Project costs may exceed the initial estimate(s) shown 
above, and in such case, the Federal Off-System Bridge funds expended on the project are not 
to exceed $1,000,000.00.  Any budget increasing scope change proposed by the County must 



                                                                                IGA: 16-0005916-I 
                                                                                                                        Amendment No. Three: 19-0007585-I 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

first be approved by the State or it will not be eligible for Federal funds. The County is 
responsible for, and agrees to pay, any and all actual costs exceeding the $1,000,000.00 
Federal Off-System Bridge funds and the $460,420.00 Federal Surface Transportation 
Program funds threshold. If the final bid amount is less than the initial estimate, the 
difference between the final bid amount and the initial estimate will be de-obligated or 
otherwise released from the Project. The County acknowledges it remains responsible for, 
and agrees to pay according to the terms of this Agreement, any and all actual costs 
exceeding the final bid amount if the final bid amount exceeds the sum of $1,460,420.00 
between the two federal funding sources. 

  
 
II. SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Section II, Paragraph 1.3. is revised, as follows: 
 

1. The State will: 
 
e.    After completion of design and prior to bid advertisement, invoice the County for the 

account PDA costs, as applicable, and the County’s share of the Project construction 
costs, estimated at $139,149.00.  After the Project costs for construction are finalized, 
the State will either invoice or reimburse the County for the difference between 
estimated and actual costs. De-obligate or otherwise release any remaining federal 
funds from the scoping/design phase of the Project. 

 
Section II, Paragraph 2.d. is revised, as follows: 
 

2. The County will: 
 
d.   After completion of design, within 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the State and 

prior to bid advertisement, pay to the State, any outstanding PDA costs and the County’s 
share of the Project construction costs, estimated at $139,149.00.  Be responsible for 
and pay the difference between the estimated and actual construction costs of the 
Project, within 30 days of receipt of an invoice. 

 
 
III. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
Section III, Paragraph 20. is revised, as follows: 
 

20. The Parties shall certify that all contractors comply with the applicable requirements of 
A.R.S. §35-393.01.  

 
EXCEPT AS AMENDED, ALL OTHER terms and conditions of the Original Agreement, Amendment 
No. One, and Amendment No. Two remain in full force and effect. 

 



                                                                                IGA: 16-0005916-I 
                                                                                                                        Amendment No. Three: 19-0007585-I 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. THREE shall become effective upon signing and dating of the 
Determination Letter by the State’s Attorney General. 
 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH A.R.S. § 11-952 (D) attached and incorporated in this Amendment No. 
Three is the written determination of each Party’s legal counsel that the Parties are authorized 
under the laws of this State to enter into this Amendment No. Three and that the Amendment No. 
Three is in proper form. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment No. Three the day and year 
first above written. 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
       WOODY CLINE 
       Chairman 

Board of Supervisors 

STATE OF ARIZONA 
Department of Transportation 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
       STEVE BOSCHEN, PE 
       Division Director 

  
ATTEST: 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
       MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
       Clerk 

Board of Supervisors 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                                                                IGA: 16-0005916-I 
                                                                                                                        Amendment No. Three: 19-0007585-I 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

ATTORNEY APPROVAL FORM FOR GILA COUNTY 

 

I have reviewed the above referenced Amendment No. Three to the Original Agreement, 

Amendment No. One, and Amendment No. Two between the State of Arizona, acting by and through 

its DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, and GILA COUNTY, an agreement among public agencies 

which, has been reviewed pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 11-951 through 11-954 and 

declare this Amendment No. Three to be in proper form and within the powers and authority 

granted to the County under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

No opinion is expressed as to the authority of the State to enter into this Amendment No. Three. 

 

_____________________________________________________            _________________________________ 
The Gila County Attorney’s Office                                             Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D44251D-01DA-4A21-BA53-EE0FA90A3797

April 25, 2019



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D44251D-01DA-4A21-BA53-EE0FA90A3797



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D44251D-01DA-4A21-BA53-EE0FA90A3797



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D44251D-01DA-4A21-BA53-EE0FA90A3797



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D44251D-01DA-4A21-BA53-EE0FA90A3797











DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A

May 16, 2017



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB6A2C11-04C4-494A-B449-A697C798D65A

























   
ARF-5915   Regular Agenda Item     3. M.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Verification of a petition submitted for the requested de-annexation of
properties from the boundaries of the Tri-City Regional Sanitary District
(TRSD).

Background Information
On February 7, 2020, a letter from William Clemmens, attorney for the
TRSD, was hand-delivered to the Clerk of the Board's office. The letter
was accompanied by a petition that was signed by property owners living
in the Vertical Heights area in Globe, Arizona, who wish for their
properties to be de-annexed from the boundaries of the TRSD. The letter
also informed the Clerk of the Board that per Arizona Revised Statute §
48-262 (A) (12), the Board of Supervisors must "determine the validity of
the petitions presented."

Evaluation
On February 11, 2020, the Clerk of the Board met with Steve Jenson,
Chief Deputy Assessor, to deliver the signed petitions for verification.
Attached to this agenda item is the Assessor's Office report regarding the
petition.

The Board of Supervisors must determine the validity of the petition. Once
that is done and per statute, the TRSD governing body shall set a day, at
least ten but not more than thirty days after that date, for a hearing on
the request.

Conclusion
The Assessor's Office has verified that all those who signed the petition
are owners of property in the Vertical Heights area (as listed by parcel
number on the petition) except for parcel number 205-01-013A. It was
determined that parcel number 205-01-013A is not within the taxing
authority boundaries of the TRSD, nor was it signed by the owner of that
parcel. The petition was signed by Patricia Holder and Mitchell Holder;



however, the property owner is listed as Cyprus Miami Mining
Corporation NKA Phelps Dodge Miami Inc. (now owned by Freeport
McMoRan Copper & Gold).

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors accept the report from
the Assessor's Office and take such action to validate that the signatures
match the owners of property as listed on the petition except for parcel
number 205-01-013A.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept a report from the Assessor's
Office regarding a petition signed by owners of property in the Vertical
Heights area of Globe, Arizona requesting to be de-annexed from the
boundaries of the Tri-City Regional Sanitary District (TRSD); and validate
that all signatures are owners of property for the respective listed parcel
numbers on the petition except for parcel number 205-01-013A which is
not within the taxing authority boundaries of the TRSD and not signed by
owners of the subject property. (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
Memo from Deputy Assessor re Assessor's Report
Assessor's Report
Letter & Signed Petitions Re the Tri-City Regional Sanitary District
A.R.S. 48-262





Account 
Number Parcel Number Owner Name Owner Address Line 1 Owner City Owner 

State Owner Zip Situs City Zip Code Tax 
Area

Legal 
Class  FCV  LPV  Secondary 

Taxable 
 Primary 
Taxable 

 Secondary Net 
Assessed 

 Primary Net 
Assessed Acres

R005098 20501013A
CYPRUS MIAMI MINING CORPORATION NKA, PHELPS 

DODGE MIAMI INC PO BOX 4444 CLAYPOOL AZ 85532 1317 N Pinal Creek RD Globe 85501 150 02.R  $                  858.00  $                  858.00  $              129  $          129  $                129  $              129 39.78

R005138 20501015H HOLDER MITCHELL R & PATRICIA PO BOX 840 TONTO BASIN AZ 85553 184 02.R  $                  696.00  $                  696.00  $              104  $          104  $                104  $              104 32.29

R005142 20501015J HOLDER MITCHELL R & PATRICIA PO BOX 840 TONTO BASIN AZ 85553 184 02.R  $                    73.00  $                    73.00  $                11  $            11  $                  11  $                11 3.39

R005146 20501015K GORDON DAVID & ODESSA PO BOX 1981 CLAYPOOL AZ 85532 159 W Vertical HTS Globe 85501 184 3.1  $           298,603.00  $           182,285.83  $         29,861  $     18,229  $           29,861  $         18,229 1.22

R005229 20501025J HAWKINS KRIS W PO BOX 1305 CLAYPOOL AZ 85532 1035 W Vertical HTS Globe 85501 184 3.1  $           216,976.00  $           138,611.47  $         21,698  $     13,861  $           21,698  $         13,861 4.87

R005241 20501025R LORENZEN J CHRIS TRUSTEE, LORENZEN TRUST
5236 W ARIZONA FARMS 

RD QUEEN CREEK AZ 85142 662 W Vertical HTS Globe 85501 184 4.1  $           129,316.00  $             96,088.20  $         12,932  $       9,609  $           12,932  $           9,609 4.9

R005245 20501025V BELARDE CHRIS 498 TEBBS ST GLOBE AZ 85501 Globe 85501 184 02.R  $             12,045.00  $             12,045.00  $           1,807  $       1,807  $             1,807  $           1,807 2

R005249 20501025Z LECOMPTE LARRY & BARBARA
1025 W VERTICLE 

HEIGHTS MIAMI AZ 85539 184 02.R  $             34,998.00  $             34,998.00  $           5,250  $       5,250  $             5,250  $           5,250 19.37

R005280 20501030C
MARSHALL WILLIAM R TRUSTEE, MARSHALL LIVING 

TRUST PO BOX 2714 CLAYPOOL AZ 85532 863 W Vertical HTS Globe 85501 184 3.1  $           142,392.00  $             88,842.57  $         14,239  $       8,884  $           14,239  $           8,884 9.74

R005284 20501031D MANGUM JEFFREY D & LINDA C 971 VERTICAL HEIGHTS MIAMI AZ 85539 971 W Vertical HTS Globe 85501 184 3.1  $           307,415.00  $           238,182.09  $         30,742  $     23,818  $           30,742  $         23,818 8.87

R005300 20501045A POARCH CODY W & TIFFANY A
1076 W VERTICAL 

HEIGHTS MIAMI AZ 85539 1076 W Vertical Heights Miami 85539 184 4.1  $           174,282.00  $           105,887.61  $         17,429  $     10,589  $           17,429  $         10,589 1.22

R005304 20501045B BROWN JOHN F JR & LORA 1050 E SOUTH ST GLOBE AZ 85501 1077 W Vertical Heights Globe 85501 184 3.1  $           101,746.00  $             62,213.26  $         10,174  $       6,221  $           10,174  $           6,221 1.22

R005329 20501048F TWOHEY JAMES T PO BOX 516 CLAYPOOL AZ 85532 184 02.R  $                  998.00  $                  670.05  $              150  $          101  $                150  $              101 0.96

R005333 20501048G TWOHEY JAMES T PO BOX 516 CLAYPOOL AZ 85532 649 W Vertical HTS Globe 85501 184 3.1  $             91,731.00  $             59,358.02  $           9,173  $       5,936  $             9,173  $           5,936 3.27

R005376 20501053B BELARDE KRIS L AND ESTELLA K 498 TEBBS ST GLOBE AZ 85501 516 W Vertical HTS Globe 85501 184 02.R  $             23,184.00  $             23,184.00  $           3,478  $       3,478  $             3,478  $           3,478 6.92

R005396 20501070A LECOMPTE LARRY D & BARBARA A
1025 W VEERTICLE 

HEIGHTS MIAMI AZ 85539 1025 W Vertical HTS Globe 85501 184 3.1  $           689,084.00  $           437,032.61  $         68,909  $     43,703  $           68,909  $         43,703 10

R037706 20501027A HOLBERT RANDY & DONNA K 14131 BERNAX AVE SYLMAR CA 91342 658 W Vertical Heights Globe 85501 184 3.1  $             80,818.00  $             65,216.46  $           8,081  $       6,522  $             8,081  $           6,522 10

R037708 20501027B HOLBERT RANDY & DONNA K 14131 BERNAX AVE SYLMAR CA 91342 Globe 85501 184 02.R  $               4,360.00  $               4,360.00  $              654  $          654  $                654  $              654 2.36

R037714 20501046B BAACK PATTY TRUSTEE, BAACK LIVING TRUST 998 W VERTICAL HTS MIAMI AZ 85539 998 W Vertical HTS Miami 85539 184 3.1  $           124,616.00  $             80,845.75  $         12,462  $       8,085  $           12,462  $           8,085 7.18

Indicates a parcel that is not located in the Taxing Authority's boundaries and/or is not owned by the owner that signed the peition to be removed. All others have been verified through ownership verification, property addresss and mailing address when possible. 



























   
ARF-5941   Regular Agenda Item     3. N.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager/Librarian
Department: Deputy County Mgr/Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Proposed comments on the Tonto National Forest Draft Land Management
Plan and Draft Environmental Impact Statement

Background Information
The Tonto National Forest has opened a 90-day comment period regarding
the Draft Land Management Plan and Draft Environmental Impact
Statement, which will close on March 12, 2020. The draft forest plan
reflects changes in social, economic and ecological conditions since the
current plan was approved in 1985. It is intended to outline the strategic
management for 2.9 million acres of the national forest for the next 10 to
15 years and reflects input from local agencies, tribes, community
members and many others.

The Tonto Forest began revising the Forest Plan in 2014, using the 2012
Planning Rule for the National Forest System.

Evaluation
The Tonto National Forest comprises approximately 56% of the land area
within Gila County.

Every decision on the forest land affects the residents of Gila County in
some way. Staying engaged in the forest planning process helps to ensure
that the issues and concerns that are important to Gila County and the
residents are included in the discussion and final plan.

Conclusion
Since the Tonto Forest Plan will affect the local residents, visitors, and
government agencies that provide services, it is important to remain
actively engaged in the process by providing comments throughout the
process. The comments provided at this phase of the plan revision
process will be considered part of the public record on this matter and
will ensure that Gila County continues to be kept informed as the process



continues.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors issue official comments
to the Tonto National Forest on the Tonto Draft Land Management Plan,
and Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS).

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider issuing official comments from
the Board of Supervisors to the Tonto National Forest on the Tonto
National Forest Draft Land Management Plan and Draft Environmental
Impact Statement. (Jacque Sanders)

Attachments
Draft Gila County Comments



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

James Menlove  

County Manager 

(928) 402-4344 

jmenlove@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

 

Marian Sheppard, 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

(928) 402-8757 

msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov 

  
 
 

 

GILA COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

1400 E. Ash Street 

Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

Tommie C. Martin, District I 

610 E. Hwy 260, Payson, 85547 

(928) 474-7100 

tmartin@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

Tim R. Humphrey District II 

(928) 425-3231 

 thumphrey@gilacountyaz.gov  
 

Woody Cline, District III 

(928) 402-4401 

 wcline@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
 
 

 

March 11, 2020 
 
Tonto National Forest Plan Revision 
2324 E. McDowell Road  
Phoenix 85006  
 
Electronic filing: https://cara.ecosystem-management.org/Public//CommentInput?Project=51592 
 
Re: Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592 
 
 
Dear Responsible Official; 
 
Gila County would like to offer comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592. 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 
Gila County is located in central Arizona beneath the Mogollon Rim that marks the southern edge of the 
Colorado Plateau.  
 
An overwhelmingly large proportion of the land area of Gila County is designated as national forests, 
federal, state or tribal land, and/or under federal or state management. In Gila County the Forest 
Service controls 55% of the land; Tribal Authorities and the Bureau of Indian Affairs 40%; the State of 
Arizona 1%; and, individual or corporate ownership only 4%. This means that Gila County must provide 
civil services such as safety, rescue, education, health, etc. to 100% of its area based on only a 4% 
taxable basis. 

 
Consequently, outdoors recreational activities conducted on national forests lands, such as, but not 
limited to dispersed camping, cross-country motorized travel, camping, big game hunting, dispersed 
shooting, boating, dispersed fishing or hiking, etc. by residents of, and visitors to the County recreating 
from metro Arizona to the Rim Country, have a disproportionately large impact on the economic well-
being and the economic development of the County. 
 
Therefore, Gila County has a special interest in the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592 and 
would like to express its comments and concerns as follows. 

mailto:tmartin
mailto:mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov
https://cara.ecosystem-management.org/Public/CommentInput?Project=51592


 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 2 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

PREVIOUS REQUEST BY GILA COUNTY FOR COORDINATION – FAILURE OF 
TONTO NF TO COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF 36 CFR 219.4 
(b)(1). 
 
Per the requirements contained in the 2012 Planning Rule, Title 36 — Parks, Forests, And Public 
Property, Part 219 — Planning, Subpart A — National Forest System Land Management Planning, 
Section 4 - Requirements for public participation, sub section (b) Coordination with other public planning 
efforts, Gila County expects that: “The responsible official shall coordinate land management planning 
with the equivalent and related planning efforts of federally recognized Indian Tribes, Alaska Native 
Corporations, other Federal agencies, and State and local governments” (36 CFR 219.4 (b)(1)). 
 
Gila County further expects that: “The results of this review shall be displayed in the environmental 
impact statement (EIS) for the plan”, and that “this review shall include consideration of: (i) The 
objectives of federally recognized Indian Tribes, Alaska Native Corporations, other Federal agencies, and 
State and local governments, as expressed in their plans and policies; (ii) The compatibility and 
interrelated impacts of these plans and policies; (iii) Opportunities for the plan to address the impacts 
identified or to contribute to joint objectives; and (iv) Opportunities to resolve or reduce conflicts, 
within the context of developing the plan's desired conditions or objectives” (36 CFR 219.4 (b)(2)). 
 
On January 9, 2018, Gila County filed the Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest’s 
Preliminary Proposed Land and Resource Management Plan (Appendix A) and formally requested the 
coordination review under 36 CFR 219.4 (b)(1): 

“Per the requirements of 36 CFR 219.4 (b)(2), 40 CFR 1502.16(c) and 40 CFR 1506.2 Gila County 
hereby requests that the results of the consistency review and coordination actions between the 
Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan and the Gila County objectives as expressed in its 
plans and policies shall be displayed in the Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement For The 
Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan” (Appendix A, Part 3) 

 
On February 2, 2018, Gila County filed the Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest’s 
Wilderness Recommendation Process (Appendix B) and again formally requested coordination between 
the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan and the Gila County objectives under 36 CFR 219.4 
(b)(1). 
 
These statutory requirements are meant by the US Congress to imply more than a perfunctory review 
process resulting in a check mark in a ‘coordination box.’ They imply a sincere and proactive resolution 
effort to reduce and resolve potential conflicts between aspects of the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan and objectives expressed in the County plans and policies; such as, but not limited to, 
those relevant to reasonable allowance of motorized travel in and motorized access to the Tonto 
National Forest; and rural economic development and employment relying on natural resources such 
timber, grazing or mineral resources located within the Tonto National Forest. 
 
To this day, March 11, 2020, the Tonto National Forest has failed to undertake any coordination action 
between the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan and the Gila County objectives as expressed 
in the Gila County January 9, 2018 filing. 
 
Gila County urgently requests that the Tonto National Forest immediately undertake the legally required 
coordination actions between the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan and the Gila County 
objectives as expressed in the Gila County January 9, 2018 filing. 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 3 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

GILA COUNTY’S CONCERNS OVER TONTO NF COMPLIANCE WITH 
MULTIPLE USE SUSTAINED YIELD ACT (MUSYA) (16 U.S.C. 528 et SEQ.) 
 
Passed in 1960, the Multiple Use Sustained Yield Act (MUSYA) (16 U.S.C. 528 et seq.) requires that the 
national forests be managed for multiple use and sustained yield of five equally important natural 
resource objectives:  

1. recreation,  
2. range,  
3. timber,  
4. watershed,  
5. wildlife,  

with no resource taking precedence over any other: “It is the policy of the Congress that the national 
forests are established and shall be administered for outdoor recreation, range, timber, watershed, and 
wildlife and fish purposes” (16 U.S.C. § 528).  
 
Further, “The Secretary of Agriculture is authorized and directed to develop and administer the 
renewable surface resources of the national forests for multiple use and sustained yield of the several 
products and services obtained therefrom. In the administration of the national forests due 
consideration shall be given to the relative values of the various resources in particular areas” (16 U.S.C. 
§ 529). 
 
Gila County is concerned that the Tonto NF is not giving due consideration to the relative values of the 
various resources in particular areas. Specifically, Gila County is concerned that the Tonto National 
Forest Plan Revision #51592 is biased toward what the Tonto NF defines as “Natural Forces.” 
 

Opposition to Alternative C – Natural Forces Predominant 
 
Alternative C was developed to reduce human impacts on the forest. This alternative emphasizes 
primitive recreation opportunities, increased protections to natural resources, use of natural processes 
for restoration, limiting some aspects of grazing, and prioritizing natural resources over some economic 
development opportunities 
 
Gila County believes that Alternative C violates the requirements of 16 U.S.C. § 529 that requires that 
“due consideration shall be given to the relative values of the various resources in particular areas.” 
 
Specifically, Gila County strenuously opposes: 

 The reduction of grazing opportunities in the Tonto NF; 
 The reduction of timber harvesting in the Tonto NF; 
 The retirement of grazing permits in the Tonto NF; 

Conversely, Gila County strongly supports: 
 The increase of recreation opportunities in the Tonto NF; 
 The increase of natural resources harvesting and exploitation opportunities in the Tonto NF; 
 The increase of controlled burns for fuel reduction in the Tonto NF; 
 The increase of forest restoration fuels reduction treatments in the Tonto NF; 
 The increase of watershed restoration and preservation treatments in the Tonto NF; 
 The increase of invasive species treatments in the Tonto NF. 

 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 4 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

Additionally, Alternative C could have negative effects on the management of the Salt River Horses by 
preventing access to manage the herd. Depending on what management tools and methods are 
identified by the collaborative working group, in the intergovernmental agreement, and in the Salt River 
horse herd management plan, alternative C could complicate and restrict access to certain areas.  
 
In consequence, Gila County stands in strict opposition to Alternative C. 
 

Opposition to additional wilderness and special designations or 
recommendations under Alternative B Proposed Action - Draft Forest Plan 
 
As discussed in detail in the February 2, 2018, Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest’s 
Wilderness Recommendation Process (Appendix B), hereby incorporated by reference, a 
disproportionate area of Gila County is already designated as Tonto NF Wilderness Areas 
 
Gila County has a total area of 4,795 square miles (3,068,800 acres), of which 4,758 square miles 
(3,045,120 acres) are land and 38 square miles are water. The Tonto National Forest, the largest of the 
six national forests in Arizona and the fifth largest national forest in the United States, has a total area of 
4,489 square miles (2,873,200 acres), of which 1,700,928 acres are located within Gila County. This 
represents 55.42% of the entire County area, in which the Forest Service imposes a number of multiple 
uses and access restrictions as well as economic development limitations. 
 
Further, the eight federally designated wilderness areas within (or partially within) the Tonto National 
Forest (Four Peaks Wilderness; Hellsgate Wilderness; Mazatzal Wilderness; Pine Mountain Wilderness; 
Salome Wilderness; Salt River Canyon Wilderness; Sierra Ancha; and, Superstition Wilderness) occupy 
approximately 590,000 acres in Gila County. This represents 35% of the Tonto NF located within Gila 
County; 21% of the entire Tonto NF; or, more significantly, approximately 19% of the entire County area 
that are subjected to a complete prohibition of economic development and severe limitations of access 
and multiple uses. 
 
It is the position of Gila County that none of the proposed new wilderness areas contain natural features 
unique enough to justify increasing the area of designated wildernesses and practically eliminating 
multiple uses opportunities over more than the current fifth of the County total area already 
designated.  
 
Similarly, Gila County is opposed to the recommendation of vast tracks of public lands in the Tonto NF 
for potential new wilderness designation, because the mere recommendation will automatically trigger 
reductions in multiple uses, as if a designation was made, for an unspecified duration, even if Congress 
never designates the land as a wilderness area.  
 
Further, considering that an area can remain in recommended status indefinitely, the mere 
recommendation process has for all practical purposes the same effect on multiple uses restrictions as a 
designation. In fact, “any recommended wilderness areas will have management direction included in 
the revised forest plan. The plan direction developed for the recommended wilderness areas will protect 
the characteristics which make the area suitable for potential wilderness designation by Congress” 
https://usfs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=fa64c3221fd84517b1d406ff24746170 
 
Gila County therefore opposes under 16 U.S.C. § 529 the designation under Alternative B Proposed 
Action - Draft Forest Plan of: 
 

https://usfs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=fa64c3221fd84517b1d406ff24746170


 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 5 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 43,206 acres in 11 areas of recommended wilderness. 
 3,590 acres Horseshoe Proposed Botanical Area. 
 22,920 acres Three Bar Proposed Research Natural Area. 

 
Gila County believes that the designation of Fossil Springs Proposed Botanical Area (9 acres), Little Green 
Valley Fen Proposed Botanical Area (21 acres), Mesquite Wash Proposed Botanical Area (10 acres), 
Dutchwoman Butte Proposed Research Natural Area (86 acres), Picketpost Mountain Proposed Research 
Natural Area (1,261 acres), and Upper Forks Parker Creek Proposed Research Natural Area (1,441 acres) 
satisfy the due consideration owed to the relative values of the “Natural Forces” under 16 U.S.C. § 529, 
in addition to the already existing 590,000 acres occupied in Gila County by federally designated 
wilderness areas. 
 
In consequence, Gila County stands in strict opposition to any new wilderness or any other special 
botanical or research area, or similar, designation or recommendation in the Tonto National Forest, 
other than the projects listed by name in the above paragraph. 
 

Opposition to additional wild and Scenic River  designations or eligibility 
under all Alternatives, including Alternative B Proposed Action - Draft Forest 
Plan 
 
All Alternatives, including Alternative B Proposed Action - Draft Forest Plan, include 20 eligible wild and 
scenic rivers with plan components developed to maintain their outstanding remarkable values: 

1. Arnett Creek / Telegraph Canyon - Recreational (3.5 miles) 
2. Cold Spring Canyon - Wild (1.7 miles) 
3. Devil’s Chasm - Wild (2.5 miles) 
4. Dude Creek - Recreational (3.2 miles) 
5. Fish Creek - Wild (3 miles), Scenic (2.7 miles) 
6. Greenback Creek - Scenic (5 miles) 
7. Lime Creek - Scenic (7.9 miles) 
8. Canyon Creek - Recreational (7.2 miles) 
9. Lower Salt River - Recreational (13.2 miles) 
10. Lower Tonto Creek - Scenic (3 miles) 
11. Pine Creek - Recreational (2.6 miles) 
12. Pueblo Canyon - Wild (1.7 miles) 
13. Reno Creek - Scenic (3.5 miles) 
14. Salome Creek - Wild (8.5 miles) 
15. Squaw Creek - Scenic (5.3 miles) 
16. Tangle Creek - Scenic (7 miles), Recreational (2.6 miles) 
17. Upper Salt River - Wild (27.9 miles), Scenic (13.8 miles) 
18. Upper Tonto Creek - Scenic (21.6 miles) 
19. Verde River - Wild (9.3 miles), Scenic (1.4 miles) 
20. Workman Creek - Recreational (2.3 miles) 

 
While Gila County supports management designed to preserve the character of these rivers, the County 
also believes that formal designation or recommendations are not necessary to implement appropriate 
management actions, and create unnecessary constraints such as "scenic easement" that can be used to 
negate multiple use such as grazing or recreation under the Multiple Use Sustained Yield Act. 
 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 6 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

In consequence, Gila County opposes the designation of eligible Wild and Scenic River in the Tonto NF in 
addition to the Fossil Creek and Verde River already designated. 
 

Opposition to additional inventoried roadless areas under all Alternatives, 
including Alternative B Proposed Action - Draft Forest Plan 
 
All alternatives have thirteen inventoried roadless areas. Inventoried roadless areas contribute to social 
sustainability by providing opportunities for dispersed recreation, opportunities that diminish as open 
space and natural settings area developed elsewhere.  
 
Motorized uses are restricted to existing open roads and motorized trails, and no new roads would be 
constructed in these areas. However, motorized trails may be considered if consistent with the travel 
management plan. 
 
Gila County opposes the designation of additional inventoried roadless areas in addition to the thirteen 
existing inventoried roadless areas. 
 

Support for Alternative D – Human Forces Predominant 
 
Alternative D was developed to provide easier access and multiple use opportunities on the Tonto 
National Forest. Alternative D provides more accessible recreation opportunities, has fewer restrictions 
on land uses including no additional recommended wilderness acres, and emphasizes active restoration 
techniques to achieve desired conditions and provides for more economic opportunities on the forest 
including grazing and mining. 
 
Gila County believes that Alternative D best meets the requirements of 16 U.S.C. § 529 that requires that 
“due consideration shall be given to the relative values of the various resources in particular areas.” 
 
In consequence, Gila County strongly supports Alternative D. 
 

FAILURE OF TONTO NF TO COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 
MULTIPLE USE SUSTAINED YIELD ACT (MUSYA) (16 U.S.C. § 530) 
 
The Multiple Use Sustained Yield Act (MUSYA) (16 U.S.C. § 530) requires cooperation with local 
government: “In the effectuation of sections 528 to 531 of this title the Secretary of Agriculture is 
authorized to cooperate with interested State and Local Governmental agencies and others in the 
development and management of the national forests” (16 U.S.C. § 530). 
 
As expressed earlier, to this day, March 11, 2020, the Tonto National Forest has failed to undertake any 
requested action to cooperate with Gila County in the development and management of the Tonto 
national forest. 
 
Gila County urgently requests that the Tonto National Forest immediately undertake the legally required 
cooperation with Gila County in the development and management of the Tonto National Forest Plan 
Revision #51592. 
 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 7 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

GILA COUNTY’S ADDITIONAL CONCERNS WITH ALTERNATIVE B 
PROPOSED ACTION - DRAFT FOREST PLAN 
 

Vegetation and Wildland Fire 
 
Gila County is concerned that Alternative B is proposing to treat as much as 325,000 acres over a 10-
year period with fire, assuming about 22% prescribed fire. 
 
As much as Gila County supports fuels reduction treatments, recent extensive use of fire as a first entry 
treatment is revealing a collateral issue with the lack of funding for post-fire Burned Area Emergency 
Response (BAER).  
 
One of the unintended consequences of the extensive use of fire managed for resources benefits, and 
the lack of post-fire rehabilitation Forest Service actions, is a gradual shift of post-fire financial liability to 
local governments which are not funded to undertake the slope stabilization, flood control, soil erosion 
control, and watershed preservation efforts, infrastructure replacement and road rehabilitation. 
 
Gila County requests that the Forest Service provides in the final EIS a specific analysis of the cost to 
local governments of the treatments of up to 325,000 acres over a 10-year period with fire, assuming 
about 22% prescribed fire, and a mitigation plan for such cost. 
 

Rangeland Management 
 
Gila County support the evaluation of vacant allotments until there are no vacant allotment, but the 
County also believes that this process should be completed as soon as possible and not be limited to one 
allotment every two years. 
 
Additionally, Gila County believes that the priority outcome should be a grant available allotments to 
current or new permittees, and that the second option should be a conversion to forage reserves to 
improve resource management flexibility. 
 
In any case, Gila County opposes the closure to permitted grazing, in whole or in part, of vacant 
allotments, even if there may be a temporary lack of market demand for the permit, as markets 
rebound and a permanent closure would violate the requirements of 16 U.S.C. § 529. 
 
Finally, Gila County strongly supports grazing in the Sonoran Desert along with all other management 
units and biological zones within the Tonto National Forest. 
 
 

Summary 
 
Gila County urgently requests that the Tonto National Forest immediately undertake the legally required 
coordination actions between the Tonto National Forest and the County to perform a consistence 
review between, and coordinate the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan and the Gila County 
objectives as expressed in the Gila County January 9, 2018 filing and hereby attached in Appendix A, per 
36 CFR 219.4 (b)(1); and to initiate active cooperate with Gila County in the development and 
management of the Tonto national forests per 16 U.S.C. § 530. 
 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 8 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 
 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
________________________________________  ____________________ 
Woody Cline 
Chairman of the Board      Date 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
________________________________________  ____________________ 
Marian E. Sheppard  
Clerk of the Board      Date 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
  



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 9 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

Appendix A - Gila County comments on the  
Tonto National Forest’s  

Preliminary Proposed Land and Resource Management 
Plan - January 9, 2018 

 
 
January 9, 2018 
 
Tonto National Forest 
Tonto Plan Revision 
2324 E. McDowell Road  
Phoenix 85006  
 
Electronic filing: tontoplan@fs.fed.us 
 
Re: Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest’s Preliminary Proposed Land and Resource 
Management Plan. 
 
 
Dear Responsible Official; 
 
Gila County would like to offer comments on the Tonto National Forest’s Preliminary Proposed Land and 
Resource Management Plan. 
 

PART 1 - GILA COUNTY OBJECTIVES AS EXPRESSED IN ITS PLANS AND 
POLICIES 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 
Gila County is located in central Arizona beneath the Mogollon Rim that marks the southern edge of the 
Colorado plateau. Six characteristics of Gila County are particularly relevant to the Preliminary Proposed 
Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan: 
 

1) The large number of National Forests located in the County and its neighboring Arizona 
counties: Tonto National Forest, Prescott National Forest, Coconino National Forest, Apache 
National Forest, Sitgreaves National Forest and Coronado National Forest. 
 

2) The overwhelmingly large proportion of the land area of Gila County being designated as 
national forests, federal, state or tribal land, and/or under federal or state management. In Gila 
County the Forest Service controls 55% of the land; Tribal Authorities and the Bureau of Indian 
Affairs 40%; the State of Arizona 1%; and, individual or corporate ownership only 4%. 
 

3) The disproportionately large impact that landscape scale catastrophic wildfires in the national 
forests of the Southwest have had on the ecological, social and economic life of the County and 
neighboring eastern Arizona counties. Four of the five largest wildfires in Arizona, which 

mailto:tontoplan@fs.fed.us


 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 10 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

includes two of the largest wildfires in the nation, have occurred within Gila County and its 
neighboring counties in the last decade: the Rodeo Chediski fire of 2002 that consumed 460,000 
acres; the Willow Fire of 2004 that burned 120,000 acres; the Cave Creek Complex fire of 2005 
that blazed through 244,000 acres; and, the Wallow fire of 2011 that charred 538,000 acres. 
Prior to these recent fires, the deadly Dude Fire of 1990, while burning ‘only’ 24,000 acres, was 
the largest forest fire in modern Arizona times.  It destroyed 60 homes, caused the evacuation 
of 1,100 people, and -- worst of all -- killed 6 firefighters. 
 

4) The disproportionately large impact that outdoors recreational activities conducted on national 
forests lands, such as, but not limited to, dispersed camping, cross-country motorized travel, big 
game hunting, dispersed shooting, dispersed fishing or hiking, etc. by local residents of, and 
visitors to the County recreating from metro Arizona to the Rim Country, have on the economic 
well-being and the economic development of the County. 
 

5) The steady reliance of Gila County residents on firewood cutting and gathering permits, and 
dispersed firewood access in the local national forests for meeting their energy needs. 
 

6) The outstanding and continued requirement for and commitment by the County to proactively 
participate in and assume leadership roles in forest and watershed restoration and wildfire 
prevention and mitigation efforts at local and landscape scales, such as the White Mountain 
Stewardship Project and the Four Forest Restoration Initiative that the County has been 
instrumental in creating and fostering. 

 
As such, Gila County has a special interest in the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest 
Land Management Plan.  
 
While Gila County recognizes that it is only one of the many constituents of the U.S. Forest Service, and 
does not seek special consideration in the current comments and review process, we urge the 
Responsible Official to pay careful attention and give due consideration to the following comments in 
view of the uncommonly large effect that Forest Service land management decisions regularly have 
directly, or may occasionally have indirectly, on the County residents or visitors enjoyment, custom, 
culture, health, safety and economic well-being. 
 
Gila County is actively involved in and assumes a leadership role in several forest restoration efforts 
directly involving the Tonto National Forest, and has gained considerable experience working with the 
Forest Service. Gila County, therefore, understands particularly well the issues at hand, the management 
processes engaged, the desired future conditions, and the difficulties and challenges involved. Gila 
County appreciates fully the Tonto National Forest’s intent to ensure an adaptive land management 
planning process that is inclusive, efficient, collaborative and science-based to promote healthy, 
resilient, diverse and productive national forests and grasslands; to support natural resources-based 
rural economic development and employment; and, to insure the enjoyment of the Tonto National 
Forest by the current and future generations in a balanced approach of preservation, conservation and 
sustainable exploitation of the natural resources. 
 
In a spirit of continuous improvement, and based on the direct practitioner knowledge and experience 
gained through a uniquely long, diverse, often productive and sometimes difficult participation in the 
Forest Service planning and implementation processes, Gila County would like to share its comments, its 
appreciation for the obvious work put into the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan and its 
Preliminary Proposed Plan, and its concerns and suggestions as follows. 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 11 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 

PRELIMINARY COMMENT 
 
Gila County would like to preface any subsequent comment by the observation that the quality and 
thoroughness of the work exhibited in both the Assessment for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan, and the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest is outstanding. Gila 
County is fully conscious of the fact that an enormous commitment was made and delivered upon by 
the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan team, and that a legitimate pride of ownership must 
rest with the authors of the above mentioned documents as well as other documents not published with 
the Preliminary Proposed Plan but nonetheless part of the project record. 
 
Gila County urges the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan team to consider the County 
comments NOT as a critic of their work, but as a goodwill effort toward continuous improvement of the 
Preliminary Proposed Plan, and a proactive effort by the County to disclose its objectives, plans and 
policies AND THE RATIONALES THAT SUPPORT THEM, and to facilitate the statutorily required 
consistency review, coordination action and conflict reduction regarding potential discrepancies 
between the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan and the County objectives as expressed in its 
plans and policies and as discussed in this document. 
 

ASSESSMENT & LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN: ROLE OF GILA COUNTY  
 
Gila County recognizes that the Assessment and Land Management Plan development are Forest 
Service-driven technical processes, and Gila County generally supports the analysis mechanisms 
deployed by the Tonto National Forest to complete the assessment and the technical part of the 
management planning. 
 
Although Gila County retains and employs many talented individuals at the peak of the knowledge curve 
in their respective fields, Gila County does not generally define its role in the public lands management 
process as a role of science provider or resources technical specialist. Rather, as a political body 
representing the most direct and local expression of democratic government at the individual district or 
national forest level, Gila County more generally defines its role at the policy-making level as it relates to 
public lands management processes.  
 
Therefore, although several of the following comments organized under the following headers do apply 
to the assessment and land management plan development processes, they purposefully do not address 
specific technical mechanisms thereof, and Gila County is generally satisfied that the USFS methodology 
is generally satisfactory, and that the studies that the Tonto National Forest, in their expertise, deem 
reliable, are adequate to support the Tonto National Forest technical conclusions (Lands Council v. 
McNair 537 F.3d 981 - 9th Cir. 2008).  
 
Gila County will, therefore, focus its engagement in the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto 
National Forest Land Management Plan process, and its comments and suggestions, at the policy-
making level and on whether the proposed Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan serves the 
County residents or visitor’s enjoyment, custom, culture, health, safety and economic well-being. Gila 
County will further focus its engagement on whether the proposed Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan contributes to the objectives of the County as expressed in its plans and policies; on 
how the proposed Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan impacts related planning efforts by the 
County; and on the compatibility with and interrelated impacts of the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan and Gila County plans and policies. 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 12 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 

COORDINATION BETWEEN THE TONTO NATIONAL FOREST LAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN AND THE GILA COUNTY OBJECTIVES, PLANS AND 
POLICIES 
 
Per the requirements contained in the 2012 Planning Rule, Title 36 — Parks, Forests, And Public 
Property, Part 219 — Planning, Subpart A — National Forest System Land Management Planning, 
Section 4 - Requirements for public participation, sub section (b) Coordination with other public 
planning efforts, Gila County expects that: “The responsible official shall coordinate land management 
planning with the equivalent and related planning efforts of federally recognized Indian Tribes, Alaska 
Native Corporations, other Federal agencies, and State and local governments” (36 CFR 219.4 (b)(1)). 
 
Gila County further expects that: “The results of this review shall be displayed in the environmental 
impact statement (EIS) for the plan”, and that “this review shall include consideration of: (i) The 
objectives of federally recognized Indian Tribes, Alaska Native Corporations, other Federal agencies, and 
State and local governments, as expressed in their plans and policies; (ii) The compatibility and 
interrelated impacts of these plans and policies; (iii) Opportunities for the plan to address the impacts 
identified or to contribute to joint objectives; and (iv) Opportunities to resolve or reduce conflicts, 
within the context of developing the plan's desired conditions or objectives” (36 CFR 219.4 (b)(2)). 
 
Gila County posits that these statutory requirements are meant by the US Congress to imply more than 
a perfunctory review process resulting in a check mark in a ‘coordination box’ and imply a sincere and 
proactive resolution effort to reduce and resolve potential conflicts between aspects of the Tonto 
National Forest Land Management Plan and objectives expressed in the County plans and policies; such 
as, but not limited to, those relevant to motorized big game retrieval, dispersed motorized camping and 
the reasonable allowance of motorized travel in and motorized access to the Tonto National Forest, or 
those relevant to the unique rural economic development and employment role resting on natural 
resources such timber, grazing or mineral resources located within the Tonto National Forest. 
 

GILA COUNTY OBJECTIVES AS EXPRESSED IN ITS PLANS AND POLICIES 
 
Gila County policy making decisions and management actions are guided by the Gila County long term 
plan. This plan guides the actions of the County Board of Supervisors and the County Management staff 
toward meeting the present and future enjoyment, custom, culture, health, safety and economic well-
being needs of the County residents or visitors. The Gila County planning effort integrates the principles 
of:  

• Monitoring the effects and impacts of the implementation of the County policies, as well as the 
direct, indirect, individual and cumulative effects and impacts on the County and its residents 
and visitors of the policy decisions and management actions taken by state and federal agency 
partners;  

• Monitoring all relevant demographic, social, economic, cultural, etc. internal and external 
variables relevant to the County policy making decisions and management actions; and  

• Dynamic and generally informal adaptive management. 
 
As such, the Gila County plan is an ever evolving dynamic plan that constantly adapts, often informally, 
in response to the evolving ecological, economic, social and cultural environment, and it is formulated as 
much through the regular deliberations of the Gila County Board of Supervisors and the resulting 
resolutions of the Board, as it is in the formal planning documents. 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 13 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 
For the purpose of compliance with the statutory requirements of coordination between the Tonto 
National Forest land management plan and Gila County’s objectives as expressed in its plans and policies 
(36 CFR 219.4 (b)), the Gila County plan, defined as the accumulation of the formal Gila County planning 
documents AND the Gila County public record of Board of Supervisors deliberations and decisions, 
including the letter of comments, is hereby entered into the Tonto National Forest Land Management 
Plan NEPA record. 
 

GILA COUNTY OBJECTIVES AS RELATES TO THE TONTO NATIONAL FOREST 
LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
Gila County appreciates and supports the extensive and thorough analysis performed by the Tonto 
National Forest Land Management Plan team for this Preliminary Proposed Plan, and the discussion of 
the following resources: air; soil; watershed; water resources; riparian; fisheries; vegetation; forest 
health; fire; wildlife and rare plants; nonnative species; recreation; infrastructure; wild and scenic rivers; 
inventoried roadless areas; wilderness resources; research natural areas; scenic resources; lands and 
special uses; cultural resources; Indian rights and interests; forest products; livestock grazing; minerals 
and energy and socioeconomic resources. 
 
In the interest of conciseness, and considering that multiple resources analyzed individually by the Tonto 
National Forest Land Management Plan team in the Preliminary Proposed Plan are regrouped in a 
smaller number of overarching natural resources management policy objectives for Gila County, the 
County analysis and comments will be focused on seven sets of natural resources management 
objectives critical to the County and relevant to these comments.  
 
In no particular order, these seven sets of natural resources management objectives relevant to these 
comments are: 
 
I) Rangelands Resources Management Objectives 
 
Gila County understands that the 1982 and 2012 Planning Rules require that the capability and 
suitability for producing forage for grazing animals on national forests lands be determined, and that the 
capability for producing forage for grazing animals is defined as the potential of an area of land to 
produce forage depending upon current conditions and site conditions such as climate, slope, landform, 
soil chemistry, physics and biology, geology, disturbances such as natural fire, etc. as well as the 
application of management practices. Gila County therefore understands and appreciates that the 
FUNDAMENTAL capability of the lands on the Tonto National Forest to produce forage for grazing 
animals, as determined in 1985 during the previous round of forest planning, has not changed 
significantly since this first evaluation. 
 
Land suitability analysis 
 
Simultaneously, Gila County believes that rangelands resources in the West in general, in the Southwest 
in particular, and in the national forests of Arizona specifically, are under unprecedented stress as a 
function of landscape scale uncharacteristic disturbances such as catastrophic wildfires, the cumulated 
effects of decades of management practices on lands classified as rangelands, forestlands and 
timberlands, other stressors, etc. and a possible climate warming trend, whether it be caused by human 
activities or cyclical natural variations as occurred naturally and repeatedly in the historical, pre-
historical and geological record for millenniums predating the industrial age and even the existence of 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 14 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

the human species. Gila County therefore supports the designation of appropriate size Recommended 
Research Natural Areas, in order to improve rangelands resources management science and practice. 
 
Gila County Rangelands Resources Management Objectives 
 
The Gila County Rangelands Resources Objectives for the upcoming planning cycle include, among 
others: 
 

1) Restore encroached grasslands, including the most departed semi-desert, Great Basin, and 
montane subalpine grasslands that have been invaded by trees (subalpine grasslands) and 
shrubs (semi desert and Great Basin grasslands) by removing trees and shrubs where 
economically feasible, promoting a mixture of native perennial grass species, implementing the 
periodic prescriptive use of mixed classes of livestock matching animal feeding habits with 
specific plant material, and reintroducing a regime of cool surface fires in order to reduce trees 
and shrubs colonization and erosion hazards, and to increase livestock forage production. 
 

2) Adopt management practices that discourage the establishment of nonnative species and 
eradicate invasive weed species of little to no forage value, recognizing the fact that the 
ecological or economic consequences of different exotic species are not all the same, and that 
the persistence of some nonnative species that are not necessarily undesirable or controllable 
such as Kentucky bluegrass or Bermuda grass, may be beneficial from a socioeconomic 
perspective and a balanced management for multiple resource objectives. 

 
3) Allocate grass reserves on an allotment by allotment basis through proper range management, 

rather than on a district by district basis, which requires additional financial considerations for 
improvement maintenance. 
 

4) Shift the grassland management process from the concept of balancing livestock grazing with 
available forage (PDEIS p. 451) – which only addresses stocking rate, toward the concept of 
managing the intensity, frequency, seasonality, duration and classes of livestock grazing to 
accomplish the rangelands resources management objectives. 
 

5) Emphasize adaptive management of the rangelands using a three tier rangelands resources 
management monitoring approach of quantitative monitoring using standard measurements 
such as stocking rate, ground cover, etc.; qualitative monitoring using measurements such as 
species composition, age, nutritional value, etc.; and effectiveness monitoring using outcome 
measurements such as range health, soil water holding capacity, soil organic content, livestock 
weight gain, presence of wildlife indicator species, etc., in order to measure whether the 
management actions produce the site specific and cumulative direct and indirect effects 
expected. 
 

6) Integrate the scientific research and implement the science-based recommendations developed 
by rangelands resources management peer-reviewed expert scientists such as Dr. Lamar Smith, 
Associate Professor Emeritus at the University of Arizona. 
 

7) Support the efforts and the agenda of the Arizona Grazing Lands Conservation Association as 
follows: 

- Promoting voluntary approaches for the management of grazing lands; 
- Promoting respect of private property rights; 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 15 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

- Strengthening partnerships between grazing lands managers and others who support 
the purposes of the Association; 

- Increasing economic, environmental, and social stability on grazing lands; 
- Increasing the information base from which to make sound policy and management 

decisions on grazing lands; 
- Closing the gap between availability of knowledge and application of said knowledge on 

grazing lands; 
- Enhancing the rancher’s ability to achieve greater profitability on an ecologically sound 

and sustainable basis; and 
- Educating the public through the dissemination of scientific knowledge on the 

conservation and management of grazing lands in Arizona. 
 

8) Preserve the contributions of the rangelands resources to the rural economic development of 
the Arizona counties at a minimum at the current level of approximately 66 jobs and $713,000 in 
labor income annually, and double this contribution to the approximately 120 jobs and $1.3 
million in labor income annually that can be supported by the full utilization of the available 
animal unit months (AUMs). 

 
II) Forest Products Resources Management Objectives 
 
Gila County supports an extensive and thorough analysis performed by the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan team addressing affected environment, lands tentatively suitable for timber 
production, allowable sale quantity (ASQ), long term sustained yield capacity (LTSYC), wood and tree 
products availability, forested / overgrown lands, deforested / early development lands, climate change 
considerations, and cumulative environmental consequences. 
 
Circumstantial constraints and challenges for the Gila County AND the Tonto National Forest 
planning efforts 
 
Gila County recognizes that the issues of forested ecosystem restoration and forest products 
management are fundamentally different, and are typically not discussed simultaneously in ecosystems 
non-departed or little departed from characteristic historical conditions. However, as the Forest Service 
and Gila County both generally acknowledge, current conditions in the forested ecosystems and 
especially in the ponderosa pine and dry or wet mixed conifers dominated forests of eastern Arizona, 
are considerably departed from historical conditions and at risk of continued uncharacteristic 
disturbances such as landscape scale catastrophic crown fires or insect infestations. 
 
Gila County acknowledges and appreciates the efforts endeavored by the Forest Service and particularly 
the Four Forest Restoration Initiative (4FRI) to pioneer larger scale restoration efforts. Gila County has 
been and continues to be supportive of 4FRI and of its funding, as a practical tool to initiate larger scale 
treatments and to incentivize the creation of a small diameter trees utilization infrastructure. 
Simultaneously, Gila County acknowledges that the model of subsidized restoration treatments is not 
scalable at landscape scale, as is required to restore the forests of Arizona, for lack of agency funding. As 
proposed in 4FRI, an initiative that Gila County was instrumental in creating, fostering and developing, 
landscape scale forest ecological restoration appears currently feasible only if it is funded by the 
economically viable utilization of the forested byproducts of restoration by private industry. While 
relatively new to the discussion of ecological restoration funding, the concept of ecosystem service 
monetization is actually not a novation when it comes to forest products, as timber sales have been for 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 16 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

centuries an established form of natural resources valuation and have funded the management of the 
resources. 
 
As a consequence, Gila County observes that both the County and the Tonto National Forest operate 
under very specific circumstantial constraints when it comes to forest products resources management, 
in as much as the forest products industry in Arizona is simultaneously an economic growth and a rural 
employment engine desperately needed in eastern Arizona, AND the funding mechanism for landscape 
scale restoration in eastern Arizona, BOTH of which are critical objectives for Gila County, and must be 
stated priorities for the Tonto National Forest.  
 
The inherent circumstantial challenge therefore faced by Gila County and the Tonto National Forest is 
that the priorities typically considered when managing forest products, such as a sustained yield of 
harvest volumes on a regulated non-declining even-flow basis for the long term, uneven age structures, 
long term sustained yield capacity (LTSYC), non-declining allowable sale quantity (ASQ), etc. are 
augmented and complicated by the overwhelming priority to complete landscape scale restoration as 
rapidly as possible for fear of massively disruptive landscape scale catastrophic crown fires and/or 
landscape scale insect infestations.  
 
Owing to the fact that for the foreseeable future and for the next five decades of the planning cycle, 
green forest products will likely be byproducts of restoration treatments, and green forest products will 
likely continue to be at risk of destruction by catastrophic fires if landscape scale restoration is not 
expeditiously implemented, Gila County suggests that forest products management actions for the 
upcoming planning cycle must be dictated not only by traditional silviculture science and best practices, 
but primarily by the absolute priority of implementing landscape scale restoration as expeditiously as 
possible using mechanical treatments that produce the forest products necessary to not only sustain the 
existing forest industry in the Tonto National Forest, but to allow robust natural resources-based rural 
economic development through the creation of an entirely new infrastructure of small diameter trees 
utilization at industrial scale. 
 
Land suitability analysis 
 
Gila County understands and appreciates the fact that the criteria for designation of suitable 
timberlands must incorporate ecological and economic realities that have evolved since the previous 
planning cycle. Specifically, Gila County supports the removal from the suitability analysis of lands that 
have suffered irreversible soil resource damages during high intensity fires; lands that have experienced 
inadequate restocking post high intensity fires; and lands located on steep slopes (40% and more) where 
cable logging would be required but could not be made economically feasible owing to the limited 
harvestable forest products. 
 
Gila County Forest Products Resources Objectives 
 
The Gila County Forest Products Resources Objectives for the upcoming planning cycle therefore 
include, among others: 
 

1) Create in eastern Arizona the wood supply conditions necessary for private industry investments 
in a new economically viable small diameter trees and residual biomass utilization infrastructure 
capable of funding the initial ecological restoration thinning of at least 50,000 acres of 
ponderosa pine and/or mixed conifer dominated forests annually for the next 20 years, then the 
maintenance of the desired future conditions in subsequent decades. 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 17 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 
2) Sustain in the White Mountains the wood supply conditions necessary for the continued 

development and growth of the existing local industry, with expanded economically viable small 
diameter trees and residual biomass utilization facilities capable of funding the initial ecological 
restoration thinning of at least 15,000 acres of ponderosa pine and/or mixed conifer dominated 
forests annually for the next 20 years, then the maintenance of the desired future conditions in 
subsequent decades. 
 

3) Wherever possible, prioritize forest byproducts treatments (mechanical treatments) funded by 
economically viable utilization, over non-byproducts treatments (fire as first entry thinning 
treatments) in order to create and sustain the wood supply necessary for a new era of forest 
products industry-based economic growth and employment in eastern Arizona with multiple 
industrial scale new investments. 
 

4) Subordinate for as long as required in the upcoming planning cycle the scientific silviculture 
priorities and traditional forest products management methods for sustained yield of harvest 
volumes on a regulated non-declining even-flow basis for the long term, to the overriding 
priority of implementing as expeditiously as possible landscape scale restoration based primarily 
on mechanical treatments producing forest products (see Forested Ecosystems Restoration and 
Catastrophic Wildfire Prevention Objectives).  

 
III) Mineral and Energy Resources Management Objectives 
 
Mineral And Energy Resources Management Objectives address issues such as, but not limited to, the 
availability, suitability, sustainability, productivity, access, contribution to rural economic development 
of solid, liquid or gaseous mineral resources; as well as solar, wind, hydropower, geothermal and other 
natural renewable energy resources; etc. 
 
While there is at the current time no prospect for industrial-scale development of solar or wind energy 
farms in Gila County, the County wants to retain all possibilities for renewable energy investments, 
should they arise.  
 
Conversely, hard rock mining represents a substantial component of the economy within eastern 
Arizona, with residents having accumulated over a century a wealth of mining expertise. Many of the 
towns and cities in Gila County and the eastern Arizona counties have depended historically and 
culturally on the mining industry which has functioned as a critical base industry to drive the economy. 
Spending by base industries, and the associated taxes, stimulate local market economies such as retail, 
construction, local business services, banks, hospitals and local, county, state and federal governments. 
The revenue from base industries like mining also helps stabilize local governments, resulting in lower 
taxes for residents and sustained social investments that strengthen the communities through strong 
education, youth recreation activities and cultural programs among others. 
 
Gila County Mineral and Energy Resources Management Objectives 
 
The Gila County Mineral and Energy Resources Management Objectives for the upcoming planning cycle 
therefore include, among others: 
 

1) Make mineral materials on National Forest lands available to the industry and to local, State, 
and Federal government agencies where reasonable protection of, or mitigation of effects on, 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 18 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

other resources is assured, and where removal is not prohibited, in a manner that minimizes 
adverse environmental impacts to surface and groundwater resources, watershed and forest 
ecosystem health, wildlife and wildlife habitat, scenic character, and other desired conditions 
applicable to the area. 
 

2) Insure the completion of rigorous socio-economic impact analyses for all mining NEPA 
Environmental Impacts Statements (EIS) and insure the full consideration of economic impacts 
in all mining NEPA Records of Decision (ROD). 
 

3) Insure that energy and mineral activity site reclamation provides for public safety and the 
protection of land resources; returns disturbed sites to natural habitat conditions; and, allows 
and support sustainable post mining land uses. 
 

4) Allow opportunities for recreational gold prospecting, gold panning, and related activities, such 
as rock hounding and mineral collection. 

 
IV) Motorized Travel and Recreation Management Objectives 
 
Gila County fully understands and appreciates that an opportunity to comment on the Preliminary 
Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan is not the appropriate forum to 
comments on the upcoming Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement (SEIS) for the Public 
Motorized Travel Management Plan, and that no specific management decision will be made and no 
specific management action will result from the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest 
Land Management Plan. Nonetheless, since the Preliminary Proposed Plan will establish the framework 
for future management decisions and actions such as the Public Motorized Travel Management Plan, it 
is appropriate for Gila County to communicate its motorized travel and recreation management 
objectives and to request that the Responsible Official for the Tonto National Forest Land Management 
Plan conduct the statutorily required consistency review, coordination action and conflict resolution 
between the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan and the Gila County Motorized Travel And 
Recreation Management Objectives as expressed in the County plans and policies and as contained in 
this document. 
 
Importance of dispersed motorized travel and recreation for Gila County 
 
The number of off-highway vehicles (OHVs) used in Arizona has risen dramatically. Almost 500,000 
households within the State have at least one OHV, and as many as 30,000 new ATVs and motorcycles 
are purchased annually (Arizona State Parks, 2009). While the use of OHVs is increasing statewide, OHV 
recreation is disproportionally important to the economy of rural counties such as Gila County. A survey 
conducted in 2003 by the Arizona State Parks identified the recreation impact of OHV recreation on Gila 
County as follows: 
 

- 36% of households in Gila County are OHV users, compared to the state percentage of 21%. 
- 8% of all Arizona OHV trip destinations for past 12 months were to Gila County. 
- 1,262,607 OHV Recreation Days occur annually in Gila County, of which: 

- 228,071 OHV Recreation Days (18%) are from Gila County residents; 
- 1,034,536 OHV days (82%) are from other Arizona residents traveling to Gila County. 

- 60% of Gila County OHV households are satisfied with their overall OHV experience. 
 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 19 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

Additionally, the 2003 Arizona State Parks survey identified a major direct annual economic impact of 
motorized travel and recreation and OHV related annual expenditures in Gila County as follows: 

- OHV Trips - Fuel/Gasoline: $16.7 M  
- Lodging/Campgrounds: $12 M  
- Restaurants/Bars: $11.5 M  
- Groceries/Liquor: $13.3 M  
- Other (event fees, souvenirs, etc.): $13.6 M  

 
The total OHV recreation trips expenditures in Gila County total $67.1 M annually, to which must be 
added expenditures on off-highway vehicles: $16.9 M, tow-vehicles and trailers: $9.4 M, OHV 
equipment: $27.1 M, for a total OHV expenditures of $120.5 million and a total impact, including the 
multiplier effect, of $137.6 million in Gila County annually. 
 
The economic impact of an annual OHV expenditure of $120.5 million in Gila County translates in the 
injection of $22.3 million in salaries and wages annually, resulting in the sustaining of 1,322 full-time and 
part-time jobs in Gila County. In any economy, 1,322 jobs are significant in Gila County, and in the 
current economy they are critical. 
 
It must be noted that 77% of the vehicles used in the OHV trips reported in Gila County on the 2003 
Arizona State Parks survey are four wheel drive pickup truck (50%) and sport utility vehicle or Jeep 
(27%), besides specialized cross-country all-terrain vehicles (ATV) or motocross motorcycles, and that 
almost 64% of the recreational activities involved some level of dispersed access to the Tonto National 
Forest lands:  

 Sightseeing 15% 
 Hunting 14% 
 Driving back roads 13% 
 Camping 12% 
 Fishing 10% 

 
Circumstantial constraints and challenges for the Gila County AND the Tonto National Forest 
planning efforts 
 
Gila County understands and appreciates that in December 2005, the Forest Service issued a regulation 
at the national level, known as the Travel Management Rule (TMR), developed in response to the 
increasing effects of OHV recreation and the potential for OHV use to adversely affect forest and 
grassland resources, and that the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan team is under direct 
instructions to implement a public motorized travel management plan that will designate roads, trails, 
and areas where motorized vehicle use can occur and eliminate most motorized cross-country travel. 
 
Gila County further understands and appreciates the fact that irresponsible OHV use can indeed 
adversely affect forest and grassland resources, and that the popularity of this new mode of recreation 
may require reasonable regulations in order to maintain a well-considered balance between the 
enjoyment of the Tonto National Forest visitors, and the need to preserve and conserve the resources 
contained in the Tonto National Forest for the enjoyment of future generations. 
 
Gila County is therefore NOT advocating for the Tonto National Forest team to disregard the Travel 
Management Rule or for the continuation of unregulated and ever increasing motorized cross-country 
travel and the continued proliferation of unauthorized user-created routes. However, Gila County is 
advocating for a SENSIBLE APPROACH to implementing the Travel Management Rule requirements in 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 20 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan, that address the 
preservation and conservation needs of the resources, comply with the national Travel Management 
Rule and still allow the Gila County residents and visitors to recreate sensibly using motorized 
transportation. 
 
Land suitability analysis 
 
Gila County understands the difference that exists between motorized cross-country travel, to which 
most of the Tonto National Forest lands is currently open and to which most of the Tonto National 
Forest land will be closed (aside from specially designed OHV areas) as the result of the implementation 
of the national Travel Management Rule, and motorized on-trail travel, to which most of the Tonto 
National Forest lands is expected to remain suitable for future consideration. 
 
However, Gila County is concerned by the creeping trend that characterizes public land management in 
the West in general, in the national forests of the West in particular and specifically in the Arizona 
national forests toward an ever increasing limitation of motorized access to and motorized travel in 
(NOT including cross-country travel) the public lands under management by federal agencies.  
 
Specifically, in the June 2016 Tonto National Forest’s Draft Record of Decision (DROD) decisions were 
proposed that, in Gila County’s analysis, constitute a clear overreach by the Tonto National Forest over 
the requirement of the 2005 national Travel Management Rule: 

 
 Instead of the 300 foot corridors that were part of the draft Environmental Impact Statement 

(DEIS), the Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) and the Draft Record of Decision 
(DROD) designate certain motorized routes for dispersed camping and outlaws it everywhere 
else. As a result, motor vehicle use for dispersed camping is authorized on only approximately 
91 miles of full-sized motorized trails that access nearly 2,750 inventoried, existing, dispersed 
camping sites on the Tonto National Forest, but it is prohibited on approximately 1,290 miles of 
National Forest System roads open to the public, and 2,310 miles of motorized trails open to the 
public, where vehicle parking is now limited to up to 30 feet on either side of an open road or 
motorized trail unless otherwise identified. 

 
 Motor vehicle use for big game retrieval is allowed up to 1 mile on both sides of all designated 

roads and motorized trails solely for retrieving legally harvested elk and bear and solely in game 
management units 21, 22, 23, 24A, 24B, and 37B. This decision results in approximately 
1,905,300 acres where motorized retrieval is permitted. However, motor vehicle use for big 
game retrieval of deer is prohibited. 
 

Gila County is opposed to the June 2016 Tonto National Forest’s Draft Record of Decision (DROD) 
decisions and to the underlying philosophy that commenters need to present a reason why the Tonto 
National Forest Service should allow such or such motorized multiple use of the Forest and of such or 
such road. Rather, Gila County believes that it is the intent of the law that Tonto National Forest needs 
to present a reason why it should NOT allow such or such motorized multiple use of the Forest and of 
such or such road. In so many words, motorized used must be allowed everywhere there is not a valid 
reason for it not be. 
 
Gila County intends to avail itself of all possibilities to redress this wrongful proposed decision within the 
framework of the Forest Plan Revision and the framework of the Supplemental Environmental Impact 
Statement (SEIS) for the Travel Management Rule (TMR). 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 21 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 
In consideration of the monumental change that the elimination of indiscriminate cross-country travel 
will represent for the culture and custom of the residents of and visitors to the County, Gila County 
wants to register its objection to future considerations of new motorized areas and trails restrictions in 
the Forest Plan. 
 
Gila County Motorized Travel and Recreation Management Objectives 
 
The Gila County Motorized Travel and Recreation Management Objectives for the upcoming planning 
cycle therefore include, among others: 
 

1) Authorize dispersed and safe motorized camping consistent with the reasonable enjoyment of 
safety, privacy, comfort, custom and culture.  
The authorized dispersed and safe motorized camping allows the parking of motorized vehicles 
and/or trailers at the distance from the closest legally open road or trail necessary for the 
dispersed camping site defined as a 300 feet radius around the motorized vehicle or trailer to be 
safe from traffic, to not be directly exposed to dust or projections caused by traffic and to be 
distant from adjacent dispersed camping site by at least 300 feet if such is the desire of the 
camper(s). Access to dispersed camping sites previously used and established in the local 
custom and culture as demonstrated by tangibles evidences of previous use such as fire pits, 
improvements, etc. is allowed. 
 

2) Authorize motorized big game retrieval for all species of game meeting the definition of ‘big 
game’ in the Arizona Game and Fish Department hunting regulations, or alternatively for all ‘big 
game’ animals requiring a hunting tag, with the exception of turkeys.  
The authorized motorized big game retrieval consists of one trip each way from the downed 
animal to the closest legally open road or trail, regardless of distance, by the most direct route 
compatible with safety and the preservation of other values such as riparian areas, archeological 
sites, etc.  
 

3) Authorize dispersed motorized collection of firewood. The authorized motorized collection of 
firewood consists of the minimum number of trips each way, as defined based on the transport 
capacity of the vehicle and the trailer, from the downed tree to the closest legally open road or 
trail, regardless of distance,  in the authorized firewood collection area, by the most direct route 
compatible with safety and the preservation of other values such as riparian areas, archeological 
sites, etc.  
 

4) Authorize dispersed recreational shooting.  
The authorized motorized dispersed recreational shooting consists of one trip each way from 
the natural or artificial obvious terrain feature used as a backstop, such as pit, berth or features 
similar in their functionality as relates to safe dispersed shooting, to the closest legally open 
road or trail, regardless of distance but not more than one mile, by the most direct route 
compatible with safety and the preservation of other values such as riparian areas, archeological 
sites, etc. 

 
5) Implement sensible restrictions on indiscriminate cross-country travel in order to preserve and 

conserve the resources contained in the Tonto National Forest for the enjoyment of future 
generations.  



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 22 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

Indiscriminate cross-country travel consists of traveling cross-country in a motorized vehicle not 
intended to reach a specific dispersed camp site, downed animal, downed tree in an authorized 
firewood collection area, or terrain feature used as a shooting backstop, or not required for an 
emergency response to a specific justifiable circumstance such as danger to limb or life. 
Motorized scouting for a site is considered different from reaching a specific site and is not 
authorized. 
 

6) Retain the suitability for future consideration of new motorized areas and trails of at least 75% 
of the Tonto National Forest. 

 
V) Forested Ecosystems Restoration and Catastrophic Wildfire Prevention Objectives  
 
Gila County appreciates and supports the fact that the Preliminary Proposed Plan includes a clear 
priority for restoration treatments, despite the fact that restoration treatments were not emphasized in 
the 1985 Plan. 
 
Circumstantial constraints and challenges for the Gila County AND the Tonto National Forest 
planning efforts 
 
As previously noted, Gila County recognizes that the issues of forested ecosystem restoration and forest 
products management are fundamentally different, and are typically not discussed simultaneously in 
ecosystems non-departed or little departed from characteristic historical conditions. However, as the 
Forest Service and Gila County both generally acknowledge, current conditions in the forested 
ecosystems and especially in the ponderosa pine and dry or wet mixed conifers dominated forests of 
eastern Arizona, are considerably departed from historical conditions and at risk of continued 
uncharacteristic disturbances such as landscape scale catastrophic crown fires or insect infestations. 
 
Also as previously noted, Gila County acknowledges and appreciates the efforts endeavored by the 
Forest Service and particularly the Tonto National Forest to pioneer larger scale restoration efforts. Gila 
County has been and continues to be supportive of 4FRI and of its funding, as a practical tool to initiate 
larger scale treatments and to incentivize the creation of a small diameter trees utilization 
infrastructure. Simultaneously, Gila County acknowledges that the model of subsidized restoration 
treatments is not scalable at landscape scale, as is required to restore the forests of Arizona, for lack of 
agency funding. As proposed in the Four Forest Restoration Initiative, an initiative that Gila County was 
instrumental in creating, fostering and developing, landscape scale forest ecological restoration appears 
currently feasible only if it is funded by the economically viable utilization of the forested byproducts of 
restoration by private industry. While it is actually not a novation when it comes to forest products as 
timber sales have been for centuries an established form of natural resources valuation and have 
funded the management of the resources, the concept of ecosystem service monetization is relatively 
new to the discussion of ecological restoration funding, and its full implications are still being tested. 
 
As a consequence, Gila County observes that both the County and the Tonto National Forest operate 
under very specific circumstantial constraints when it comes to forest restoration, in as much as the 
forest products industry in Arizona is the funding mechanism for landscape scale restoration in eastern 
Arizona, which imposes the concept of social acceptability or ‘social license’ for the re-introduction of 
appropriate scale industry logging activities at the landscape scale on the Tonto National Forest. 
 
Gila County Forested Ecosystems Restoration and Catastrophic Wildfire Prevention Objectives 
 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 23 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

The Gila County Forested Ecosystems Restoration and Catastrophic Wildfire Prevention Objectives for 
the upcoming planning cycle therefore include, among others: 
 

1) Design and implement landscape-scale, consensus-based, industry-supported, accelerated 
community protection and forested ecosystems restoration in the 2.4 million acre ponderosa 
pine and mixed conifer dominated forest of the Mogollon Rim. 
 

2) Develop and sustain the social license required by Southwestern Regional Forester Corbin 
Newman as a prerequisite to the implementation of industry-supported landscape scale 
restoration. 
 

3) Create in eastern Arizona the wood supply conditions for private industry investments in a new 
economically viable small diameter trees and residual biomass utilization infrastructure capable 
of funding the initial ecological restoration thinning of at least 50,000 acres of ponderosa pine 
and/or mixed conifer dominated forests annually for the next 20 years, then the maintenance of 
the desired future conditions in subsequent decades. 
 

4) Wherever possible, prioritize forest byproducts treatments (mechanical treatments) funded by 
economically viable utilization, over non-byproducts treatments (fire as first entry thinning 
treatments) in order to create and sustain the wood supply necessary for a new era of forest 
products industry-based economic growth and employment in eastern Arizona with multiple 
industrial scale new investments. 
 

5) Subordinate for as long as required in the upcoming planning cycle the scientific silviculture 
priorities and traditional forest products management methods for sustained yield of harvest 
volumes on a regulated non-declining even-flow basis for the long term, to the overriding 
priority of implementing as expeditiously as possible landscape scale restoration based primarily 
on mechanical treatments producing forest products. 
 

6) Subordinate for as long as required in the upcoming planning cycle the scientific silviculture 
priorities and traditional forest products management methods for uneven age management to 
the overriding necessity of sustaining the social license required to implement landscape scale 
restoration expeditiously and in a non-conflictual and non-litigious manner, as relates to the 
protection of old growth and the retention of large trees (upcoming old growth where 
vegetative structural stages (VSS) 5 and 6 are deficient). 

 
VI) Watersheds Restoration Objectives 
 
Gila County supports a thorough analysis by the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan team 
using the Watershed Condition Framework (WCF) and assessment tool when addressing Class 1 
(Functioning), Class 2 (Functioning-At-Risk) and Class 3 (Impaired) watersheds for 6th level Hydrologic 
Unit Code (HUC) watersheds (sub watersheds) condition, and priority watershed treatment objectives. 
 
While Gila County agrees with the technical definition that ‘watershed condition is the state of the 
physical and biological characteristics and processes within a watershed that affect the hydrologic and 
soil functions that support aquatic ecosystems,’ the County also believes that a critical social 
consequence of the physical and biological characteristics and processes should be added to the 
definition to read: ‘ … that support aquatic ecosystems AND THE PRODUCTION OF WATER FOR 
DOWNSTREAM CONSUMPTION.’ 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 24 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 
Critical role of the Mogollon Rim watersheds for Arizona and of the CC Cragin watershed for Gila 
County  
 
Uncharacteristic landscape scale forest crown fires in eastern Arizona have a demonstrated negative 
impact on the conservation and operation of the watersheds in which they take place. In addition to the 
damages caused to communities and ecosystems by the fires themselves, the most common negative 
effects on watersheds documented after the Rodeo-Chediski Fire, some areas of the Wallow Fire, and 
the Schultz Fire, among others, are: uncharacteristic runoffs, catastrophic flooding, accelerated and 
aggravated soil erosion, streams and reservoirs sedimentation, and long term severe disturbance of the 
watershed functions. 
 
The Rim Country constitutes a large portion of the watersheds that contribute significantly to the water 
supply of the metro Arizona and greater Phoenix area. The CC Cragin watershed constitutes a large 
portion of the watersheds that contribute significantly to the water supply of Gila County and 
specifically the town of Payson and neighboring Tribal Communities. The threat of additional 
uncharacteristic landscape scale forest crown fires in eastern Arizona, especially on the south slopes of 
the Mogollon Rim and in the Rim Country raises serious concern about the conservation and operation 
of the eastern Arizona watersheds. 
 
With the growing realization that uncharacteristic landscape scale forest crown fires affect the 
conservation and operation of the watersheds in which they take place, efforts to protect watersheds 
have been recently initiated in the Southwest. Several of these efforts focus on the monetization of the 
ecosystem services provided by the watersheds, and on an attempt to enroll the financial contribution 
of the downstream beneficiaries of the services (water consumers in this case) to the financial costs of 
protecting the upstream provider areas and the utility corridors delivering the services (forests, 
watersheds and water collection and distribution infrastructures at risks of catastrophic fires in this 
case). Such efforts were pioneered by the Denver Forest to Faucet project in Colorado, or the Santa Fe 
Municipal Watershed Protection project in New Mexico, among others. In Arizona, with the active 
contribution of Gila County, an effort to create the Arizona Watersheds Investment Fund (AWIF) is 
underway, and in Flagstaff, Ballot Question #405 received electors’ approval in November 2012 for the 
issuance of a $10 million municipal bond to finance the restoration treatments of high threat areas in 
the Rio de Flag and Lake Mary watersheds to provide greater protection to the community from the 
impacts of fires and floods. 
 
Three watershed issues are of particular concern to Gila County: 
 

1) After years of collaborative debate, the model of industry supported restoration is recognized 
by most stakeholders as the only model that has the economic capability to be scaled up to 
landscape scale. However, the sole implementation of this model is insufficient, in as much as 
industry supported restoration is not applicable in areas where: 

- the merchantable material yield is insufficient for mechanical treatments to be 
economically viable; 

- access by mechanical harvesting equipment is restricted, such as in steep slopes, high 
erosion areas, riparian areas, etc. 

Mechanical treatments implemented in low productivity areas, and non-mechanical treatments 
such as fire as a thinning tool, or hand thinning, are therefore candidates for ecosystem services 
funding, and systematized ecosystem services monetization is required in order to participate to 
the overall funding of landscape scale restoration. 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 25 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 
2) Conversely, despite the logic of its concept, the keen interest of some stakeholders weary of a 

potentially dominant role of the wood industry in the relationship with the Forest Service, and 
the momentum  that the monetization of ecosystem services in general - and watershed 
services in particular - is expected to gain, the monetization of watershed services is unlikely to 
be able to bear the full cost of restoration estimated to be approximately $1,000 per acre in 
eastern Arizona, resulting in an estimated total cost of approximately $1 billion for the 1 million 
acres requiring thinning restoration treatments. Continued education is therefore required to 
insure simultaneously that: 

- the model of ecosystem services monetization funding is not viewed as an alternative to 
the model of industry supported funding; 

- the model of industry supported funding is not viewed as an alternative to the model of 
ecosystem services monetization funding; 

- both models, and possibly others, are viewed as complementary to each other. 
 

3) The restoration of forested ecosystems, ponderosa pine and mixed conifer dominated, in the 
watersheds of the slopes of the Mogollon Rim in general, and specifically in the CC Cragin and 
East Clear Creek watersheds, is an objective priority, after the direct protection of communities 
and infrastructures, among other areas in eastern Arizona also in need of restoration 
treatments. 

 
Gila County Watersheds Restoration Objectives 
 
The Gila County Watersheds Restoration Objectives for the upcoming planning cycle therefore include, 
among others: 
 

1) Prioritize restoration and catastrophic fire prevention treatments in the watersheds, after the 
direct protection of communities and infrastructures, on the slopes of the Mogollon Rim in 
general, and specifically in the East Clear Creek watersheds, the Verde River watersheds, the 
Little Colorado River watersheds, the Upper Gila River watersheds and the Upper Salt River 
watersheds. 
 

2) Develop the Arizona Watersheds Investment Fund (AWIF), and/or similar initiatives in order to 
fund restoration treatments that cannot be funded by the wood industry utilization of the forest 
byproducts of restoration in areas where the merchantable material yield is insufficient for 
mechanical treatments to be economically viable, and/or access by mechanical harvesting 
equipment is restricted, such as in steep slopes, high erosion areas, riparian areas, etc. 

 
3) Develop in parallel and a complementary manner all models of watersheds restoration funding 

such as industry funding, ecosystem services funding, municipal bonds funding, etc. 
 
VII) Management Areas Designation Objectives 
 
Gila County supports a thorough analysis by the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan team for 
management areas designation when addressing community forest intermix, high use developed 
recreation areas, energy corridors, the wild horse territories, natural landscape, inventoried roadless 
areas (which are technically not management areas per se but an administrative designation), 
recommended and current wilderness areas, recommended and current research natural areas, wildlife 
quiet areas and wild and scenic rivers. 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 26 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 
Gila County appreciates and supports the fact that certain characteristics of landscapes, viewscapes or 
bioscapes are unique and deserve protection, preservation and conservation; that a balanced approach 
to the enjoyment of all requires a spectrum of management areas extending from high use developed 
recreation areas to pristine wildernesses; that the enjoyment of future generations may require 
protection, preservation and conservation management actions that may constrain current generations; 
that areas of wildlife undisturbed habitats are necessary for big game and other wildlife to reside with 
minimal disturbance from motorized vehicle use; that preserving the natural character of the national 
forest landscape is important to any of these goals; that scientific research in ecosystems characteristics 
and functions are necessary for the continuous improvement of management decisions; and that 
designations by Congress and/or Presidential Orders must be implemented. Conversely, Gila County is 
concerned by an ever expanding trend of public land multiple use additional and incremental 
restrictions that have the potential to unduly limit access and enjoyment of the lands by the public. 
 
Gila County Management Areas Designation Objectives 
 
The Gila County Management Areas Designation Objectives for the upcoming planning cycle therefore 
include, among others: 
 

1) Maintain a balanced approach in the designation of management areas including general forest 
area, community forest intermix, high use developed recreation areas, energy corridors, wild 
horse territories, natural landscape, inventoried roadless areas (which are technically not 
management areas per se but an administrative designation), recommended and current 
wilderness areas, the Blue Range Primitive Area, recommended and current research natural 
areas, wildlife quiet areas and wild and scenic rivers, that meets the requirements of 
management for multiple resource objectives and that meets the safety, health, economic well-
being, custom and culture needs of the Gila County residents and visitors.  
 

2) Prevent the departure from the current condition of balanced management for multiple 
resource objectives by the designation of inappropriately large management areas of more than 
10% of the land area individually or 25% collectively, characterized by the restriction of most 
multiple resource objectives management or enjoyment activities, such as but not restricted to 
wilderness areas or primitive areas. 

 
For the purpose of compliance with the statutory requirements of coordination between the Tonto 
National Forest land management plan and the Gila County objectives as expressed in its plans and 
policies (36 CFR 219.4 (b)), this document: Gila County Comments On The Preliminary Proposed Plan For 
The Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan is hereby incorporated in the County expressed plans 
and policies. 
 
Gila County, therefore, expects that: i) the Responsible Official shall coordinate land management 
planning with Gila County’s equivalent and related planning efforts (36 CFR 219.4 (b)(1)); ii) the 
consistency review and coordination action shall include consideration of the objectives of Gila County 
as expressed in its plans and policies (including the formal Gila County planning documents, the Gila 
County public record of Board of Supervisors deliberations and decisions, and the Gila County 
Comments On The Preliminary Proposed Plan For The Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan); 
and, iii) the Responsible Official shall consider opportunities to resolve or reduce conflicts, should some 
arise between the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan and the Gila County plans (36 CFR 
219.4 (b)(2)). 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 27 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 

PART 2 - GILA COUNTY REQUEST FOR COOPERATING AGENCY STATUS 
 
Gila County is committed to resolve or reduce potential conflicts between the Tonto National Forest 
Land Management Plan and the Gila County plans and policies, and understands that such resolution 
must take place within the context of developing the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan's 
desired conditions or objectives. 
 
To this effect, it is the intent of Gila County to avail itself of the opportunity contained in the 2012 
Planning Rule that specifies that: “Where appropriate, the responsible official shall encourage States, 
counties, and other local governments to seek cooperating agency status in the NEPA process for 
development, amendment, or revision of a plan” (36 CFR 219.4 (a)(1)(iv)). 
 
A request for Cooperating Agency Status and inclusion in the Inter Disciplinary Team (IDT) for the Forest 
Plan Revision process and its NEPA Analysis process were previously made to the Tonto National Forest, 
Forest Supervisor in 2014. No response was provided by the Tonto National Forest. 
 
Gila County is hereby requesting anew to be granted Cooperating Agency Status and inclusion in the 
Inter Disciplinary Team (IDT) for the Forest Plan Revision process and its NEPA Analysis, and is formally 
requesting the Tonto National Forest to provide a written response to this request within 90 days. 
 

PART 3 - REQUEST FOR DISCLOSURE OF CONSISTENCY REVIEW AND 
COORDINATION ACTIONS 
 
Per the requirements of 36 CFR 219.4 (b)(2), 40 CFR 1502.16(c) and 40 CFR 1506.2 Gila County hereby 
requests that the results of the consistency review and coordination actions between the Tonto National 
Forest Land Management Plan and the Gila County objectives as expressed in its plans and policies shall 
be displayed in the Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement For The Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan. 
 

PART 4 – PLANNING ISSUES 
 
In its review of the proposed directives revising the forest service handbook (FSH 1909.12) and the 
forest service manual (FSM 1920) and establishing procedures and responsibilities for implementing the 
2012 national forest system land management planning regulation set out at 36 CFR part 219, Gila 
County identified issues and shortcomings that are of a nature to affect the Preliminary Proposed Plan 
For The Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan. 
 
Gila County fully understands that the opportunity to comment on the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the 
Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan is neither an opportunity to comment on the 2012 
Planning Rule or its implementation directives, nor an opportunity to comment on a specific proposed 
management action, such as a travel management plan or a restoration project. Nonetheless, precisely 
because the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan will 
establish the parameters for all subsequent management actions in the Tonto National Forest in the 
upcoming planning cycle, Gila County believes that it is critical for the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the 
Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan to specifically list, and therefore make part of any 
subsequent management action, guidelines on how to conduct the monitoring, adaptive management 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 28 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

framework, use of best available scientific information to inform the land management planning 
process, public participation and the role of collaboration, and the objection process. 
 
MONITORING 
 
Gila County appreciates and supports the important role given to monitoring in the proposed directives. 
We believe that the content of the proposed directives is adequate, although sometimes very succinct, 
when addressing 31.1 - Best Available Scientific Information for Monitoring; 31.2 - Public Participation 
for Monitoring; 32.1 - Developing the Plan Monitoring Program; 32.11 - Selecting Monitoring Questions; 
32.12 - Selecting Monitoring Indicators; 32.13 - Content of the Plan Monitoring Program; 32.13a - Select 
Watershed Conditions; 32.13b - Ecological Conditions for Terrestrial, Riparian and Aquatic Ecosystems, 
and At Risk Species; 32.13c - Focal Species; 32.13d - Visitor Use, Visitor Satisfaction, and Recreation 
Objectives; 32.13e - Climate Change and Other Stressors; 32.13f - Desired Conditions and Objectives; 
32.13g - Productivity of the Land; 32.2 - Documenting the Plan Monitoring Program; 32.3 - Transitioning 
to the Plan Monitoring Program; and 32.4 - Changing the Plan Monitoring Program. 
 
Issues 
 
Funding - However, Gila County believes that the proposed directives miss a critical opportunity to 
address and correct what is arguably the Achilles’ heel of many if not most monitoring efforts 
endeavored by national forests staff. Specifically, however well planned, monitoring is often not 
implemented or superficially or partially implemented for lack of resources or funding. 
 
Binding findings - Additionally, Gila County also believes that the proposed directives do not address a 
critical weakness in the concept of 31.2 - Public Participation for Monitoring and specifically in the multi-
party monitoring section thereof. Specifically, while Gila County applauds the Forest Service for 
including in the proposed directives the concept of public participation in monitoring, and specifically 
multi-party monitoring, we believe that the Forest Service misses a critical opportunity to build 
robustness in the system by failing to make the findings of multi-party monitoring boards binding on the 
Forest Service responsible official. 
 
Suggested corrective action for the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan 
 
Monitoring implementation plan 
 
Gila County suggests that the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan be expanded to include in very specific terms the requirements for quantitative, 
qualitative and effectiveness monitoring processes, and the resources allocation and funding necessary 
to implement them, to insure that strategic monitoring plans are quantifiably and qualitatively 
implemented.  
 
Specifically, Gila County suggests that a very specific monitoring implementation plan and budget be 
added to the planning and NEPA review process of all projects, be submitted to public review and 
comments in the Draft Environmental Impact Statements (DEIS), be included in the Records of Decisions 
(ROD) and be included in the Final Environmental Impact Statements (FEIS) for all projects, so as to 
insure that monitoring will actually be implemented and funded. 
 
Practically, Gila County suggests a three tier monitoring plan articulated as follows: 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 29 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

 
I. Quantitative implementation compliance monitoring. 

The purpose of the quantitative implementation compliance monitoring is to answer the 
question “was the job done?” While generally this assessment is made by the Forest Service 
contract management team when a contractor is involved, it is suggested that this step becomes 
the beginning of the process rather than often the end of it. 

 
Specific quantitative implementation compliance monitoring measures can be defined at the 
planning stage and specific resources requirements can be calculated at the planning stage. The 
plan must include, disclose and commit the responsible official to provide the resources and 
budget required. 

 
II. Qualitative implementation compliance monitoring. 

The purpose of the qualitative implementation compliance monitoring is to answer the question 
“was the job done correctly?” The need for qualitative implementation monitoring increases 
rapidly with the complexity of the actions undertaken. For example, complex forest restoration 
prescriptions implemented using designation by description (DxD) or designation by prescription 
(DxP) create substantial room for interpretation by the operators and may result in outcomes 
substantially different on the ground from those intended by the resources specialists who write 
the prescriptions. Verifying that implementation complies not only quantitatively but 
qualitatively with the management decision is especially important when the third tier of 
monitoring is intended, as effectiveness can only be meaningfully analyzed if the actual 
treatments outcomes are aligned with the intended outcomes.  

 
Specific qualitative implementation compliance monitoring measures can be defined at the 
planning stage and specific resources requirements can be calculated at the planning stage. The 
plan must include, disclose and commit the responsible official to provide the resources and 
budget required. 

 
III. Effectiveness monitoring. 

The purpose of the effectiveness monitoring is to answer the question “do the outcomes of the 
management decision produce the intended effects?” The need for effectiveness monitoring 
increases rapidly with the complexity and spatial and temporal scopes of the actions 
undertaken, especially in projects where cumulative effects analysis assumes a speculative 
nature owing to the scale and duration of the management action. For example, landscape scale 
forest restoration over 2 million acres in 20 years, as endeavored in the Four Forest Restoration 
Initiative, an initiative that Gila County was instrumental in creating and fostering, is largely 
unconceivable without the concept of adaptive management, as we know the Forest Service 
realizes. However, adaptive management is but an empty rhetoric, and any management action 
and the NEPA analysis thereof is flawed, if robust three-tier monitoring as described here above 
is not implement. 

 
Specific effectiveness monitoring processes can be defined at the planning stage and specific 
resources requirements can be calculated at the planning stage. The plan must include, disclose 
and commit the responsible official to provide the resources and budget required. 

 
Gila County further suggests that in addition to the requirement for three functionally different and 
complementary tiers, the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land Management 
Plan specifically direct the responsible officials to include robust qualitative and effectiveness indicators 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 30 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

since easy-to-collect and to-process quantitative indicators, such as acres treated, tons of biomass 
removed or forage utilization, often yield very little meaningful information on the resulting health and 
resilience of a forest stand/or the health and productivity of a grazing range for example.  
 
Multi-party monitoring binding findings 
 
Gila County suggests that the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan be expanded to include in very specific terms the requirements for the responsible 
officials to be bound by the findings of multi-party monitoring boards. 
 
Gila County fully appreciates and understands, and has been on the receiving end on numerous 
occasions of the classic retort that such dispositions would violate the Federal Advisory Committee Act 
(FACA), or that federal line officials are not authorized to share their decision making authority. 
However, it is not suggested here that responsible officials surrender their decision making authority to 
a multi-party monitoring board, but be required to act upon the findings of a multi-party monitoring 
board in a manner that appropriately addresses the issues raised by the multi-party monitoring board. 
 
Please refer to the Public Participation and the Role of Collaboration section of this letter, here under, 
for further discussion of this substantial issue. 
 
ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 
 
Gila County appreciates and supports the important role given to the adaptive management framework 
in the proposed directives. We believe that the key features of adaptive management included in the 
proposed directives are adequate when addressing: 1. Characterizing explicitly uncertainty and 
assumptions; 2. Testing assumptions and collecting data using appropriate temporal and spatial scales; 
3. Analyzing new information obtained through monitoring and project experience; 4. Learning from 
feedback between monitoring and decisions; 5. Adapting assumptions and strategies to design better 
plans and management direction; 6. Making iterative and responsive decisions, evaluating results, and 
adjusting actions on the basis of what has been learned; and 7. Creating an open and transparent 
process that shares learning internally and with the public. 
 
Issue 
 
However, Gila County believes that the proposed directives miss a critical opportunity to provide 
substantially clear directives to responsible officials in actually implementing adaptive management, by 
limiting recommendations to a one and a half page general description of the three phases of planning 
(assessment, planning, and monitoring) in Title 36, Code of Federal Regulations, part 219 (36 CFR part 
219). Specifically, Gila County acknowledges that the Forest Service includes some measure of action in 
paragraph d of its third step (monitoring): “d. Adapt planning and management activities based on 
learning from the results of the analysis. This adaptation takes the form of modifying assumptions, 
models, data, and understanding of the system. This knowledge is then used to inform the planning 
process that leads to adjustment of plans and projects.” Nonetheless, Gila County believes that an entire 
fourth step of what is generally accepted by academia and the professional world as the adaptive 
management framework is missing from the proposed directive, namely: corrective action in the 
implementation of a large scale long duration management action. 
 
Gila County does not fault the Forest Service or the Code of Federal Regulations (36 CFR part 219) for a 
truncated framework, as many management actions, especially in national forests over the last quarter 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 31 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

century have been implemented at a scale and scope sufficiently limited that learning from the 
execution of a given project could only be applied to other projects, considering the rapid completion of 
small projects. However, as large, long and extremely complex management actions such as landscape 
scale forest restoration are endeavored, the likes of the Four Forest Restoration Initiative include more 
than 2 million acres over 20 years, the need for adaptive and very probably corrective action within the 
existing project and within the existing NEPA Record of Decision is clearly emerging. 
 
Suggested corrective action for the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan 
 

I. Gila County suggests that the three phases of planning (assessment, planning, and monitoring) 
in Title 36, Code of Federal Regulations, part 219 (36 CFR part 219) designed to support a 
framework for adaptive management that will facilitate learning and continuous improvement 
in plans and agency decision making, be augmented in the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the 
Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan with a fourth phase that outlines clearly the 
responsibility and authority of responsible officials to implement adaptive and if necessary 
corrective action during the implementation of large scale long duration specific projects as a 
response to quantitative, qualitative, and effectiveness monitoring of the project. 
 

II. Gila County further suggests that in order to avoid the difficulty and complexity of having to 
complete new and different NEPA analyses prior to implementing adaptive or corrective action 
during the implementation of a given project, the NEPA analysis of complex, large scale, long 
term projects be specifically designed from inception to formalize the inclusion of a four phase 
adaptive management framework, and to include the possibility for and the responsibility of the 
line officers to implement a range of actions as necessary to adapt to the emergence of data 
from effectiveness monitoring, and to meet the purpose and need of the proposed action and 
preferred alternative. 

 
USE OF BEST AVAILABLE SCIENTIFIC INFORMATION (BASI) TO INFORM THE LAND 
MANAGEMENT PLANNING PROCESS 
 
Gila County appreciates and supports the important role given to the use of best available scientific 
information to inform the land management planning process in the proposed directives when 
addressing: 42.1 - Use of Best Available Scientific Information; 42.11 - Integration of the BASI in the 
Planning Process; 42.11a - Assessment Phase; 42.11b - Planning Phase; 42.11c – Monitoring; 42.12 - 
Characteristics of Quality Scientific Information; 42.13 - BASI Determination Process; 42.14 - Attributes 
of the BASI: Uncertainties, Risks, and Assumptions; 42.15 - Sources of Scientific Information; 42.16 - Data 
Quality; 42.17 - Documentation of the BASI in the Planning Process; 42.17a - Documentation of the BASI 
in the Assessment Report; 42.17b - Documentation of the BASI in the Plan Decision Document; and 42.2 
- Optional Science Reviews in the Land Management Planning Process. 
 
Gila County further appreciates and supports the important role given to assessing social and economic 
sustainability and multiple uses in the assessment process when addressing: 13.1 - Assessing Social, 
Cultural, and Economic Conditions; 13.11 - Social, Cultural, and Economic Context; 13.12 - Important 
Social, Cultural, and Economic Influences on the Plan Area; 13.13 - How the Plan Area Influences Key 
Social, Cultural, and Economic Conditions; 13.14 - Sources of Relevant Existing Information for Social, 
Cultural, and Economic Conditions; 13.2 - Assessing Benefits People Obtain from the NFS Plan Area; 13.3 
- Assessing Multiple Uses; 13.31 - Outdoor Recreation; 13.32 – Range; 13.33 – Timber; 13.34 – 
Watershed; 13.35 - Fish and Wildlife; 13.4 - Assessing Recreation Settings, Opportunities and Access, 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 32 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

and Scenic Character; 13.5 - Assessing Renewable and Nonrenewable Energy and Mineral Resources; 
13.6 - Assessing Infrastructure; 13.7 - Assessing Areas of Tribal Importance; 13.8 - Assessing Cultural and 
Historic Resources and Uses; and 13.9 - Assessing Land Status and Ownership, Use, and Access Patterns. 
 
Issue 
 
However, Gila County believes that the proposed directives miss a critical opportunity to provide 
substantially clear directives to responsible officials in actually integrating social and economic 
sustainability and multiple uses, and in integrating social and economic science to the framework of best 
available scientific information to inform their land management planning process and their 
management decision making process. Specifically, the assessment of the social, cultural and economic 
values becomes essentially an exercise in futility if these values are not reflected in the management 
decisions and do not balance other values.  
 
Gila County clearly supports robust science and the full integration of ecological, bio diversity, 
restoration and conservation values in the management process, and Gila County is on record for 
participating and often leading efforts designed to re-introduce to the ecosystems of eastern Arizona 
natural ecologically sustainable processes such as a frequent surface fire regime. Nevertheless, Gila 
County is observing, and when necessary is committed to mitigate, a probably natural temptation by 
some scientists to develop and implement pure uncompromised and uncompromising science, or the 
currently accepted state of best science - which often proves to be a temporary state, to the detriment 
of the enjoyment, custom, culture, health, safety and economic well-being of the people. An example 
coming to mind to illustrate the above would be the forcible and inflexible implementation of rigid 
travel management rules in the national forests of Arizona in apparent disregard of not only the 
characteristics of individual forests, but people’s long established custom, culture, need and right to 
recreate, hunt or procure firewood in these forests. Such rules may make sense when protecting 
relatively limited acreages of national forests in states comprising mostly private land, but they may 
create an unreasonable burden when regulating access to upward of 50% of the land in a County. 
Additionally, blind application of out of context science promulgated at national level may trigger 
fundamentally unscientific decisions when for example identical travel management rules are being 
implemented across fundamentally different ecosystems in ponderosa pine dominated forests, pinion 
juniper dominated forests and wet or dry mixed conifer forests, and across multiple national forests 
characterized by fundamentally different densities of road systems.  
 
Additionally, Gila County is also observing, and when necessary is also committed to mitigate, the fact 
that the same temptation to develop and implement pure uncompromised and uncompromising science 
as discussed in the above paragraph, also often causes the weakening of the social consensus with 
stakeholders who would support the implementation of management decisions based on a balanced 
approach, but are unwilling to support the invasive implementation of a monolithic and intransigent 
interpretation of science.  
 
Suggested corrective action for the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan 
 

I. Gila County suggests that the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan provide clear and unambiguous guidelines to responsible officials to integrate 
social and economic sustainability and social and economic science into the framework of best 
available scientific information to inform their land management planning process and their 
management decision making process.  



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 33 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

Specifically, Gila County suggests that the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National 
Forest Land Management Plan instruct responsible officials to implement substantive - even 
though possibly scientifically imperfect - management actions that move the ecosystems 
significantly toward the desired future conditions, when such actions are supported by social 
consensus, rather than spend years attempting to forcibly impose, and possibly trigger litigation 
of management actions that may be deemed scientifically more perfect but that do not benefit 
from the support of the social consensus. In other terms, Gila County suggests that the 
Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan emphasize 
executing well less than perfect projects now, over developing scientifically perfect projects that 
are never implemented. 
 

II. To quote a famous Arizonan: “Extremism in the defense of liberty is no vice” (Barry Goldwater), 
but Gila County would like to propose to the Forest Service that extremism in the pursuit of best 
available scientific information (BASI) may become counterproductive when it results in 
paralysis by analysis, or inaction by litigation. 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND THE ROLE OF COLLABORATION 
 
Gila County appreciates and supports the important role given to public participation and the role of 
collaboration in the proposed directives. We believe that the content of the proposed directives is 
adequate, although sometimes succinct, when addressing 43.02 - Principles of Public Participation; 43.1 
- Guidance for Public Participation; 43.11 - Guidance for Collaboration; 43.12 - Developing a Public 
Participation Strategy; 43.13 - Federal Advisory Committee Act Committees; 43.14 - Engaging a Diverse 
Set of Stakeholders; 43.15 - Opportunities for American Indians and Alaska Natives; 43.16 - Participation 
and Coordination with Other Related Planning Efforts; 43.17 - Participation during Phases of Planning; 
43.17a - Participation during Assessments; 43.17b - Participation during Development, Revision, or 
Amendment of Plan Components; 43.17c - Participation during Monitoring Program Development; 
43.17d - Participation during Monitoring Evaluation Report Reviews; 43.18 - Substantive Formal 
Comment; and 43.19 - Participation during Pre-decisional Administrative Review. 
 
Issue 
 
However, Gila County believes that the proposed directives miss a critical opportunity to provide 
substantially clear directives to responsible officials on two fundamental and overlapping aspects of 
public participation and the role of collaboration. Specifically, sustained and meaningful public 
participation and engagement require that the public’s inputs actually influence substantially the 
decision making process; and sustained meaningful collaboration requires that the products of 
collaboration be honored by the Forest Service. 
 
Gila County has acquired a long, ineffective, inefficient, unproductive and oftentimes frustrating 
experience of responsible officials paying lip service to public participation and to the role of 
collaboration, and Gila County believes that the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest 
Land Management Plan must refocus the concept of public participation and collaboration away from 
complying with a process and managing the problem, toward developing executable products and 
resolving the problem. 
 
Suggested corrective action for the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan 
 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 34 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

I. Gila County recognizes that under current federal statutes Forest Service line officers are not 
allowed to share their decision making authority. Nonetheless, Gila County believes that a 
statutory monopoly of decision making authority does not necessarily imply an operational 
monopoly on decision content. Therefore, Gila County suggests that the Preliminary Proposed 
Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan emphasize that while the line officers 
retain their sole legal ability to make the decision, they are also required by law and regulation 
“to meet the needs of present and future generations” (Forest Service Mission Statement), as 
expressed through public participation and collaboration among other channels. 
 

II. Gila County further suggests that the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest 
Land Management Plan explain how and direct responsible officials to retain their legal decision 
making authority while allowing the public to participate meaningfully in, influence 
substantially, and when appropriate alter the content of their decision. 
 

III. Gila County further suggests that a special role and a special forum be organized in the 
Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan, for local 
elected officials such as County Supervisors to represent the socio economic interests of local 
populations in the decision making process of the Forest Service responsible officials. As the 
most local and often the most directly involved elected representatives in the democratic 
constitutional process, local elected officials can play a tremendously significant role in 
representing their constituents with line officers and insure that federal employees temporarily 
assigned to a national forest are given the best possible opportunity to integrate local custom, 
culture and economic well-being into their decision making process. 

 
OBJECTION PROCESS 
 
Gila County appreciates the attempt made by the Forest Service to give the public more effective 
involvement, support their collaborative processes and result in better decision-making (U.S. Forest 
Service Chief Tom Tidwell) by replacing the previous appeal process with the new pre-decisional 
administrative review, or objection process, to be applied under federal regulation to all projects and 
activities that implement land-management plans and that are documented in an environmental 
assessment or environmental impact statement. 
 
Gila County realizes that the U.S. Forest Service announced on March 26, 2013 the final rule governing 
the objection process for projects and activities implementing land-management plans, and that the 
final rule was published in the Federal Register on March 27, 2013 after a review of public comments 
submitted in response to the publication of the proposed rule in 2012. Consequently, Gila County fully 
realizes that this comments letter is not an opportunity to comment on the objection process. 
 
Issue 
 
However, Gila County believes that specific comments on the application of the objection process as 
implemented in the proposed directives and presumably in the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto 
National Forest Land Management Plan does provide an opportunity to address concerns about the 
objection process implementation as follows: 
 
Among other significant differences, a critical difference between the previous appeal process and the 
new objection process is that an objection must be filed prior to an actual decision being made and 
published. This creates a potentially difficult situation in as much as there is a possibility, and in certain 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 35 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

cases a probability, that several objections may be filed by several different parties, and that the 
resolutions of these objections may result in a final decision significantly different from the one 
disclosed in the document published with the notice of a plan subject to objection. Although the list of 
objections will be public, the timing of filing of potential objections within the objections filing period 
may result in the requirement for the public to decide to file or abstain to file an objection based on the 
speculation of what other parties may decide to file, and what the resolutions to such objections might 
be. Additionally, since a final decision may be influenced significantly by the resolution of an objection 
that by definition happens only after the comments period is closed, parties may be unwillingly put in a 
situation where per 51.52 - Issues Not Based on Previously Submitted Substantive Formal Comments, 
their potential objection may be ineligible.  
 
Additionally, Gila County is concerned that Chapter 50 Objection Process in general, paragraph 51.66 - 
Reviewing Officer Response to Objections and paragraph 51.6 - Resolution of Objections in particular, 
and specifically paragraph 51.6 section 4: “The reviewing officer responds to the outstanding issues in 
the objection; The reviewing officer’s response may include instructions to the responsible official as 
part of the disposition of the objection. The response must be sent to the objecting party(ies) by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, and posted online” (36 CFR 219.57(b) and sec. 51.64) are 
focused on the administrative process of disposing of an objection rather than on the substantial 
process of actually resolving it. 
 
Suggested corrective action for the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan 
 

I. Gila County suggests that the Preliminary Proposed Plan for the Tonto National Forest Land 
Management Plan guide and direct the reviewing officers to exercise careful judgment in their 
resolution or rejection of objections, in relation to the true material importance of the 
objections – as opposed to their symbolic or emotional importance, and the potential effect of 
litigation on the implementation of the project. 
 

II. In so suggesting, Gila County wants to emphasize that it does not promote indiscriminate and 
aberrant acceptance of any and all parties’ whims or irrational demands, but a well-considered 
costs and benefits analysis by Forest Service responsible officials, line officers and reviewing 
officers of public inputs in their decision process in view of the relative actual significance or lack 
thereof of such inputs or demands, and the overwhelming urgency to act, even if imperfectly, in 
some specific cases such as the protection of the Southwest forests against catastrophic 
landscape scale wildfires. 

 
Gila County requests to be kept informed as the Tonto National Forest Land Management Plan revision 
progresses.  Gila County hereby reserves its right to provide further comments as the process unfolds, 
and requests that the Forest Service commit to receiving and integrating further comments from Gila 
County as provided.   
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
  



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 36 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

Appendix B - Gila County comments on the 
Tonto National Forest’s  

Wilderness Recommendation Process February 2, 2018 
 
 
February 2, 2018 
 
Tonto National Forest 
Tonto Plan Revision 
2324 E. McDowell Road  
Phoenix 85006  
 
Electronic filing: tontoplan@fs.fed.us 
Copy: nbosworth@fs.fed.us  
 
Re: Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest’s Wilderness Recommendation Process. 
 
 
Dear Responsible Official; 
 
Gila County would like to offer comments on the Tonto National Forest’s Wilderness Recommendation 
Process. 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 
Gila County is located in central Arizona beneath the Mogollon Rim that marks the southern edge of the 
Colorado Plateau.  
 
An overwhelmingly large proportion of the land area of Gila County is designated as national forests, 
federal, state or tribal land, and/or under federal or state management. In Gila County the Forest 
Service controls 55% of the land; Tribal Authorities and the Bureau of Indian Affairs 40%; the State of 
Arizona 1%; and, individual or corporate ownership only 4%. This means that Gila County must provide 
civil services such as safety, rescue, education, health, etc. to 100% of its area based on only a 4% 
taxable basis. 

 
Consequently, outdoors recreational activities conducted on national forests lands, such as, but not 
limited to dispersed camping, cross-country motorized travel, big game hunting, dispersed shooting, 
dispersed fishing or hiking, etc. by residents of, and visitors to the County recreating from metro Arizona 
to the Rim Country, have a disproportionately large impact on the economic well-being and the 
economic development of the County. 
Therefore, Gila County has a special interest in the Tonto National Forest’s Wilderness Recommendation 
Process and would like to express its comments and concerns as follows. 
 

OPPOSITION TO ANY ADDITIONAL WILDERNESS DESIGNATION IN THE 
TONTO NATIONAL FOREST 
 

mailto:tontoplan@fs.fed.us
mailto:nbosworth@fs.fed.us


 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 37 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

The purpose of this letter is to communicate unambiguously to the Forest Service the strict opposition 
by Gila County to any new wilderness designation in the Tonto National Forest.  
 
The reasons for this opposition are as follows. 
 

Disproportionate area of Gila County already designated as Tonto NF 
Wilderness Areas 
 
Gila County has a total area of 4,795 square miles (3,068,800 acres), of which 4,758 square miles 
(3,045,120 acres) are land and 38 square miles are water. The Tonto National Forest, the largest of the 
six national forests in Arizona and the fifth largest national forest in the United States, has a total area of 
4,489 square miles (2,873,200 acres), of which 1,700,928 acres are located within Gila County. This 
represents 55.42% of the entire County area, in which the Forest Service imposes a number of multiple 
uses and access restrictions as well as economic development limitations. 
 
Further, the eight federally designated wilderness areas within (or partially within) the Tonto National 
Forest (Four Peaks Wilderness; Hellsgate Wilderness; Mazatzal Wilderness; Pine Mountain Wilderness; 
Salome Wilderness; Salt River Canyon Wilderness; Sierra Ancha; and, Superstition Wilderness) occupy 
approximately 590,000 acres in Gila County. This represents 35% of the Tonto NF located within Gila 
County; 21% of the entire Tonto NF; or, more significantly, approximately 19% of the entire County area 
that are subjected to a complete prohibition of economic development and severe limitations of access 
and multiple uses. 
 
It is the position of Gila County that none of the proposed new wilderness areas contain natural features 
unique enough to justify increasing the area of designated wildernesses and practically eliminating 
multiple uses opportunities over more than the current fifth of the County total area already 
designated.  
 

No change since the 1993 designation process justifying new designations 
 
As already mentioned, as a result of previous wilderness designation review and recommendation 
processes, the Tonto National Forest already includes eight federally designated wilderness areas, 
cumulating over half a million acres. 
 
Gila County does not believe that any substantial change as taken place on the land since the 1993 
designation process that justifies adding new wilderness designations in the Tonto NF.  
 
Gila County is therefore requesting Tonto National Forest to explain in its public process what 
modification(s) may have taken place with the designation criteria that would justify new designations 
of areas that did not meet the designation criteria during the 1993 designation process.  
 

Iterative and ever-increasing restrictions of multiple uses of public land 
 
Gila County does not oppose the concept of Wilderness Areas and supports the designation of specific 
areas as Wilderness Areas when unique characteristics and values justify protecting the land and 
restricting its multiple uses.  
 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 38 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

However, the County is concerned with, and does not support, the iterative and ever-increasing 
restrictions of multiple uses of public land that do not offer unique characteristics and values that justify 
protecting the land and restricting its multiple uses. The County further opposes the iterative and ever-
increasing restrictions of multiple uses of public lands totaling virtually the entire area of the Tonto 
National Forest as itemized in the proposed inventory of candidate wilderness areas. 
 
Such limitations of multiple uses may include activities as diversified as access, motorized or not, various 
forms of recreation, motorized or not, hunting, fishing, rock hounding, mining, logging, ranching, 
developed recreation opportunities, active management of recreation opportunities, fuels reduction 
activities, watershed restoration activities, catastrophic fire mitigation activities, etc. While such 
restrictions may be appropriate in limited high value areas, it seems ludicrous to envision - and formally 
inventory and evaluate - virtually the entire area of the Tonto National Forest for implementation of 
such restrictions in direct contradiction, and possible violation, of the requirements of the Multiple Use 
Sustained Yield Act (MUSYA) (16 U.S.C. 528 et seq.). 
 

Contradiction with Forest Service stated goal of increasing the efficiencies of 
its compliance with NEPA 
 
The Tonto NF states that “a lot of forest is included in the inventory and moved on to Step 2, Evaluation. 
It does not mean that all areas on the Inventory map will be proposed or managed as Wilderness.” 
https://usfs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=fa64c3221fd84517b1d406ff24746170  
 
However, as also stated by the Tonto NF: “all lands identified in the inventory” must be “evaluated and 
ranked for the level of wilderness characteristics they contain” at the expense of public resources. 
(https://usfs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=fa64c3221fd84517b1d406ff24746170  
 
Gila County is concerned with, and does not support, the expenditure of public resources for the 
analysis of virtually the entirety of the Tonto NF for potential new wilderness designation, especially if 
no recommendation is justified by the required wilderness characteristics.  
 

The mere recommendation process implies multiple uses restrictions, even if 
Congress never designates the land as wilderness 
 
Even though the Tonto NF states that “It does not mean that all areas on the Inventory map will be 
proposed or managed as Wilderness,” as correctly stated too: “Any recommended wilderness areas will 
have management direction included in the revised forest plan. The plan direction developed for the 
recommended wilderness areas will protect the characteristics which make the area suitable for 
potential wilderness designation by Congress” (emphasis added). 
https://usfs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=fa64c3221fd84517b1d406ff24746170 
 
Gila County is concerned with, and opposes, the recommendation of the vast tracks of public lands in 
the Tonto NF for potential new wilderness designation, because the mere recommendation will 
automatically trigger reductions in multiple uses, as if a designation was made, for an unspecified 
duration, even if Congress never designates the land as a wilderness area. Further, considering that an 
area can remain in recommended status indefinitely, the mere recommendation process has for all 
practical purposes the same effect on multiple uses restrictions as a designation. 
 

https://usfs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=fa64c3221fd84517b1d406ff24746170
https://usfs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=fa64c3221fd84517b1d406ff24746170
https://usfs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=fa64c3221fd84517b1d406ff24746170


 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 39 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

Increase costs and complexity of services provided by law by Gila County 
 
Gila County if concerned that additional wilderness areas designations will further increase the costs and 
complexity of search and rescue operations that the County Sheriff Department is obligated by law to 
undertake, as necessary, over the entire County area, whether they be designated as roadless non-
motorized access wilderness areas or not. 
 

Cumulative Effect analysis of economic impact of Connected Actions 
 
Gila County is concerned that iterative and cumulative connected management actions currently 
engaged in the Tonto National Forest, such as the implementation of the Travel Management Rule 
(TMR), the revision of the Land and Resource Management Plan (Forest Plan), the Wilderness 
Recommendation process, potential new scenic river designations within the County, etc. may result in 
disproportionate restrictions to multiple uses in the Tonto NF which may result in cumulative economic 
effects unacceptable to the County rural economy. 
 
Gila County is therefore requesting as part of the TMR Supplemental EIS; as part of the Forest Plan EIS; 
as part of the Wilderness Recommendation process; and as part of any additional connected 
management action, that the CUMULATIVE EFFECTS of the ECONOMIC IMPACTS of the cumulative 
CONNECTED MANAGEMENT ACTIONS be analyzed and stated in the relevant NEPA documents, and that 
the coordination required by law take place between the planning effort of the Tonto NF and the related 
planning efforts of Gila County (see following paragraph). 
 

COORDINATION BETWEEN THE TONTO NATIONAL FOREST LAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN AND THE GILA COUNTY OBJECTIVES, PLANS AND 
POLICIES 
 
Per the requirements contained in the 2012 Planning Rule, Title 36 — Parks, Forests, And Public 
Property, Part 219 — Planning, Subpart A — National Forest System Land Management Planning, 
Section 4 - Requirements for public participation, sub section (b) Coordination with other public planning 
efforts, Gila County expects that: “The responsible official shall coordinate land management planning 
with the equivalent and related planning efforts of federally recognized Indian Tribes, Alaska Native 
Corporations, other Federal agencies, and State and local governments” (36 CFR 219.4 (b)(1)). 
 
Gila County further expects that: “The results of this review shall be displayed in the environmental 
impact statement (EIS) for the plan”, and that “this review shall include consideration of: (i) The 
objectives of federally recognized Indian Tribes, Alaska Native Corporations, other Federal agencies, and 
State and local governments, as expressed in their plans and policies; (ii) The compatibility and 
interrelated impacts of these plans and policies; (iii) Opportunities for the plan to address the impacts 
identified or to contribute to joint objectives; and (iv) Opportunities to resolve or reduce conflicts, 
within the context of developing the plan's desired conditions or objectives” (36 CFR 219.4 (b)(2)). 
 
Gila County posits that these statutory requirements are meant by the U.S. Congress to imply more than 
a perfunctory review process resulting in a check mark in a ‘coordination box,’ and imply a sincere and 
proactive resolution effort to reduce and resolve potential conflicts between aspects of the Tonto 
National Forest management actions, and the objectives expressed in the County plans and policies; 
such as, but not limited to, those relevant to motorized big game retrieval, dispersed motorized camping 
and the reasonable allowance of motorized travel in and motorized access to the Tonto National Forest, 



 

Gila County comments on the Tonto National Forest Plan Revision #51592    Page 40 of 40 

  

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 1400 E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

or those relevant to the unique rural economic development and employment role resting on natural 
resources such timber, ranching or mineral resources located within the Tonto National Forest, all of 
which stand to be affected by new wilderness designations. 
 
 
Gila County requests to be kept informed as the Tonto National Wilderness Recommendation Process 
progresses, and specifically requests a written answer to this letter of comments and concerns.  Gila 
County hereby reserves its right to provide further comments as the process unfolds, and requests that 
the Forest Service commit to receiving and integrating further comments from Gila County as provided.   
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 



   
ARF-5935   Consent Agenda Item     4. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Tommie Martin, Member, Board of Supervisors 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY 2020 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

May 24, 2019, - May
23, 2024

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 3 for the Pine-Strawberry Horseman's
Association.

Background Information
On May 24, 2005, Gila County and the Pine-Strawberry Horseman's
Association, a non-profit organization, entered into a Lease Use
Agreement whereby the County leased a portion of the Pine County Yard
property to the Horseman's Association for use as a horse arena. The
original term of the Lease Use Agreement was for a period of five years
and it expired on May 23, 2010.

On May 3, 2011, an extension to the Lease Use Agreement was executed
to extend the term of the Lease Use Agreement for an additional four years
to May 23, 2015, and to increase the family use fee from $20.00 to $25.00
per year.

On June 23, 2015, Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 2 was executed to
extend the term of the Lease Use Agreement for an additional four years to
May 23, 2019.

Evaluation
The Lease Use Agreement was for a period of five years with the option to



The Lease Use Agreement was for a period of five years with the option to
extend for a similar period at similar terms should all terms and
conditions be faithfully met. The original term of the Lease Use Agreement
expired on May 23, 2010.  On May 3, 2011, an extension to the Lease Use
Agreement was executed to extend the term of the Lease Use Agreement
for an additional four years ending on May 23, 2015, and to increase the
family use fee from $20.00 to $25.00 per year.

Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 3 will allow Gila County to exercise
the option to renew the term of the Lease Use Agreement from May 24,
2019, to May 23, 2024.

Conclusion
The extension of the Lease Use Agreement will allow the Pine-Strawberry
Horseman's Association to continue to use the Pine County Yard property
as a horse arena sufficient for horse and livestock events for an additional
five-year term.

Recommendation
It is recommended by Supervisor Martin that the Board of Supervisors
approve the extension of the Lease Use Agreement with the
Pine-Strawberry Horseman's Association for an additional five-year term.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 3 between Gila County
and the Pine-Strawberry Horseman's Association to extend the term of the
Agreement for an additional five years, from May 24, 2019, through May
23, 2024.

Attachments
Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 3
Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 2
Lease Extension-May 2010 to May 2015
Original Lease Agreement



Pine-Strawberry Horseman’s Asso./Lease Use Agreement No. 3 Page 1 
 

Mary Springer 
Finance Director 
mspringer@gilacountyaz.gov  
(928) 402-8516 
 

 
 

Betty Hurst 
Contracts Administrator 

bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov  

(928) 402-4355 

GILA COUNTY 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ  85501 

 

LEASE USE AGREEMENT EXTENSION NO. 3 

HORSEMAN’S ASSOCIATION 
 

Effective May 24, 2005, Gila County and the Pine-Strawberry Horseman’s Association, a non-profit 
organization, entered into a lease agreement whereby the County leased a portion of the Pine County Yard 
property to the Horseman’s Association for a horse arena, for a period of five (5) years.  Per the lease agreement 
this lease may be extended for a similar period at similar terms should all terms and conditions be faithfully met. 

 
The Lease Use Agreement Extension was executed by Gila County and the Horseman’s Association on May 

3, 2011, to extend the term of the Lease Use Agreement to May 23, 2015.  The Horseman’s Association also 
increased the family use fee from $20 per year to $25 per year as stated in Article Three (i) of the Lease Use 
Agreement beginning with the execution of the Lease Use Agreement Extension dated May 3, 2011.”  

 
Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 2 was executed by Gila County and the Horseman’s Association on 

June 23, 2015, to extend the term of the Lease Use Agreement to May 23, 2019. 
 
Per Article One, 1(b), the lease may be extended for a similar period at similar terms, should all terms and 

conditions be faithfully met.  Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 3 will serve to extend the term of the Lease Use 
Agreement from May 24, 2019 to May 23, 2024.  

 
All other terms and conditions of the original lease use agreement remain in effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include original 

signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this _______ day of _________________, 2020. 

 
       
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS     PINE-STRAWBERRY HORSEMAN’S ASSOCIATION 
                   
_________________________________________           ____________________________________  
Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors        Individual Authorized to Sign 

  
ATTEST:                        ____________________________________ 
          Print Name 
______________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board      _________________________________ 
          Title 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________________ 
The County Attorney’s Office 

mailto:mspringer@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov




















   
ARF-5905   Consent Agenda Item     4. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2019-2020 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2019 to June
30, 2020

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 040819- Diana G.
Montgomery, PLLC.

Background Information
On July 23, 2019, the Board of Supervisors approved Professional
Services Contract No. 040819 with Diana G. Montgomery, PLLC, whereby
Ms. Montgomery provides legal services for indigent citizens as appointed
by the Superior Court in Gila County for the period beginning July 1,
2019, to June 30, 2020. The original contract was executed for a not to
exceed without written authorization amount of $45,800.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 040819 increases
the contract by $33,200 for the contract term July 1, 2019, to June 30,
2020 due to the increased demand for appointments in southern Gila
County for a new contract amount not to exceed $79,000.

Conclusion
Court Administration wishes to execute Amendment No. 1 to Professional
Services Contract No. 040819 to increase the contract by $33,200 for the
contract term July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020, due to the increased
demand for appointments in southern Gila County this fiscal year; for a
new contract amount not to exceed $79,000 for the contract term July 1,
2019, to June 30, 2020.

Recommendation



The Court Administrator for the Superior Court in Gila County
recommends approving Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services
Contract No. 040819 to increase the contract by $33,200 for a new
contract amount not to exceed $79,000 for the contract term July 1,
2019, to June 30, 2020, due to the increased demand for appointments
in southern Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No.
040819 between the Superior Court in Gila County and Diana G.
Montgomery, PLLC to increase the contract by $33,200 for an amended
contract amount not to exceed $79,000 for the remainder of the contract
term, July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 040819
Professional Services Contract No. 040819























   
ARF-5902   Consent Agenda Item     4. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2019-2020 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-01-19 to 06-30-20 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817 - Law
Offices of Steven Jones.

Background Information
On October 10, 2017, the Board of Supervisors approved Professional
Services Contract No. 090817 with the Law Offices of Stephen Jones,
whereby Mr. Jones provides legal services for indigent citizens as
appointed by the Superior Court in Gila County for the period beginning
November 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018. The original contract was executed
for a not to exceed without written authorization amount of $40,650.

On July 10, 2017, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1
to Professional Services Contract No. 090817 with Law Offices of Stephen
Jones extending the term of the contract for one additional year, from
July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019.

On October 30, 2018, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No.
2 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817 with Law Offices of
Stephen Jones to increase the contract by $7,500 for the contract term
July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019, due to the increase in the number of
appointments to Attorney Jones this fiscal year.

On June 4, 2019, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 to
Professional Services Contract No. 090817 with Law Offices of Stephen
Jones to increase the contract by $27,000 for the contract term July 1,
2018, to June 30, 2019, due to the increase in the number of



2018, to June 30, 2019, due to the increase in the number of
appointments to Attorney Jones this fiscal year; extend the term of the
contract for one additional year, from July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020;
increase the contract amount by $9,850 for a new total contract amount,
not to exceed $58,000 for the contract term July 1, 2019, to June 30,
2020; and remove some language from the contract.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817 increases
the contract by $36,000 for the contract term July 1, 2019, to June 30,
2020, due to the increase in the number of appointments to Attorney
Jones for a new contract amount not to exceed $94,000.

Conclusion
Court Administration wishes to execute Amendment No. 4 to Professional
Services Contract No. 090817 with Law Offices of Steven Jones to
increase the contract by $36,000 for the contract term July 1, 2019, to
June 30, 2020, due to the increase in the number of appointments to
Attorney Jones this fiscal year; for a new total contract amount not to
exceed $94,000 for the contract term July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.

Recommendation
The Deputy Court Administrator for the Superior Court in Gila County
recommends approving Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services
Contract No. 090817 with the Law Offices of Stephen Jones to increase
the contract by $36,000 for a new total contract amount not to exceed
$94,000 for the contract term July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020, due to the
increase in the number of appointments to Attorney Jones this fiscal year.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Contract No.
090817 between the Superior Court in Gila County and the Law Offices of
Stephen Jones to increase the contract by $36,000 for an amended
contract amount not to exceed $94,000 for the remainder of the contract
term, July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.

Attachments
Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817
Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817
Amendment No. 1 to professional Services Contract No. 090817



PSC-No.090817







































   
ARF-5906   Consent Agenda Item     4. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2020 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

01-08-20 to 01-07-21 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618 - Hayes
Enterprises Medical Director Services.

Background Information
On March 20, 2018, the Board of Supervisors approved Professional
Services Agreement No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises, so that Hayes
Enterprises can provide medical services to detainees in the Gila County
Sheriff's Office Jail Facility.

On October 30, 2018, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No.
1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises
to extend the term of the contract from January 8, 2019, to January 7,
2020, for a contract amount not to exceed $120,000.

Evaluation
Contract No. 022618 expires on January 7, 2020. The contract allows for
three additional one-year renewal periods at an annual cost of $120,000;
therefore, staff recommends that the contract be renewed for one
additional year, from January 8, 2020, to January 7, 2021.

Conclusion
Staff feels it is in the best interest of the Gila County Sheriff's Office Jail



Staff feels it is in the best interest of the Gila County Sheriff's Office Jail
Facility to renew the contract with Hayes Enterprises for another 12
months for a monthly rate of $10,000 with a not to exceed amount of
$120,000 during the term of the contract.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 2 to renew the contract with Hayes
Enterprises for one additional year, whereby Hayes Enterprises will
provide medical consulting and related services for the Gila County
Sheriff's Office Jail Facility.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement No.
022618 with Hayes Enterprises to extend the term of the contract for one
additional year (January 8, 2020, to January 7, 2021) in a not to exceed
amount of $120,000 for the continued provision of jail medical services
for the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Attachments
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618
Professional Service Agreement No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises



















   
ARF-5909   Consent Agenda Item     4. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Sportsman's Chalet's Application for a Temporary Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit.

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an
Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing
body of the city, town or county where the establishment is located. The
application can be submitted to temporarily or permanently extend the
premises/patio were serving liquor is permitted by the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC). The local governing
body usually has established internal procedures for review and approval
of the application. The DLLC has final approval of all recommendations
submitted by the local governing body.

Albert Keehn of Sportsman's Chalet submitted an application to
temporarily extend the premises/patio where liquor is permitted to be sold
during weekends from April 2, 2020, through June 29, 2020; July 3,
2020, through September 28, 2020; and October 2, 2020, through
November 2, 2020.

Evaluation
The application has been reviewed by the Clerk of the Board and by the
Building Official of the Community Development Division regarding the
proposed extended area for liquor to be served. The application clearly
indicates that the extended area will be to include the patio/parking lot
and the staff of Sportsman's Chalet will be provided the required training.

Conclusion
This application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a
decision. The Board's recommendation for approval or disapproval will
then be sent to the DLLC for a final decision.



Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval
recommendation to the DLLC.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Application for an Extension of Premises/Patio Permit
submitted by Albert Keehn to temporarily extend the premises where
liquor is permitted to be served at the Sportsman's Chalet located in
Strawberry.

Attachments
Sportsman's Chalet-Application
Sportsman's Chalet-CD Response















   
ARF-5933   Consent Agenda Item     4. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Reporting
Period:

February 4, 2020, February 18, 2020, and February 25,
2020 Meeting Minutes

Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
February 4, 2020, February 18, 2020, and February 25, 2020, Board of
Supervisors' Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the February 4, 2020, February 18, 2020, and February 25,
2020, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
02-04-20 Meeting Minutes
02-18-20 Meeting Minutes
02-25-20 Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 9 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  February 4, 2020 

 
WOODY CLINE       MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN          By: Melissa Henderson 
Vice-Chairman                      Deputy Clerk                                     

  
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (via 
ITV); and Tim R. Humphrey, Member 

 
STAFF PRESENT:  W. James Menlove, County Manager (via ITV); Jefferson R. 
Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Charles Shire, 

Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief (via ITV); and Melissa 
Henderson, Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 

STAFF ABSENT:  Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 
 
Chairman Cline called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 

the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Terry Links led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Jefferson Dalton delivered the invocation. 
 

Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 

A.  Recognition of Gila County employees who have been employed for 5, 
10, 15, 20, 25 and 30 years as of 2019.  
 

Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Senior, presented the service 
awards for those employees in Globe and they were simultaneously presented 

to employees in Payson.  Chairman Cline announced there would be a short 
recess immediately following the award presentations so that pictures could be 
taken, and refreshments served.  The award presentation ended at 10:08 a.m. 

and Chairman Cline reconvened the meeting at 10:14 a.m. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion regarding the Community Development 

Department's Building Safety and Planning & Zoning Divisions. 
 



Page 2 of 9 

 

Scott Buzan, Community Development Department Director, explained the 
workings of the Community Development Department which has 14 team 

members and 4 divisions, as follows:  Building Safety, Planning & Zoning, Code 
Enforcement, and Wastewater.  The Community Development Department 

operates under the “one-stop shop” concept to provide services.  Mr. Buzan 
stated that he would be presenting 2 of the 4 divisions and the other divisions 
would be presented later.   

 
The primary services provided by the Building Safety Division are as follows: 
building code enforcement, building code education, building permits, building 

plan review, building inspections, site plan reviews, and problem-solving.  For 
2019, there were 454 PDI (pre-permit information) forms processed resulting in 

a 55% increase over 2018.  The division provides the customer with a written 
document that explains or clarifies the needed items for each project.  It is the 
goal of the staff to turn the documents around in 5 days.  At present staff’s 

turnaround rate is 2.9 days on average. Other divisions are also quick on the 
return time to get the customer the information.  A total of 1,282 building 

permits were issued in 2019, resulting in a 6% increase over last year.  A total 
of 98 single-family residence permits were issued, a 10% increase over last year 
with a plan review of 15 days or less to process, resulting in a 91% increase 

over last year.  A total of 56 commercial permits were issued.  With all permits 
issued, a little over $19.5 million was generated for new construction.  Staff 
meets with contractors on a quarterly basis and planners are now invited to 

the meetings.  Meetings have been well attended and received.  Video 
inspections using skype were recently implemented; however, the staff has run 

into some challenges regarding internet serviceability.  Staff also completed 649 
plan reviews and 6,882 inspections with a total of 46,156 inspector miles 
driven. 

 
The Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Division has 3 employees and Mr. Buzan stated 
that they are doing well.  The primary mission of the P&Z Division is to 

conserve and promote the public health, safety, and general welfare by guiding 
and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious County 

development and future growth with the following:  Gila County Comprehensive 
Master Plan, planning, enforcement (interpretation and revising of the Gila 
County Zoning Ordinance), educating the public about County zoning 

regulations, pre-application meetings, rezoning of land, variances, 
administrative variances, use permits (including conditional and temporary), 

development plans, subdivision plats (including preliminary and final), Gila 
County Subdivision Ordinance, Gila County Minor Land Division Ordinance, 
lot line adjustments and records of survey.  Some statistical highlights for 2019 

include:  18 pre-application meetings were held; 10 variances were issued; 50 
administrative variances were resolved; 5 rezonings were completed; 1 
conditional use permit, 4 temporary use permits, and 11 use permits were 

issued; 9 development plans and 1 comprehensive plan amendment were 
reviewed; 16 cases were heard by the Board of Adjustment; 10 cases were 



Page 3 of 9 

 

heard by the P&Z Commission; all zoning application forms were revised 
including instruction sheets and checklists; a re-write of the Zoning Ordinance 

began; and currently staff is working with developers on a 10 lot subdivision 
east of Globe, 2 new RV parks in Tonto Basin, 2 wedding venues in Pine and 

Strawberry, a bakery in Strawberry, an 8-10 room lodge in Pine, and 
development of 16 single-family residences in Pine. 
 

Mr. Buzan concluded by informing the Board that the Community 
Development staff is prepared to assist the County in the upcoming capital 
projects.  Each Supervisor thanked Mr. Buzan for the presentation and 

complimented the Community Development staff. 
 

Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's Office 

electronic submission of the annual Arizona 9-1-1 Grant Program 
Application to the Arizona Department of Administration, Office of Grants 

and Federal Resources in the amount of $325,418 to support FY2021 Gila 
9-1-1 Network Operations.  
 

Debra Williams, Sheriff’s Office 911 Coordinator, explained that this is an 
annual grant opportunity for which the Sheriff’s Office submits an application 
for grant funds each year.  This year the amount has been increased and, if 

awarded, the funds will be used for infrastructure and qualified expenses that 
support other operations.  Supervisor Humphrey asked Ms. Williams if this 

potential funding would help with additional staffing.  Ms. Williams responded 
that the grant funding will not support staffing due to the conditions of the 
grant.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 

Humphrey, the Board unanimously authorized the electronic submission of the 
Arizona 9-1-1 Grant Program Application in the amount of $325,418. 
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a Citizens' Petition 
to begin the process to establish E. Granny Jones Lane from SR 288 to 

the north boundary of parcel 305-26-007H, also shown as Parcel 3A on 
Record of Survey 4053, Gila County Records, as a primitive road.  
 

Steve Sanders, Public Works Department Director, explained that on December 
11, 2019, Public Works received a Citizens’ Petition from homeowners in Young 

to have a roadway that is 2,800 feet long and which crosses multiple properties 
designated as a primitive road under the Gila County Maintained Roadway 
System.  Mr. Sanders advised that accepting the petition is the first step in the 

process.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously accepted the Citizens’ Petition to begin the 
process to establish E. Granny Jones Lane (as described above) as a primitive 

road. 
 



Page 4 of 9 

 

C.  Information/Discussion/Action to review the bid submitted for 
Request for Proposals No. 102119-Consultation Services: Health 

Prevention and Surveillance Services; award to Guild Health Consulting 
in the amount of $100,000; and authorize the Chairman's signature on 

the award contract.  
 
Michael O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Department Director, 

explained that on November 19, 2019, the Gila County Public Health Division 
(GCPHD) received authorization from the Board of Supervisors to advertise 
Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 102119.  The GCPHD seeks to improve 

outcomes for residents affected by the current public health opioid epidemic 
and increase program effectiveness and utilization of immunization programs 

for community members and vulnerable populations. The GCPHD is seeking 
consultation services from local Arizona, health-focused consultants in the 
areas of opioid prevention services, and immunization marketing and research 

programming for rural communities. The GCPHD has allocated $60,000 for 
opioid prevention and $40,000 for immunization marketing and research 

consultative services. It is requested that bids comprehensively address 
prevention services in these areas.  The RFP was sent to 7 different contractors 
and advertised in the newspaper.  Gila County received one bid from Guild 

Health Consulting which was in full compliance with the bid guidelines. Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the 
Board unanimously awarded Contract No. 102119 to Guild Consulting LLC in 

the amount of $100,000. 
  

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Qualifications No. 010220-Indigent Defense Attorney Services 
as outlined in the solicitation.  

 
Jonathan Bearup, Superior Court Administrator, presented this agenda item.  
Each year the Superior Court in Gila County retains various attorneys to 

provide professional legal services, such as representation for indigent citizens 
in the categories of felony and misdemeanor criminal actions, delinquency, 

dependency, and mental health cases, as well as mediation services.  Mr. 
Bearup stated that the oversight of the indigent defense program was given to 
Superior Court Administration in 2014. Since that time judges have changed 

and case processes have changed, so it was time to re-evaluate the approach. 
Superior Court Administration reviewed the prior practice of issuing 

professional service contracts for attorneys and has identified a robust 
selection process to select attorneys based on a scoring matrix.  A limited 
number of contracts for attorneys will be issued based on a request for a 

qualification’s selection process. The intent is to retain qualified contract 
attorneys and limit the number of contracts issued.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the Board unanimously 

authorized the advertisement of Request for Qualifications No. 010220. 
 



Page 5 of 9 

 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt revised Policy BOS-HRS-625-
Personnel Commission changing the election of the Chairperson from an 

annual basis to a four-year term.  
 

Shelly McPherson, Human Resources Department Director, explained that this 
request is to change the election of the Personnel Commission Chairman from 
an annual basis to a term of 4 years.  The Chairman of the Personnel 

Commission is statutorily required to sit on the Public Safety Personnel 
Retirement System Local Board, the Correctional Officers Retirement Plan 
(CORP) Local Board for Dispatchers, and the CORP Local Board for Detention 

Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers.  This change aligns with the 4-year terms 
of office for those boards.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by 

Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted revised Policy No. 
BOS-HRS-625. 
 

F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Gila County Attorney's 
application to use monies from the Gila County Anti-Racketeering Fund 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 13-2314.03 to pay the outstanding tax lien against 
Gila County parcel number 305-40-031 to prevent foreclosure of the 
property and then to reimburse the fund for the tax lien payment from 

the proceeds of the sale of the property.  
 
Jefferson Dalton, Chief Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, advised 

that the subject property was seized by law enforcement officers due to the 
production of methamphetamine on the property.  In accordance with the 

Settlement Agreement attached to the agenda item, Mr. Dalton stated that the 
property will be sold and divided between the County and the owner.  He added 
that due to a statutory change a couple of years ago, Board approval is 

required to allocate funds from the Anti-Racketeering Fund.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved the Gila County Attorney's application to use monies 

from the Gila County Anti-Racketeering Fund to pay the outstanding tax lien 
against Gila County parcel number 305-40-031 to prevent foreclosure of the 

property and then to reimburse the fund for the tax lien payment from the 
proceeds of the sale of the property.  
 

G.  Information/Discussion/Action to determine the County's position on 
the issue regarding the Forest Service 203 Road.  

 
Chairman Cline advised that a meeting is scheduled for February 19, 2020, to 
discuss the Forest Service (FS) 203 Road which will be facilitated by Southwest 

Decision Resources.  He stated that this topic was discussed at the Board’s 
Work Session that was held on December 10, 2019, but there was no real path 
to move forward.  Chairman Cline requested this item on today's agenda to get 

the other Supervisors' opinions on the matter and to decide on a direction that 
the Board should take to define the County’s position with regard to any action 



Page 6 of 9 

 

that will be required to reopen the road.  Chairman Cline called on Supervisor 
Humphrey first, due to the road being in Supervisorial District III which is 

Supervisor Humphrey’s district. 
 

Supervisor Humphrey is concerned that once a gate is in place on the FS 203 
Road, it will be very hard to have it removed.  He believes that the wilderness 
group has not communicated what they would consider as a negotiation 

solution.  Supervisor Humphrey is frustrated that the wilderness group is not 
responding.  He stated, “They ask but they do not offer any compromises or 
solutions.”  

 
Chairman Cline stated that during his last conversation with the Southwest 

Decision Resources group, it was made clear that their sites are strictly on 
expanding the FS 203 Road to the east and they are not willing to deviate from 
that direction.  He added that there is no infrastructure, water lines, or 

anything that would interfere with a wilderness area to the west of the FS 203 
Road and it is his belief that this issue can only be resolved with a change in 

legislation because it is a federal issue.  Chairman Cline stated that should the 
Southwest Decision Resources group decide to separate from the County on its 
position regarding the FS 203 Road, it would be a fight.  Vice-Chairman Martin 

suggested that Sheriff Shepherd may want to speak to the issue. 
 
J. Adam Shepherd, Gila County Sheriff, advised that there is very little access 

to the subject area, so it is difficult for the Sheriff’s Office to respond to 
emergency calls.  Should access to the FS 203 Road be eliminated, there 

wouldn’t be accessible for ground vehicles; there would only be access by 
helicopter and foot traffic.  Sheriff Shepherd does not believe closing ground 
access will reduce foot traffic much; however, it will make it harder for search 

and rescue.  He stated, “The other site on Aztec (Road) will be another problem.  
We would have to move the radio installation generator to another site.  
Without access, we would have to abandon the site and if we move it, we will 

not have the radio coverage that we have on Aztec.  It is operated with propane 
and we cannot send it up by helicopter and that is not an option.  There is no 

other option for us to replace those services with the closure of those roads.”   
 
Chairman Cline agreed with Sheriff Shepherd.  He commented that if gates are 

installed on the FS 203 Road, they will be placed at the north and south ends 
of where the wilderness lines cross the FS 203 Road.  Access will be limited to 

that specific area within the gates.  He stated, “Tim pushed hard on 202A Road 
to the east to Cherry Creek close to the power lines.  We are looking at placing 
that into a maintenance agreement and working on those that will give us some 

open and passable area.  The wilderness group has stated that they do not care 
about any other roads, just 203.  They just want the leverage to expand the 
wilderness.  When it comes to the Aztec road, the wilderness group does not 

care about it at this time.” 
 



Page 7 of 9 

 

Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District Librarian, stated, “The 
wilderness group is not interested in a trade of any kind.  They are looking to 

grow that wilderness and will lock up land and no one will be able to utilize the 
land.  They are looking to get as much as they can get to grow that wilderness.   

As a county, we already have 8 wildernesses on the Tonto (National Forest).  
They want to triple it.” 
 

Vice-Chairman Martin stated that it would be best to start the process to 
determine how to have an administrative change submitted regarding the FS 
203 Road.  Chairman Cline and Supervisor Humphrey agreed that an 

administrative change would be the easiest.  Ms. Sanders asked if the 
Chairman was looking for a County-approved alternative to take to the meeting 

on the 18th or just a discussion?  Chairman Cline replied that he was looking 
for a decision on what the County’s position would be and he asked for legal 
clarification.  Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau 

Chief, explained that since the agenda item was written with such a broad 
statement, the Board can discuss the item, take action on the Board's position 

or take no action at this time.  Ms. Sanders asked Mr. Dalton if the motion 
could be “to proceed pursuing a solution.”  Mr. Dalton stated that would be 
fine.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 

Humphrey, the Board unanimously agreed to proceed pursuing a solution 
regarding the FS 203 Road.    
 

H.  Information/Discussion/Action to appoint Mr. Bill Marshall to the 
Board of Directors of The Industrial Development Authority of the County 

of Gila, Arizona (IDA) for a term of office that will expire on December 31, 
2025.   
 

Chairman Cline addressed this agenda item.  Mr. Bill Bennett’s term of office 
on the IDA expired on December 31, 2019.  He does not wish to be 
reappointed, so Chairman Cline requested the Board to consider his 

recommendation to appoint Mr. William (Bill) Marshall to the IDA for the 6-year 
term of office that began on January 1, 2020, through December 31, 2025.  

This board member would represent Supervisor Cline’s district.  Upon motion 
by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously appointed Mr. William (Bill) Marshall to the Board of Directors of 

the IDA for the term of office that will expire on December 31, 2025. 
 

I.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services 
Contract No. 020120 with Bose Public Affairs Group, which will terminate 
Contract No. 071014-2 to continue providing lobbying and consulting 

services at the federal government level to Gila County in the amount of 
$84,000 per year (at a rate of $7,000 per month) plus up to $4,000 in 
travel related expenses, effective February 1, 2020, through June 30, 

2021.  
 



Page 8 of 9 

 

Ms. Sanders advised that changes needed to be made to the contract and she 
requested that the Board table this item until the February 18, 2020 Board 

meeting.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously tabled Professional Services Contract No. 

020120 until the February 18, 2020 Board of Supervisors’ Regular Meeting.  
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 

Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 
A.  Adoption of an Order designating polling places and the appointment 

of poll workers and election board workers for the purpose of conducting 
the March 17, 2020, Presidential Preference Election.  
 

B.  Acknowledgment of the election of Janice Chesser and the 
reappointment of Linda Oddonetto to the Community Action Program 

Advisory Board for the term beginning January 1, 2020, through 
December 31, 2023.  
 

C.  Approval of the January 21, 2020, and January 28, 2020, Board of 
Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 

D.  Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  

 
E.  Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.   

 
F.  Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  

 
G.  Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report 

submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
H.  Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report 

submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 

I.  Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 

Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
the Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 4A-4I. 
 

Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 



Page 9 of 9 

 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 

of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 

future date. 
 
There weren’t any comments from the public. 

 
Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 

 
Supervisors Martin, Humphrey and Cline, the County Manager, and the 

Deputy County Manager presented a summary of current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 11:29 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 

Woody Cline, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 12 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  February 18, 2020 

 
WOODY CLINE       MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN          By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                             

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (via 
ITV); Tim R. Humphrey, Member; W. James Menlove, County Manager; 

Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Charles 
Shire, Deputy County Attorney-Civil (via ITV); Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the 
Board; and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk of the Board. 

 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 
 

Chairman Cline called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 
the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  He asked for a moment of silence in 

honor of Officer David Kellywood of the White Mountain Apache Police 
Department, who was killed in the line of duty this past weekend.  Cathy 
Melvin led the Pledge of Allegiance and Jefferson Dalton delivered the 

invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 

 
A.  Presentation of information on the University of Arizona's Cooperative 

Extension Family Consumer Health Science Program.   
 
Ashley Dixon, Family Consumer Health Science Agent for the Gila County 

Cooperative Extension Program, advised that she has been working for the 
University of Arizona Cooperative Extension for about 9 years; however, she 

has been in her current position for the past 2.5 years.  Under Gila County 
Cooperative Extension, Ms. Dixon explained that there are 3 areas of focus:  
Family and Consumer Health Sciences (FCHS), 4-H Youth Development, and 

Agriculture and Natural Resources.  Prior to Ms. Dixon taking the position, 
there hadn’t been anyone in the position in Gila County for the past 20 years.  
Currently, FCHS has 7 staff stationed across Gila County.  When Ms. Dixon 

began working in this position, she did a needs and assets report to determine 
the needs of Gila County.  As a result, two areas of focus resulted which are 



Page 2 of 12 

 

Family Engagement Programs and Health and Wellness Programs.  Ms. Dixon 
advised that in the past 2.5 years, she has brought in $1.8M in external grant 

funds to include federal, state and internal funds through a competitive grant 
writing process.  She proceeded to provide an overview of the Family 

Engagement Programs and statistics for 2019, as follows:  Financial Literacy; 
Developmental and Sensory Screening for Gila County; Developmental and 
Sensory Screenings for San Carlos; Positive Discipline; and Early Literacy 

Program for San Carlos.  Ms. Dixon reviewed the Health and Wellness 
programs and statistics for 2019, as follows:  First Smiles (oral health) for Gila 
County; Child Care Health Consultant for Gila County; Nutrition, Obesity and 

Physical Activity for San Carlos; and Ag Daze.  Each Board member thanked 
Ms. Dixon for the information presented.  Vice-Chairman Martin requested that 

the Board receive a report on how well each of the programs are working, and 
she also wanted to know if any of the Cooperative Extension programs could be 
coordinated with Gila County Health Department programs.  Ms. Dixon replied 

that the presentation provided today was the “condensed version” and she 
agreed to provide the Board with more detailed information.  

 
B.  Presentation of information on Northeastern Arizona Innovative 
Workforce Solutions.  

 
Stephanie Ray, Executive Director at ARIZONA@WORK Northeastern Arizona, 
explained that the Department of Labor establishes the workforce development 

areas.  A few years ago, Gila, Navajo and Apache Counties formed a consortium 
to provide services under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act for the 

Northeastern Arizona area.  Ms. Ray explained that previously the workforce 
investment board, now called the workforce development board, had oversight 
for one set of programs; the Adult, Dislocated Worker and Youth Programs.  

With the new law enacted in 2014 and implemented in 2015, it shifted the role 
of the workforce development board to an oversight entity for 11 workforce 
programs.  Ms. Ray stated that she and other staff members oversee the 

strategic vision of the Northeastern Arizona Local Workforce Development 
Board and the Navajo County Health Department is under contract to provide 

the services to the job seekers in all three counties.  The vision of the  
Northeastern Arizona Local Workforce Development Board is to: 1) serve as the 
strategic leader and convener of local workforce development system 

stakeholders, 2) partner with employers and with the workforce development 
system, 3) support regional economies, and development of sector strategies 

and career pathways, and 4) support high quality, customer-centered service 
delivery.  Ms. Ray advised that the bylaws of the local governing board require 
that each county must have four business representatives serving on the local 

governing board.  She added that it has been very difficult for Gila and Apache 
Counties to recruit business representatives resulting in the board being in 
non-compliance.  The state has given the local governing board a waiver until 

March 31, 2020, to get into compliance.  Ms. Ray stated that there are two 
open seats for Gila County business representatives, and she asked each Board 



Page 3 of 12 

 

member if they could help with the recruitment efforts.  She proceeded to 
explain the role and requirements for being a business representative.  Ms. Ray 

advised that a job description for a business representative was given to the 
Clerk of the Board just before this meeting, and stated that it will be 

disseminated to each Supervisor and the County Manager.  She reviewed the 
goals and strategies for the 2020-2024 Local Plan.  Ms. Ray then talked 
specifically about Gila County.  There have been 50 Gila County enrollments in 

the Adult, Dislocated Worker and Youth Programs, with 2 recent CDL 
(Commercial Driver’s License) graduates who had immediate job offers.  A 
strong partnership has been formed with the IBEW and presently there are 7 

enrollees in the Electrical Apprenticeship Program.  There will be a community 
job fair on March 4th in partnership with Miami High School.  Vice-Chairman 

Martin asked Ms. Ray to provide a list of current board members to include 
their respective type of representation on the board and she asked for the 
Board to receive regular updates to which Ms. Ray agreed.  Ms. Ray answered a 

few more questions of the Board and then each member thanked her for the 
presentation. 

 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve and authorize the 
Chairman's signature on the Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality (ADEQ) Government Services Contract not to exceed $15,000 

whereby ADEQ will conduct a lead and asbestos survey on the building 
located at 621 W. Hwy 177, Hayden, Arizona.   

 
Chairman Cline advised that this requested Board action is to execute a 
contract with ADEQ to conduct a lead and asbestos survey on the building that 

is located next to the former Hayden motel, which was demolished last year.  
He explained that the process to get the building demolished will be the same 
process that was used for the demolition of the former Hayden motel.  It is the 

intent of the County to work with ADEQ to have the building abated (if 
necessary), demolished and the debris from the demolition removed from the 

property.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously authorized the Chairman's signature on 
the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Government Services 

Contract not to exceed $15,000. 
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) No. 120119 with the Town of Winkelman for Justice 
Court case management of the Town’s criminal misdemeanor and criminal 

traffic case filings and terminations and authorize the Chairman's 
signature on the IGA.   
 

Jordan Reardon, Globe Regional Justice of the Peace, advised that an 
operational review conducted by the Arizona Supreme Court last year found 



Page 4 of 12 

 

the facilities of the Winkelman Municipal Court to be inadequate to handle 
criminal case processing primarily due to the lack of a digital recording system, 

absence of an attorney and language access services, and security concerns 
over the control of in-custody defendants.  With this IGA, Judge Reardon 

explained that there will not be any additional charges to the municipality for 
the work, but rather the County would retain the fees and fines associated with 
those cases.  He added that this IGA is the same as the one executed with the 

City of Globe last month.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved IGA No. 120119. 
 

C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services 
Contract No. 020120 with Bose Public Affairs Group, which will terminate 

Contract No. 071014-2 to continue providing lobbying and consulting 
services at the federal government level to Gila County in the amount of 
$84,000 per year (at a rate of $7,000 per month) plus up to $4,000 in 

travel related expenses, effective February 1, 2020, through June 30, 
2021.  

 
Mary Springer, Finance Director, stated that the contract being presented to 
the Board “has much-needed revisions.”  She stated that the County initially 

entered into a contract with Bose Public Affairs Group in 2009 and, at times, 
the contract has been revised.  She requested the Board to terminate the 
existing contract which is based on an hourly charge for services and approve 

the new contract being presented which is on a retainer basis.  She added that 
the contract will be administered by the County Manager so there are outcomes 

and reporting responsibility.  Vice-Chairman Martin and Supervisor Humphrey 
were pleased with the terms of the new contract.  Chairman Cline stated that 
he is curious to see how this contract will work out.  He added that the County 

has a long list of projects of which Patty Power’s help will be needed so he is 
anxious to get those projects presented to the County Manager.  He stated, “I 
will watch closely to see if we use her services and when we get to 2021 and see 

we don’t use her that much, that is another conversation.  I agree to have it all 
channeled through James (Menlove) to have accountability.”  Upon motion by 

Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the Board 
unanimously approved Professional Services Contract No. 020120. 
 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 20-02-02 
designating emergency voting centers for the March 17, 2020, 

Presidential Preference Election.   
 
Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District Librarian, presented this 

agenda item on behalf of Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, who was unable to 
attend the meeting.  Ms. Sanders explained that a specific resolution must be 
adopted by the Board of Supervisors to designate emergency voting centers for 

a specific election.  This resolution, if adopted, will establish emergency voting 
centers for the March 17, 2020, Presidential Preference Election.  Upon motion 



Page 5 of 12 

 

by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted Resolution No. 20-02-02.  (A copy of the resolution is 

permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office and attached to 
these minutes.) 

 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge receipt of the Gila 
County Homeless Task Force Strategic Plan 2019-2022 as submitted by 

the Community Services Department Director and as required by the 
Arizona Department of Housing.  
 

Malissa Buzan, Community Services Department Director, presented this 
agenda item.  The Gila County Community Services Department has been 

identified by the State Continuum of Care as the local lead agency for Gila 
County.  A Gila County Homeless Task Force was created and meets monthly 
with the goal to prevent and end homelessness in the geographic area of Gila 

County.  Ms. Buzan advised that a strategic plan has been created to set goals 
as part of the Arizona Balance of State Continuum of Care funding guidelines.  

She added that the Gila County Homeless Task Force approved the Gila 
County Homeless Task Force Strategic Plan 2019-2022 on September 26, 
2019.  Ms. Buzan stated that because this task force has been established, 3 

applications for funding were submitted to the state and 2 of them have been 
funded.  Each Board member thanked Ms. Buzan for her efforts, and she 
replied that the credit must also be shared with her staff.  Upon motion by 

Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the Board 
unanimously acknowledged the Gila County Homeless Task Force Strategic 

Plan 2019-2022 as submitted by the Community Services Department Director 
and as required by the Arizona Department of Housing.  
 

Chairman Cline advised that he received a public participation form from Jesse 
Bryant requesting to address Consent Agenda item 4A, specifically, the 
appointment of Ms. Daisy Flores as a Superior Court Judge Pro Tempore.  

Chairman Cline asked for a Board motion to move this item to the regular 
agenda so that Mr. Bryant would be provided an opportunity to make some 

comments.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously moved Consent Agenda item 4A to 
the regular agenda.   

 
4A.  Approval of the appointment of Mr. Joe Albo, Ms. Daisy Flores and 

Mr. Gary V. Scales as Superior Court Judges Pro Tempore for the period of 
June 30, 2020, until July 1, 2021.  
 

Chairman Cline called on Mr. Jesse Bryant to address the Board.  Mr. Bryant 
provided his name and home address for the record.  Mr. Bryant stated that he 

is a reporter for X92.7 FM radio station in Globe.  He stated, “I was wondering 
if somebody could explain who nominates these individuals for this position. 
Secondly, I was wondering if the Board has been aware of any concerns about 



Page 6 of 12 

 

the suspected involvement of Ms. Flores in the alleged misappropriation of 
funds and abuses of authority by her husband, Dr. Tim Trent, while she was 

County Attorney and the Superintendent of the Globe School District and also, 
are there any concerns about such employment being a circumventing of the 

election process where the voters chose not to re-elect Ms. Flores as County 
Attorney?  Thank you.”  After a brief discussion between the Board members; 
James Menlove, County Manager; and Jefferson Dalton, Deputy Gila County 

Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, the Board directed staff to obtain the answers to 
the questions.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously tabled Consent Agenda item 4A to the next 

Regular Meeting to allow staff time to provide answers to Mr. Bryant’s 
questions.   

 
Supervisor Humphrey requested to make a comment on Consent Agenda items 
4E and 4F, which was the respective appointment of Bryan Goslin to the Gila 

County Planning and Zoning Commission, and the Gila County Board of 
Adjustment.  Mr. Goslin will be fulfilling the unexpired term of office on both 

boards that was previously held by Bill Marshall.  Supervisor Humphrey 
publicly thanked Mr. Marshall for serving on these boards and he also thanked 
Mr. Goslin for agreeing to serve.  It was mentioned that Mr. Marshall resigned 

from said Board to concentrate on his duties as a member of the Industrial 
Development Authority of the County of Gila, Arizona. 
 

Chairman Cline asked for a motion on the remaining Consent Agenda action 
items. 

 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 

upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 

A.  Approval of the appointment of Mr. Joe Albo, Ms. Daisy Flores and Mr. 
Gary V. Scales as Superior Court Judges Pro Tempore for the period of 

June 30, 2020, until July 1, 2021. This agenda item was moved to the 
regular agenda and addressed prior to the Consent Agenda action items. 
 

B.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 
040519 with Collins & Collins, Attorneys at Law, to increase the contract 

by $22,600 for a new contract amount not to exceed $34,600 for the 
contract term July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.    
 

C.  Approval of Amendment No 3 to Professional Services Contract No. 
051017 with Harriette P. Levitt to increase the contract by $5,500 for the 
contract term of July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020, due to the increased 

demand for appointments; amount not to exceed $10,500 for the contract 
term July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.  



Page 7 of 12 

 

 
D.  Approval of Amendment No. 7 to Request for Qualified Vendor 

Agreement No. DDD 710000 between the Arizona Department of 
Economic Security, Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD), and Gila 

County, Gila Employment and Special Training Division, to allow for the 
continued provision of DDD services to eligible residents of Gila County 
and remain in compliance with federal and state regulations and 

provisions of the Qualified Vendor Agreement.  
 
E.  Approval to appoint Bryan Goslin to the Gila County Planning and 

Zoning Commission to fulfill Bill Marshall's unexpired term of office that 
ends on December 31, 2022.  

 
F.  Approval to appoint Bryan Goslin to the Gila County Board of 
Adjustment to fulfill Bill Marshall's unexpired term of office that ends on 

December 31, 2021.  
 

G.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 
the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel 
number 208-07-028 to A. Denton Cline.  

 
H.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 
the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel 

number 208-07-029 to A. Denton Cline.  
 

I.  Approval of the Human Resources Department monthly activity reports 
for January 2020.  
 

JANUARY 7, 2020 
 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Brandon Allinson - Community Services - Community Services Worker - 
12/20/19 - Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program Fund - DOH 

06/04/18 
2. Saban Mata - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 11/20/19 - General Fund 
- DOH 03/26/18 

 
NEW HIRES: 

3. Evan Schmitz - Health and Emergency Services - Environmental Health 
Specialist - 02/03/20 - Health Service Fund - Replacing Jennifer Hicklin 
4. Clayton Huggins - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 01/06/20 - General 

Fund - Replacing Mark Joerns 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

5. Fernando Morales - Public Works - Road Maintenance and Equipment 
Operator - 01/14/20 - Public Works Fund 



Page 8 of 12 

 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 

6. David Falquez - Community Services - Temporary Mobile Crew - 01/01/20 - 
GEST Fund - Arizona minimum wage increase  

7. Eric Butler - Community Services - Temporary Mobile Crew - 01/01/20 - 
GEST Fund - Arizona minimum wage increase  
8. Rochelle Madrid - Facilities and Land Management - Custodian - 01/01/20 - 

Arizona minimum wage increase  
 
JANUARY 14, 2020 

 
NEW HIRES: 

1. Victoria Waynick - Superior Court - Calendar Administrator - 01/13/20 - 
General Fund - Replacing Manuel Lopez 
2. Jennifer Fansler - Clerk of Superior Court - Court Clerk - 01/20/20 - 

General Fund - Replacing Chrystelle Crick 
3. Shawnelle Garcia - Clerk of Superior Court - Court Clerk - 01/20/20 - 

General Fund - Replacing Adriean Rutledge 
4. Casey Clifton - Community Development - Zoning and Building Inspector - 
01/20/20 - General Fund - Replacing Thomas Piazza 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5. Patricia Valenzuela - Public Works - GIS Technician - 01/28/20 - General 

Fund 
6. Charity Dale - Sheriff's Office - Administrative Clerk - 01/07/20 - General 

Fund 
7. Deeshiaha Jurhs - Sheriff's Office - Accounting Clerk Specialist - 02/04/20 - 
General Fund 

8. Chebel Trimble - Sheriff's Office - Records Clerk - 02/04/20 - General Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

9. Joseph Williams - Assessor's Office - From Chief Deputy Assessor - To 
Assessor - 01/01/20 - General Fund - Replacing Deborah Hughes 

10. Adriean Rutledge - Clerk of Superior Court - From Court Clerk - To Court 
Administrative Assistant - 01/20/20 - General Fund - Replacing Jolene Myers 
11. Steven Jensen - Assessor's Office - From Chief Appraiser - Chief Deputy 

Assessor - 01/01/20 - General Fund - Replacing Joseph Williams 
 

OTHER ACTIONS: 
12. Danielle Rocha - Clerk of Superior Court - Court Clerk - 01/02/20 - 
General Fund - Extending probationary period an additional six months 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
13. Superior Court - Court Case Management System Trainer - Vacated by 

Danny McKeen 
 



Page 9 of 12 

 

JANUARY 21, 2020 
 

DEPARTURES: 
1. Roy Bruno - Probation - Juvenile Detention Officer - 01/07/20 - General 

Fund - DOH 11/23/15 
2. Brenda Dominguez - County Attorney's Office - Legal Secretary Senior - 
01/16/20 - General Fund - DOH 11/25/19 

 
NEW HIRES: 
3. Michael Wicks - Public Works - Automotive Mechanic - 01/20/20 - Fleet 

Management Fund - Replacing Rusty Merchant 
4. Regina Gregory - Superior Court - Administrative Clerk Senior - 02/03/20 – 

CASA (.50) /Court Improvement Project (.50) Funds - Replacing Judy 
Alexander 
 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
5. Samantha Irish - County Attorney's Office - Temporary Administrative Clerk 

- 01/27/20 - Deferred Prosecution Program Fund - Replacing Maria Cook 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

6. Rusty Merchant - Public Works - Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic Senior - 
01/28/20 - Public Works Fund 
7. Taylor Perez - Health and Emergency Services - Community Health 

Specialist - 01/22/20 - Community Health Grant Fund 
 

OTHER ACTIONS: 
8. Eric Avalos - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 12/23/19 - General Fund - 
Change in overtime fund 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
County Attorney's Office - Legal Secretary - Vacated by Brenda Dominguez 

 
JANUARY 28, 2020 

 
NEW HIRES: 
1. Steven Saiz - Public Works - Road Maintenance Worker - 02/03/20 - Public 

Works Fund - Replacing Fernando Morales 
 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
2. Carol Broeder - Elections - Temporary Administrative Clerk - 01/27/20 - 
General Fund - Replacing Beverly Hawkins 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
3. Jerry Moore - Facilities and Land Management - Building Maintenance 

Supervisor - 01/22/20 - Facilities Management Fund  
4. Israel Juarez - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 02/04/20 - General Fund  



Page 10 of 12 

 

5. Jared Osborn - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer Lt. - 01/23/20 - General 
Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

6. Yvette Hoffman - Payson Justice Court - From Justice Court Clerk Senior - 
To Justice Court Clerk Lead - 03/02/20 - General Fund - Replacing Cheri 
Heppler 

7. Savannah Barajas - Health and Emergency Services - Administrative Clerk 
Senior - 01/20/20 - From Health Service Fund - To Immunization(.50)/Private 
Stock Vaccines(.50) Funds - Replacing Stella Gore 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 

8. Thoreina Hensley - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff Detective - 12/16/19 - 
General Fund - Change in overtime fund 
9. Andrew Marchesseault - Sheriff's Office - From Deputy Sheriff - To Deputy 

Sheriff Detective - 02/03/20 - General Fund - Special assignment 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
10. Payson Justice Court - Justice Court Clerk Senior - Vacated by Yvette 
Hoffman 

11. Clerk of Superior Court - Courtroom Clerk Title IV-D - Vacated by 
Stephanie Perez 
 

J.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the month of 
January 2020.    

 
Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 300708 through 300799, 300801 through 300805, 300807 through 

301097, and 301099 through 301223 totaling $3,899,304.01 for the period 01-

01-20 through 01-31-20.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants is permanently attached to 

these minutes.) 

 
K.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the month of January 2020.  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, 

the Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 4B-4K. 



Page 11 of 12 

 

 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 

benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 

may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 

of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 

future date. 
 

There weren’t any public comments. 
 
Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on the information presented. 
 
The County Manager and Supervisors presented a summary of current events.  

 
Chairman Cline asked for a motion to go into executive session to address item 
7A.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 

Martin, the Board unanimously voted to go into executive session at 11:20 a.m. 
 

Item 7 - EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to hold an executive session 

under A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) for discussion and consultation to 
obtain legal advice from the Board's attorneys regarding the Mutual 
Release and Settlement Agreement concerning Ray Stephens, Jr. and 

Julie La Magna, and in order for the Board to consider its position and 
instruct its attorneys regarding the Board's position regarding contracts 

that are the subject of negotiations, in pending or contemplated 
litigation, or in settlement discussions in order to avoid or resolve 
litigation.  

 
 

Chairman Cline reconvened the meeting at 12:12 p.m. and asked for a motion 
on item 7A.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously directed the Deputy Gila County 

Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, to proceed as directed in the executive session. 
  
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 12:12 p.m. 
 



Page 12 of 12 

 

APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 4 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  February 25, 2020 

 
WOODY CLINE                                               MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN   By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                             

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY                                               Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman (via ITV); Tommie C. Martin, Vice-
Chairman (via phone); and Tim R. Humphrey, Member. 

 
STAFF PRESENT:  W. James Menlove, County Manager (via ITV); Jefferson R. 
Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Charles Shire, 

Deputy Gila County Attorney Senior-Civil (via ITV); Marian Sheppard, Clerk of 
the Board; and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk of the Board. 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chairman Cline called the Special Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 
the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room and he led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 
A.  Presentation of information on the Census 2020 Complete Count 

Committee for Gila County.  
 

Paul Wolterbeek, Gila County Public Communications Manager, advised that 
the Board of Supervisors created the Census 2020 Complete Count Committee 
(Committee) in 2018.  The primary purpose of forming the Committee was to 

bring together a cross-section of community leaders to focus on 2020 Census 
awareness and to design and implement a census awareness campaign 

targeted to the community to increase response rates for the 2020 Census.   
Mr. Wolterbeek introduced the following Committee members who were present 
at the meeting:  Kodee Goseyun, Vonda Dona, Stephanie Titla and Michelle 

Yerkovich.   
 
A summary of the information presented by Mr. Wolterbeek is as follows:  

Census Day is on April 1, 2020.  Self-response will begin on March 12, 2020, 
and it ends on July 31, 2020.  There are four ways to respond to census 



Page 2 of 4 

 

questions:  secure internet, respond by phone, respond by mail or an in-person 
interview.  The Committee has been actively participating in events since May 

2019 to promote the 2020 Census.  Flyers have been purchased and 
distributed along with other purchases of materials to promote the census. For 

every Arizonan who does not respond to the census, the state stands to lose 
$995 per person in federal funding.   
 

Mr. Wolterbeek reviewed the various events that will take place in Gila County 
of which there will be Committee representation to promote participation in the 
2020 Census.  He talked about ROAM (Response Outreach Area Mapper) that 

is available at census.gov/roam.  This map of Arizona identifies hard-to-survey 
areas.  Learning about each hard-to-survey area allows the U.S. Census 

Bureau to create a tailored communication and partnership campaign, and to 
plan for field resources including hiring staff with language skills. These and 
other efforts can improve response rates.  Each Board member thanked Mr. 

Wolterbeek and the members of the Committee for their efforts to promote the 
2020 Census. 

 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
  

A.  Information/Discussion/Approval to appoint Mr. Joe Albo, Ms. Daisy 
Flores and Mr. Gary V. Scales as Superior Court Judges Pro Tempore for 
the period of June 30, 2020 until July 1, 2021.   

 
Chairman Cline began reading this agenda item aloud when Supervisor 

Humphrey advised that Jesse Bryant submitted a public participation form to 
address this agenda item.  Chairman Cline continued reading the agenda item 
and then asked Mr. Bryant if he wanted to make comments.  Mr. Bryant 

replied that he may want to make comments depending on how the questions 
are answered that he asked during the previous meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors. 

 
Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator, commented that this agenda item was 

tabled at the Board’s February 18, 2020, meeting to allow staff time to obtain 
answers to Mr. Bryant’s questions.  Mr. Bearup advised that he was prepared 
to field any questions.  He stated that on an annual basis, the Superior Court 

Judges Pro Tempore are appointed by the Arizona Supreme Court.  That Court 
requires a request from the presiding judge and Board of Supervisors’ approval 

before the Court issues an administrative order to reappoint a judge pro 
tempore.  The Superior Court in Gila County adopted a policy for selecting 
judges.  It is Superior Court Administrative Order No. 2017-2 entitled 

“Selection of Special Judicial Officers.”  The policy is founded on the following 
authorities:  Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) § 12-144; Arizona Constitution, 
Article 6, Sections 31 and 41; and Arizona Code of Judicial Administration, 

Section 1-305. Mr. Bearup advised that Gila County’s policy was vetted 
through the Administrative Office of the Courts before being adopted.  He 



Page 3 of 4 

 

stated that in this instance the policy requires public notice, advertisement, 
evaluation of the candidates’ credentials, interview by the Court Administrator, 

and then an interview and selection by the presiding judge.  Mr. Bearup added 
that all superior courts throughout Arizona employee judges pro tempore and 

are subject to the very same requirements and authorities.  Chairman Cline 
asked each Board member if they had questions, which they didn’t so he called 
on Mr. Bryant.  Mr. Bryant stated that Mr. Bearup had answered one of the 

three questions he asked at the previous Board meeting.  Mr. Bryant asked 
“Are there any concerns, as I stated before, to the Board concerning the past 
documented incidents?  Is there a concern with the Board of whether 

appointing, in this situation as a circumventing of the election process, in this 
specific incident concerning Ms. Flores?”  Chairman Cline replied that the 

Supervisors would not be providing any comments on Mr. Bryant’s questions 
and he asked for a motion from the Board.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 

approved the appointments of Mr. Joe Albo, Ms. Daisy Flores and Mr. Gary V. 
Scales as Superior Court Judges Pro Tempore for the period of June 30, 2020 

until July 1, 2021.   
 
B.  Information/Discussion regarding a projected shortfall in funding for 

the Young Public School District and a possible short-term solution.   
 

James Menlove, County Manager, stated that the Young Public School District 
(YPSD) is having difficulty meeting expenses although they have not increased.  
He advised that the YPSD has been working with the Arizona Superintendent of 

Public Instruction; Roy Sandoval, Gila County School Superintendent; and the 
Board of Supervisors to find a long-term solution to their funding shortages.  
To address the short-term issues, Mr. Menlove recently learned that the Gila 

County Treasurer has established a line of credit for the schools, which will 
help address the YPSD’s short-term issues. Chairman Cline thanked Mr. 

Menlove and Mr. Sandoval for working on this issue.  He is thankful that the 
line of credit through the Treasurer’s Office is available to address the YPSD’s 
short-term issues, but is concerned that this school and others in rural Gila 

County may fall into the same situation next year. Chairman Cline and Mr. 
Sandoval are talking with staff from the Arizona Superintendent of Public 
Instruction to obtain a better understanding of the finance process for schools 

as it is different than counties.  Mr. Menlove added that he spoke with the 
Arizona Auditor General’s Office yesterday and they are willing to educate the 

County on the finance process for schools.  
 
At 10:22 a.m. Chairman Cline asked Vice-Chairman Martin whether she had 

any comments on this issue; however, she did not respond, and it was 
discovered that the phone call was disconnected.  Vice-Chairman Martin could 

not be reached for the remainder of the meeting. 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 

Item 4 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 

 
There wasn’t any public comment. 

 
Item 5 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 

may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on the information presented. 

 
The County Manager and Supervisors Humphrey and Cline presented a 
summary of current events.  

 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 10:38 a.m. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-5893   Consent Agenda Item     4. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Reporting
Period:

January 2020

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Esther Canez, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for January 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2020 monthly activity report submitted
by Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerks Report January 2020



















   
ARF-5911   Consent Agenda Item     4. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for January 2020

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Charlotte Williams, Chief Deputy Recorder

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for January 2020.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of January 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
January 2020

























   
ARF-5916   Consent Agenda Item     4. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
January 2020

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michael Sellars, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for January 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of January 2020 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Jan2020





















   
ARF-5919   Consent Agenda Item     4. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
January 2020

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for January 2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2020 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
January 2020



























   
ARF-5898   Consent Agenda Item     4. K.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Monthly Report for January 2020

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr. 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for January
2020.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2020 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for January 2020









   
ARF-5930   Consent Agenda Item     4. L.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Reporting
Period:

January 2020

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for January
2020

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2020 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
January 2020





Column ID 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

LINE 
ID CASE TYPE New Filing Transfer In Reopened Reactivated

Placed on 
Inactive Status

Active Inactive Entry of 
J dgment

Reopened Active Inactive Active Inactive

Section - 1 Civil
A Small Claims 24 0 3 0 0 0 3 0 0 24 0

B Forcible Detainer / Eviction 
Action

2 0 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 4 0

C Tort 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Contract 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

E Debt-Seller Plaintiff 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

F Other Civil 115 1 28 0 0 0 16 0 0 127 1

G Total Civil Complaints 143 1 35 0 0 0 21 0 0 157 1
Section - 2 Domestic Violence 
& Harassment Petitions

A Civil Emergency Order of 
Protection

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Civil Order of Protection 17 0 5 0 0 0 5 0 0 17 0

C Injunction Against Harassment 29 0 11 0 1 0 11 0 0 30 0

D Injunction Against Workplace 
Harassment

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Section - 3 Special Case 
Characteristics

A Self Represented Litigants 190 1 49 0 1 0 36 0 0 204 1

B Interpreter Provided 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Limited Jurisdiction Courts
START DATE : 1/1/2020          END DATE : 1/31/2020

Begin Pending Terminations Statistical Correction End Pending

 2/19/2020 10:33:40 AM  Page 1 of 1

http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Small%20Claims&Case_Types=Small%20Claims&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&Case_Types=Forcible%20Detainer%20%2F%20Eviction%20Action&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Tort&Case_Types=Tort&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Contract&Case_Types=Contract&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&Case_Types=Debt-Seller%20Plaintiff&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Civil%20-%20Other%20Civil&Case_Types=Other%20Civil&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Emergency%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&Case_Types=Civil%20Order%20of%20Protection&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20%2F%20Harassment%20-%20Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&Case_Types=Injunction%20Against%20Workplace%20Harassment&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&Case_Types=Self%20Represented%20Litigants&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=3&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=6&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=7&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=8&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Detail_Report&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=9&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Provided&Case_Types=Interpreter%20Provided&rs%3AParameterLanguage=


Clearance Rate

LINE ID CASE TYPE Total Filings* Total 
Dispositions**

Clearance Rate Cases Pending End 
Of Month

Cases on Warrants 
Status

Section - 1 Misdemeanor

Person
A Person-Sex Offenses 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

B Person-Kidnapping 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

C Person-Aggravated Assaults 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

D Person-Other Assaults 2 4 200.00 % 41 37

Property
E Property-Burglary 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

F Property-Auto Theft 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

G Property-Other 1 4 400.00 % 44 57

Other
H Drug Possession/Paraphernalia 8 2 25.00 % 104 102

I Weapons 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

J Public Order 6 3 50.00 % 68 59

K Interfering With Judicial Proceedings 1 0 0.00 % 10 7

L Failure to Appear/Misd&CrimTraffic 0 0 0.00 % 5 1

M Petty Offenses 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

N Other 5 4 80.00 % 85 94

O Section 1: Total Misdemeanor 23 17 73.91 % 357 357

Section - 2 Criminal Traffic

DUI
A Motor Vehicle 1 2 200.00 % 57 59

B Extreme Motor Vehicle 0 3 0.00 % 20 31

C Boating/Flying 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

Serious Violations
D Leaving the Scene 0 0 0.00 % 1 1

Limited Jurisdiction Courts
Misdemeanor, Criminal And Civil Traffic Caseload Summary By Case 

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT - 404
START DATE : 1/1/2020          END DATE :1/31/2020

Total Filings & Dispositions

 Misdemeanor, Criminal and Civil Traffic Caseload Summary Report By Case  2/19/2020 10:38:18 AM  Page 1 of 1

http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Person%20cases%20Sex%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Sex%20Offenses&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Person%20cases%20Sex%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Sex%20Offenses&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Person%20cases%20Sex%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Sex%20Offenses&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Person%20cases%20Sex%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Sex%20Offenses&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Person%20cases%20Kidnapping&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Kidnapping&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Person%20cases%20Kidnapping&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Kidnapping&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Person%20cases%20Kidnapping&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Kidnapping&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Person%20cases%20Kidnapping&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Kidnapping&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Person%20cases%20Aggravated%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Aggravated%20Assaults&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Person%20cases%20Aggravated%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Aggravated%20Assaults&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Person%20cases%20Aggravated%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Aggravated%20Assaults&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Person%20cases%20Aggravated%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Aggravated%20Assaults&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1D-Person%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Other%20Assaults&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1D-Person%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Other%20Assaults&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1D-Person%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Other%20Assaults&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1D-Person%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Person%20-%20Other%20Assaults&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Property%20cases%20Burglary&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Burglary&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Property%20cases%20Burglary&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Burglary&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Property%20cases%20Burglary&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Burglary&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Property%20cases%20Burglary&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Burglary&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Property%20cases%20Auto%20Theft&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Auto%20Theft&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Property%20cases%20Auto%20Theft&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Auto%20Theft&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Property%20cases%20Auto%20Theft&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Auto%20Theft&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Property%20cases%20Auto%20Theft&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Auto%20Theft&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Property%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Property%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Property%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Property%20cases%20Other%20Assault&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Property%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Drug%20Possession&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Drug%20Possession%2FParaphernalia&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Drug%20Possession&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Drug%20Possession%2FParaphernalia&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Drug%20Possession&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Drug%20Possession%2FParaphernalia&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Drug%20Possession&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Drug%20Possession%2FParaphernalia&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Weapon&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Weapons&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Weapon&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Weapons&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Weapon&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Weapons&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Weapon&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Weapons&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Public%20Order&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Public%20Order&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Public%20Order&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Public%20Order&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Public%20Order&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Public%20Order&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Public%20Order&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Public%20Order&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1D-Interfering&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Interfering%20With%20Judicial%20Proceedings&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1D-Interfering&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Interfering%20With%20Judicial%20Proceedings&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1D-Interfering&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Interfering%20With%20Judicial%20Proceedings&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1D-Interfering&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Interfering%20With%20Judicial%20Proceedings&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1E-Failure%20to%20Appear&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Failure%20to%20Appear%2FMisd%26CrimTraffic&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1E-Failure%20to%20Appear&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Failure%20to%20Appear%2FMisd%26CrimTraffic&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1E-Failure%20to%20Appear&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Failure%20to%20Appear%2FMisd%26CrimTraffic&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1E-Failure%20to%20Appear&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Failure%20to%20Appear%2FMisd%26CrimTraffic&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1F-Petty%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Petty%20Offenses&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1F-Petty%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Petty%20Offenses&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1F-Petty%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Petty%20Offenses&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1F-Petty%20Offenses&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Petty%20Offenses&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1G-Other%20Misdemeanor&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1G-Other%20Misdemeanor&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1G-Other%20Misdemeanor&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1G-Other%20Misdemeanor&ReportColumn=Section%201%3A%20Misdemeanor%20-%20Other%20-%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Extreme%20Motor%20Vehicle&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Boating%20and%20Flying&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Boating%20and%20Flying&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Boating%20and%20Flying&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Boating%20and%20Flying&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Boating%20and%20Flying&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Boating%20and%20Flying&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Boating%20and%20Flying&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20DUI%20-%20Boating%20and%20Flying&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Leaving%20the%20Scene&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Leaving%20the%20Scene&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Leaving%20the%20Scene&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Leaving%20the%20Scene&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Leaving%20the%20Scene&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Leaving%20the%20Scene&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Leaving%20the%20Scene&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Leaving%20the%20Scene&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=


E Reckless Driving 0 0 0.00 % 9 0

F Racing on Highway 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

G All Other 1 0 0.00 % 2 1

Other Violations
H Criminal Speed 4 4 100.00 % 41 15

I All Other 19 18 94.74 % 311 360

J Section 2: Total Criminal Traffic 25 27 108.00 % 441 467

Section - 3 CivilTraffic
A Driver License 6 9 150.00 % 21 0

B Registration 5 4 80.00 % 36 0

C Insurance 7 9 128.57 % 56 0

D Speeding 113 135 119.47 % 288 1

E Excessive Speeding 144 129 89.58 % 138 1

F Red Light 0 3 0.00 % 2 0

G Seat Belt 23 20 86.96 % 35 0

H State DPS Photo Enforcement 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

I Other Civil Traffic 10 7 70.00 % 163 1

J Section 3: Total Civil Traffic 308 316 102.60 % 739 3

Section - 4 Local - Non Criminal Ordinances
A Parking 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

B Non-Parking 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

Section - 5 Felony
A Total Felony 10 9 90.00 % 33 5

 GRAND TOTAL 366 369 100.82 % 1570 832
Section - 6 Domestic Violence

A Felony-Domestic Violence 0 0 0.00 % 1 0

B Misdemeanor-Domestic Violence 5 0 0.00 % 40 0

Section - 7 Special Case Characteristics
A Self Represented Litigants 356 351 98.60 % 1488 780

B Interpreter Services Provided 0 0 0.00 % 0 0

 Misdemeanor, Criminal and Civil Traffic Caseload Summary Report By Case  2/19/2020 10:38:18 AM  Page 1 of 1

http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Reckless%20Driving&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Reckless%20Driving&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Reckless%20Driving&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Reckless%20Driving&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Reckless%20Driving&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Reckless%20Driving&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Reckless%20Driving&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Reckless%20Driving&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Racing%20on%20Highway&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Racing%20on%20Highway&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Racing%20on%20Highway&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Racing%20on%20Highway&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Racing%20on%20Highway&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Racing%20on%20Highway&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Racing%20on%20Highway&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20Racing%20on%20Highway&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1D-Other%20Serious%20Violations&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1D-Other%20Serious%20Violations&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1D-Other%20Serious%20Violations&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1D-Other%20Serious%20Violations&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Serious%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Criminal%20Speed&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20Criminal%20Speed&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Criminal%20Speed&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20Criminal%20Speed&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Criminal%20Speed&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20Criminal%20Speed&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Criminal%20Speed&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20Criminal%20Speed&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-All%20Other&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-All%20Other&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-All%20Other&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-All%20Other&ReportColumn=Section%202%3A%20Criminal%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Violations%20-%20All%20Other&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Driver%20License&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Driver%20License&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Driver%20License&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Driver%20License&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Driver%20License&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Driver%20License&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Driver%20License&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Driver%20License&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Registration&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Registration&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Registration&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Registration&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Registration&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Registration&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Registration&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Registration&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1C-Insurance&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Insurance&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1C-Insurance&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Insurance&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1C-Insurance&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Insurance&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1C-Insurance&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Insurance&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1D-Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Speeding&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1D-Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Speeding&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1D-Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Speeding&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1D-Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Speeding&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1E-Excessive%20Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Excessive%20Speeding&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1E-Excessive%20Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Excessive%20Speeding&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1E-Excessive%20Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Excessive%20Speeding&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1E-Excessive%20Speeding&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Excessive%20Speeding&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1F-Red%20Light&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Red%20Light&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1F-Red%20Light&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Red%20Light&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1F-Red%20Light&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Red%20Light&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1F-Red%20Light&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Red%20Light&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1G-Seat%20Belt&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Seat%20Belt&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1G-Seat%20Belt&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Seat%20Belt&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1G-Seat%20Belt&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Seat%20Belt&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1G-Seat%20Belt&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Seat%20Belt&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1H-DPS&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20State%20DPS%20Photo%20Enforcement&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1H-DPS&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20State%20DPS%20Photo%20Enforcement&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1H-DPS&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20State%20DPS%20Photo%20Enforcement&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1H-DPS&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20State%20DPS%20Photo%20Enforcement&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1I-Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1I-Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1I-Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1I-Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ReportColumn=Section%203%3A%20Civil%20Traffic%20-%20Other%20Civil%20Traffic&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Parking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20Parking&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Parking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20Parking&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Parking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20Parking&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Parking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20Parking&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-NonParking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20NonParking&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-NonParking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20NonParking&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-NonParking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20NonParking&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-NonParking&ReportColumn=Section%204%3A%20Local%20Non%20CR%20Ordinances%20-%20NonParking&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-TotalFelony&ReportColumn=Section%205%3A%20Felony%20-%20TotalFelony&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-TotalFelony&ReportColumn=Section%205%3A%20Felony%20-%20TotalFelony&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-TotalFelony&ReportColumn=Section%205%3A%20Felony%20-%20TotalFelony&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-TotalFelony&ReportColumn=Section%205%3A%20Felony%20-%20TotalFelony&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Felony%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Felony%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Felony%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Felony%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Felony%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Felony%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Felony%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Felony%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Vio&ReportColumn=Section%206%3A%20Domestic%20Violence%20-%20Misdemeanor%20Domestic%20Violence&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1A-Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1A-Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1A-Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1A-Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Self%20Represented%20Litigants&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=1&ROW=1B-Interpreter%20Provided&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Services%20Provided&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=2&ROW=1B-Interpreter%20Provided&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Services%20Provided&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=4&ROW=1B-Interpreter%20Provided&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Services%20Provided&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
http://sqlssrsvm10/ReportServer?%2Fajacs%2Fajacs_jp0404_prod%2FApplicationReports%2FAOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadDetailByCase&STARTDATE=01%2F01%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&COL=5&ROW=1B-Interpreter%20Provided&ReportColumn=Section%207%3A%20Special%20Case%20Characteristics%20-%20Interpreter%20Services%20Provided&ENDDATE=01%2F31%2F2020%2000%3A00%3A00&rs%3AParameterLanguage=


   
ARF-5929   Executive Session Item     7. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/10/2020  
Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau

Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2019-2020 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2019-2020 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
The Gila County Attorney's Office hereby requests that the Gila County
Board of Supervisors give it instructions regarding the Board's position in
the matter of CENTURYLINK CORPORATION , a Delaware corporation,
Plaintiff, vs. ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE (ADOR), an agency of
the State of Arizona; and the COUNTIES of Apache, Cochise, Coconino,
Gila, Graham, Greenlee, La Paz, Maricopa, Mohave, Navajo, Pima, Pinal,
Santa Cruz, Yavapai, and Yuma, each of which is a political subdivision
of the State of Arizona, Defendants, regarding Arizona Tax Court No.
TX2019-001726.

Background Information
Centurylink is a telecommunications company as defined by A.R.S.
Section 42-14401. Under A.R.S. Section 42-14403, the Arizona
Department of Revenue (ADOR) shall determine the valuation of
Centurylink owned property in the State of Arizona. Under A.R.S. Section
42-14404(A)(1), ADOR shall apportion the valuation among the several
counties where Centurylink owns property.

Centurylink believes that ADOR has overvalued its property throughout
the state and that it is entitled to have the tax roll for the 2020 tax year
corrected in each county to reflect the correct full cash and limited
property values for its property and to receive any applicable refund.

Centurylink was required by A.R.S. Section 42-16208 to name both



ADOR and each county in which it has property, as defendants.

Gila County is a named defendant in this case, with other Arizona
counties. The Arizona Attorney General's Office has been authorized to
represent the interests of Gila County, along with the other counties
named in the lawsuit. The County Attorney's Office needs instructions
from the Board on how to proceed regarding a possible settlement.

Evaluation
The Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(4) to consider its position and instruct its attorneys
regarding its position in this pending litigation or in settlement
discussions conducted in order to avoid or resolve the litigation.

Conclusion
The Board's attorneys recommend it vote to go into executive session to
consider this matter.

Recommendation
The Board's attorneys recommend it vote to go into executive session to
consider this matter.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session under
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) for discussion or consultation with the
attorneys for the Gila County Board of Supervisors in order to consider its
position and instruct its attorneys regarding its position in pending
litigation, or in settlement discussions to be conducted in order to avoid
or resolve litigation, in the matter of CENTURYLINK CORPORATION, a
Delaware corporation, Plaintiff, vs. ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE, an agency of the State of Arizona; and the COUNTIES of
Apache, Cochise, Coconino, Gila, Graham, Greenlee, La Paz, Maricopa,
Mohave, Navajo, Pima, Pinal, Santa Cruz, Yavapai, and Yuma, each of
which is a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, Defendants
regarding Arizona Tax Court No. TX2019-001726. (Jefferson Dalton)

Attachments
SUMMONS, COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF APPEAL OF PROPERTY
TAX VALUATION














	Agenda
	Presentation on the QuadState Local Governments Authority and its activities
	Att1_Tortoise Presentation
	Att2_2nd Portion Tortoise Presentation
	Att3_Historic Rites RS2477
	Att4_Updated QandA RS 2477
	Att5_S. 468 Hearing
	Att6_Quadstate Information
	Gila County Spotlight on Employees Program for March 2020
	Att1_Aimee Staten
	Att2_Israel Juarez
	Att3_Robert Cox-Robinson
	Att4_Jerry J. Moore
	Att5_Zachary Andrade
	New Animal Shelter - Concept and Cost
	Att1_Preliminary Animal Shelter Design
	Agreement with Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens and Presentation by PGCSC Staff
	Att1_PGCSC Agreement 020520
	Accept Constable Ethics, Standards and Training Board Grant
	Att1_Grant Application
	Att2_Grant Award CNA20-405
	Resolution 20-03-01 Acceptance of Gaming Grant Award for Hellsgate Fire District
	Att1_Resolution No. 20-03-01
	Att2_Grant Application Packet
	Att3_Tonto Apache Grant Award
	Approve Budgeted and Unbudgeted Fund Transfers from FY2019
	Att1_Schedule D from 2018 and 2019 Adopted Budgets
	Att2_ARS 42-1710
	Authorization to Publish a Notice of Public Auction for  Miscellaneous Surplus Vehicles and Equipment
	Att1_Vehicle Live Auction List
	Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DI16-002156)
	Att1_Amendment three - Contract DI16-002156
	Att2_Amendment two - Contract D16-002156
	Att3_Amendment one - Contract DI16-002156
	Att4_ADES Agreement No. DI16-002156 IV-D Judicial Services
	Resolution No. 20-03-02 to name two roads in Pine as West Dilly Way and West Dally Lane.
	Att1_Resolution No. 20-03-02
	RESOLUTION NO. 20-03-02
	Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

	Att2_Public Notice
	Att3_Location Map
	Att4_Site Plan
	Contract Award for Invitation for Bids No. 121819-Replacement of Three (3) Sheriff's Office Patrol Vehicles
	Att1_Contract No. 121819
	Att2_As Read Bid Results
	Att3_McSpadden Ford-Sealed Bid
	Att4_Larry H. Miller Ford Mesa-Sealed Bid
	Att5_San Tan Ford-Sealed Bid
	Contract Award in Response to Invitation for Bids No. 121919 Replacement of One Sheriff's Office patrol Vehicle
	Att1_Contract No. 121919
	Att2_As Read Bid Results
	Att3_McSpadden Ford-Sealed Bid
	Att4_Larry H. Miller Ford Mesa-Sealed Bid
	Contract Award in Response to Invitation for Bids No. 121919-1 Three New Ford Escape, 4 Door, AWD
	Att1_Contract No. 121919-1
	Att2_As Read Bid Results
	Att3_McSpadden Ford-Sealed Bid
	Att4_Peoria Ford-Sealed Bid
	Att5_San Tan Ford-Sealed Bid
	Accept or Reject a Citizens' Petition to Begin the Process to Vacate a Roadway
	Att1_Petition
	Att2_Map
	Adoption of Resolution No. 20-03-03 authorizing the execution of Amendment No. Three to Intergovernmental Agreement (JPA File No. IGA_JPA 16-0005916-I
	Att1_Resolution No. 20-03-03
	Att2_Amendment No. Three
	TO
	I. RECITALS

	Att3_Amendment No. Two
	JPA 16-0005916-A2-Dist SE-Gila County-T008701D_03D_01C-Amendment Two SIGNED (2)
	Resolution
	PHX-#7851552-v1-2019-4-25_-_Determination_Letter_-_Gila_County (1)
	Gila County Board of Supervisors Meeting Agenda 4-16-19

	Att4_Amendment No. One
	Att5_JPA_IGA 16-0005916-I
	Verification of a Petition Submitted for the Requested De-Annexation of Properties from the Tri-City Regional Sanitary District
	Att1_Memo from Deputy Assessor re Assessor's Report
	Att2_Assessor's Report
	Account Value (Assessment) Extr

	Att3_Letter and Signed Petitions Re the Tri-City Regional Sanitary District
	Att4_A.R.S. 48-262
	Proposed comments on the Tonto National Forest Draft Land Management Plan
	Att1_Draft Gila County Comments
	Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 3 for Pine-Strawberry Horseman's Association
	Att1_Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 3
	Att2_Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 2
	Att3_Lease Extension-May 2010 to May 2015
	Att4_Original Lease Agreement
	Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 040819-Diana G. Montgomery, PLLC, for the Superior Court
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 040819
	Att2_Professional Services Contract No. 040819
	Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817 with the Law Offices of Steven Jones for the Superior Court
	Att1_Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817
	Att2_Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817
	Att3_Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817
	Att4_Amendment No. 1 to professional Services Contract No. 090817
	Att5_PSC-No.090817
	Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618-Hayes Enterprises Medical Director Services
	Att1_Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618
	Att2_Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618
	Att3_Professional Service Agreement No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises
	Sportsman's Chalet's Application for a Temporary Extension of Premises_Patio Permit
	Att1_Sportsman's Chalet-Application
	Att2_Sportsman's Chalet-CD Response
	February 4, 2020, February 18, 2020, and February 25, 2020 Meeting Minutes
	Att1_02-04-20 Meeting Minutes
	Att2_02-18-20 Meeting Minutes
	Att3_02-25-20 Meeting Minutes
	January 2020
	Att1_Clerks Report January 2020
	Recorder's Office Monthly Report for January 2020
	Att1_January 2020
	Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for January 2020
	Att1_Jan2020
	Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for January 2020
	Att1_January 2020
	Monthly Report for January 2020
	Att1_Monthly Report for January 2020
	January 2020
	Att1_January 2020
	2020 Jan  treas.pdf
	0404 Jan 2020_Civil_Caseload_Summary_Report
	AOC_STAT_Civil_Caseload_Summary

	jp0404 Jan 2020_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_CaseloadSummaryByCase
	AOC_STAT_Misdemeanor_Criminal_C


	Request to allow Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in TX 2019-001726
	Att1_SUMMONS, COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF APPEAL OF PROPERTY TAX VALUATION

